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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Fountain Set Group”) (Stock Code:
00420.HK)

One of the world’s largest and long-established fabric manufacturers, the Fountain Set Group produces knitted fabric and garments
through vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing and garment manufacturing, for many of the
renowned apparel retailers and brands.

As a strong believer of research and development, we collaborate with brands and suppliers to develop innovative and creative fabric
and garment products to consumers all over the world. Headquartered in Hong Kong and listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Fountain Set Group has 7 production facilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and representative offices in 4 countries and a global staff force of close to 7,900 strong.

Chinatex Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, has become the largest shareholder of the
Company since 2012. COFCO Corporation is a state-wholly-owned enterprise established in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
To learn more about Chinatex Corporation Limited, please visit www.chinatex.com
To learn more about COFCO Corporation, please visit www.cofco.com
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EER

HONORARY CHAIRMAN
Mr. HA Chung Fong

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHAQO Yao (Chairman)

Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director on 1 November 2021)

Mr. TAO Yongming

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Mr. ZHANG Zheng (appointed on 1 April 2021)

Non-executive Directors

Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)
Mr. LIU Xianfu (re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director on 1 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (appointed on 30 June 2021)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine

REGISTERED OFFICE & PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building

29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
COMPANY WEBSITE

www.fshl.com

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd.

SOLICITORS
Vivien Chan & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK
SRR IREKHEAR

YANCHENG &5

TOKYO ®R=
SHANGHAI L&

HONG KONG &3#
MACAO %P

HO CHI MINH CITY #7588

JAKARTA ERfNiE

@ HEADQUARTERS 4825
@ PRODUCTION FACILIT)
. @ TRADING OFFICE i

HEADQUARTERs » @ 8 A

HONG KONG &# CHINA ] MACAO #F9
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited Sales of Dyed Fabrics &4 & Raw Materials Sourcing B} iR
W Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited
FENBHHHEDERRF P2 CRPIBE =R BRAT
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
PRODUCTION FACILITY « £Z8), rsmEemsss R HO CHI MINH CITY #3587
Fountain Set Limited
CHINA F1[E - Vietnam Representative Office
Knitting & Dyeing $+48i R HONG KONG &# %ﬂ?&‘;%%;g?@a
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited Raw Materials Sourcing [F#}H% 8 i
IRREGHARAT Highscene Limited TOKYO Hx
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited EERBRATE Fountain Set Limited
BtE =4~ b INZ . .
A G A ) Sales of Dyed Fabrics &% #4 & Ui
Knitting, Dyeing & Printing #4 « & K& ENTE Fountain Set Limited BHBXEARRH
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles EREEARAT - BEEAREFR
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. . P
B2 ) B s h SR EN S R A ] Sales of Garments R 7k & UNITED KINGDOM 35
. f Hiway Textiles Limited Fountain Set (Europe) Limited
Garment Manufacturing &7k EELSBERAT BEEE (BN BRAS

Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.
FRABERAERAT

Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd.
BRAIBRXRERAT

JAKARTA HRfiniE

Garment Manufacturing 7%
P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang

COLOMBO FIfi

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.

PXBBERREEHEXBBLIEX - HAEKE  MURLBRE
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

MR AR s E

2021 2020
HK$Mil BEEr  HKSMIl 5 28T
Operating Results EEXEE
Revenue EXERE 6,751.3 4,043.2
Financial Performance BRI
Profit attributable to owners iN/NETEZ 2 =N
of the Company FE(S B F) 241.3 85.7
Profit margin B 3.6% 1.7%
Earnings per share (HK cents) SREF GEW)
- Basic —HEK 19.7 7.0
— Diluted — 58 19.7 7.0
Dividends e as
Proposed final dividend per share BANSRFRIPKRE
(HK cents) B 16.00 7.00
Dividend payout ratio IKE B 81.2% 100.0%

At 31 December

At 31 December

12H831H 128318
2021 2020
HKS$Mil BEET  HKSMIl &5 &E &
Financial Position at Year End REERERZBHERR
Net current assets MEEEZFE 2,248.8 2,059.3
Total assets BEEME 5,748.4 5,425.7
Non-current bank borrowings 3|5/m§i]'fﬁﬁ1tf§ - 7.1
Total bank borrowings HIRTTREE 327.3 236.7
Net bank borrowings fﬁmﬁéaﬂé (501.8) (1,026.2)
Total liabilities aE48E 1,989.3 1,845.9
Net asset value per share (HK$) SREEZRE (Br) 2.91 2.77
Capital expenditure BARREE 170.7 135.8
Financial Statistics A4t
Return on equity (%) 1 7 [O1 3R 2 (%) 7.2% 2.8%
Consolidated tangible net worth FERAETEE 3,255.1 3,195.5
Consolidated total bank debt to FERIRTTARHREFER
consolidated tangible net worth BEELA 0.1 0.1
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated iR EMITER SN EEERS
interest expenses 1 5 S W EE A 34.6 16.2
Consolidated current assets to e REBEERGZA R
consolidated current liabilities =Ryl 2.3 2.3
Inventory turnover period (days) EFEFER (H) 107 103
Trade and bills receivables turnover EEYrES e
period (days) BEE (/) 69 76
Trade and bills payables turnover EERERENRIE
period (days) AEHEA (/) 59 82
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RATE R

A summary of the financial information of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the respective published
audited consolidated financial statements, is set out as below. This summary
does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

ERBRANBARBELEYMBREEZ M
BERHE GENEEAFEAMEERGREME
]R) BIWMT - I E L TERAE B GRS/
BERKRZ 2D

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS RElEmR
For the For the For the For the For the
year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HZ20178 220185 HZE20195 HZE20205 #ZE20215F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 128318
IFFE HFE IHFE IHFE ILFE

HK$'000 T8  HK$000 FB7L HKS000 FH7T HKS000 FE7T HK$000 FHT

Revenue B 6,913,785 7,510,789 6,605,655 4,943,230 6,751,277
Profit before income tax expense  FRFF1Si HAT & A 212,250 230,865 209,619 122,145 337,450
Income tax expense iM%t (36,304) (52,586) (42,805) (20,554) (67,192)
Profit for the year EEERR 175,946 178,279 166,814 101,591 270,258
Attributable to: L
Owners of the Company EREHEBA 156,846 160,792 141,089 85,706 241,334
Non-controlling interests IS 19,100 17,487 25,725 15,885 28,924

175,946 178,279 166,814 101,591 270,258




BEEE(%E)HRST  2021FFHK T

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)

IEBE (8)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION EEMERRR
At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
128318 128318 R12831H R12831H ®12831H
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HKS'000 T8 HK$000 FB7T HKS000 FH7T HKS000 F 57T HK$000F#HT
Non-current assets FRBEE 1,746,764 1,771,706 1,835,805 1,746,822 1,728,511
Current assets TEEE 3,842,207 3,892,818 3,461,095 3,678,889 4,019,879
Current liabilities REas 1,746,107 1,687,133 1,331,653 1,619,636 1,771,099
Net current assets TEBEEFE 2,096,100 2,205,685 2,129,442 2,059,253 2,248,780
Total assets less current liabiitles ZEMERREEE 3,842,864 3,977,391 3,965,247 3,806,075 3,977,291
Non-current liabilities ElEI=LF 286,488 376,146 380,191 226,286 218,193
Net assets BESE 3,556,376 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098
Capital and reserves BAKEE
Share capital BTN 865,716 865,716 889,810 889,810 889,810
Reserves 11 2,536,545 2,567,084 2,529,651 2,504,762 2,670,428
Equity attributable to owners KRR R \EGER
of the Company 3,402,261 3,432,800 3,419,461 3,394,572 3,560,238
Non-controlling interests JEERG R 154,115 168,445 165,595 185,217 198,860
Total equity EmiEE 3,556,376 3,601,245 3,585,056 3,579,789 3,759,098
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS
B IE e 50 o

SUPIMA

1 Approved Licensee of Supima
Supima 33 7] 5 57 & & gt
2 Certified Licensee of COTTON USA™

COTTON USA™ SREE 45 s is & m”

Supima

Cotton Council International
= iRt

14 2019-2020 Quality Safety Advanced Grass-roots Enterprise
of COFCO*

I EE2019-2020E B2 L EEB X
2 2019-2020 COSCO Humanistic Award*
2019-20204F FRke & B A A%

3 2020 Outstanding Unit of Safety in Production of Jiangyin
High-tech Zone*

2020FEEI e EENLEE

COFCO
hIEEEARAR

COFCO
TREEEERAT

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IERSHMENEXHEREREEZE S
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIARK0EE ()

4 2020 Tax Payment of over 100 Million RMB Enterprise* Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
D020 EAEMRESBET % Committee of Communist Party of China*

PHIRSHRMEXRAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IRSMRNEXHEREREZES

5 2020 Outstanding Contribution Award for High-quality Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Development* Committee of Communist Party of China*
2020FE S EERRERNBRME ISR EXRER T(FEEY

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IREHMRNEXHEREREZES

6 2020 Outstanding Unit of Ecological Civilization* Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
D020FE FEAE RE R ZR 2L 4o s BE i) Committee of Communist Party of China*

ISR EXRER T(FEES
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*
s EXHEEEERZE Y

7 2020 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign Investment* Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone

0204 EEINRgIB B S 2 Committee of Communist Party of China*

RIS EXRERT(FEES
Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*
AREMEMEXHEREELZES
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
ﬁlﬁ& l:vuuﬁ (ﬁﬁ)

No.
X5
8

9A

10

11

12

13

14

ZO0ZOfH
ML E GAik

S AIMERAEFEFRETFERE
IAEEEXFEFEEWNERd

vmew

TRWREF LEES

Name of Award/Certification
1218 RERTE

2020 Charitable Enterprise*
2020 BRI SR

Advanced Grass-roots Party Organization of COFCO*
rieEETEREEEAES
Jiangyin China National High-tech Industrial Development

Zone 10" Anniversary (2011-2021) Special Contribution
Enterprise”

IRERSMERM+EF (2011-2021) R ERE X

ISO 50001:2018 Energy Management System Certificate*
ISO 50001:2018 FE/REIRAS A 5056

ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management System
Certificate*

ISO 14001:2015 IRiEE )

A
Oeko-Tex Standard 100
Oeko-Tex 1Z#100"

Comparison Test Certificate*
AR SRR S

%ﬂﬁ&ﬁiﬁ

—oz-it+l

iE A5

[t ER P ]

Issued by
BEH B

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China*

P IRSMRMEXRAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

IEsSMEMEXREEEERZE S
COFCO

FRREEBRAF

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China*

RIS RMEXFAEE TFEES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech
Industrial Development Zone*

AREMENEXHEEEEERZES

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd
ITRAERIREERDZHRAE

Beijing Zhongjing Quality Certification Co., Ltd
TRPERIBEERFERAT

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG » I 45 i 1& <E PR

CNTAC Testing Center

R B 47 8 == B e = ARl AR
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16

17

18

19

HOHLS

Lab
___CERTIFICATION
FOUNTARN SET - RANG YIM FUHUI TEXTILES LIMITED

Kohl’s Lab Certification
Kohl's B =05 ="

J. C. Penney Laboratory Certification

J. C. Penney B =D AIEE!

Laboratory Certification

BRENAHE

Under Armour Laboratory Accreditation Certificate
Under Armour BERZER A8 ="

ANTA Sports Laboratory Accreditation Certificate
ZHEEEREERD RS

FEEEE(EE)FRAE  20216FFR

AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)

Kohl’'s

J. C. Penney Purchasing Corp.

Intertek Group
KiEE

Under Armour

ANTA Sports Products Limited
ZHEEERARAERAR

BRIA R0 (8

11
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
ﬁlﬁ& l:vuuﬁ. (ﬁﬁ)

Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited

BmEEAEARAT

4 —0=0O%R
20204 % R A1

ZE2h

RETARER
2021%2R

No.
XS
1

AEEE (WE)WRER

tEE PERETLRERAOREL

CIA

SEHBTa®E
=0C-&EA

Name of Award/Certification

3218 WELE

2020 Outstanding Three-star Enterprise*
2020 EFERIB=EfE

2020 High Quality Development Contribution Award*
020K EREEREEREE

Organization Member of 2021 Yancheng Old District
Development Association®
N1 FRIpTHEGREIRETRBEEE

“Thirteenth Five-Year Plan” Outstanding Innovation and
Technology Enterprise of China Knitting Industry (Fountain
Set Group)*

+=A I FEHBITEESRRANEE GHER)

L.L. Bean Lab Certification
L.L. Bean B =388 ="

ISO 50001:2018 Energy Management System Certificate”
ISO 50001:2018 SEIREIEAE R 585&

Oeko-Tex Standard 100
Oeko-Tex Z#100*

Comparison Test Certificate*
EE¥ RIS EREE

AAERATHA

-ram:: A B T4 K
“liﬂotﬂllfl*l‘-

1o Aok R

Issued by
S B

Yancheng Municipal People’s Government*

By AR BUF

CPC Yancheng Economic-Technological Development
Zone Working Committee*

RHEERQERTHER TIFEES

Yancheng Economic-Technological Development Zone

Management Committee*
HRKERTHEEEIREES

Yancheng Old District Development Association®

BRhERREEES

CKIA
HEHBTERE

L.L. Bean

China Quality Mark Certification Group
FERGREER

TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
TESTEX AG > I #5488 & Pt

CNTAC Testing Center
R 4 A8 T 2= B e = ARl AR
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIAR R ()

COMPLETION OF
SE'LF-:\SSESSMENT

L APRAREL COALITION

COMPLETION OF
VERIFIED MODULE

1 Self-assessment of Higg Facility Social & Labor Module Sustainable Apparel Coalition
Certification
Higg TRRtt B A% T2 B T hEE

2 2020 Completion of Vertified Module Sustainable Apparel Coalition
2020 BB AR E AL

3 Environmental Management System Certificate* China Great Wall (Tianjin) Quality Assurance Centre
RIREERADERSE R (R2) BERIBHDL

4 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-Tex TZ#£100* TESTEX AG » I 45 #4% i€ PR

1 Quality Excellence Award cum 2021 Qiaodan Sports Top 10  Qiaodan Sports Co., Ltd.
Suppliers* SrEARNEBRAE
ERBEEREEBEB0IEESHES HEMERS

2 Laboratory Accreditation Certificate Qiaodan Sports Co., Ltd.
BREIIES SRBERNABERAR
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIak R ()

EXPRESS

=
E
U

il |

il

i

1 Express Laboratory Certification Express Laboratory
Express B =358

2 bluesign® SYSTEM PARTNER bluesign technologies ag
bluesign® SYSTEM E& ¢

3 Organic Content Standard (OCS) 3.0 Control Union Certifications B.V
B2 =12%(0CS) 3.0 HER5E (B8 BIRAR

4 Global Recycled Standard (GRS) 4.0 Control Union Certifications B.V
2 IR BHRZE(GRS) 4.0¢ HER:E (B8 BIRAR

8 Global Organic Textiles (GOTS) 6.0 Control Union Certifications B.V
2IKB 4 m(GOTS) 6.0 HERE (B8 BIRAR

6 Next Laboratory Accreditation Certification Next Retail (UK) Ltd.
Next BER =N EHS"

7 George Laboratory Certification Scheme George & Intertek Group

George B E DBt &) George K+ =B
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AWARDS & CERTIFICATIONS (continued)
BRIAR R ()

Oeko-Tex 1Z#100*

OERD-TERS

8 ISO 14001:2015 Environmental Management Systems SGS United Kingdom Ltd.
ISO 14001:2015 IRIREE R4 HEBEARAREERAR
9 ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and Safety SGS Société Générale de Surveillance SA
Management Systems In @A AREERAR
ISO 45001:2018 I EZ 2 BEEIERMR
10 Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation Scheme Marks & Spencer Group
B EEERBETEN EraaEE!
11 Facility and Merchandise Authorization for Asda Stores The Walt Disney Company
Limited FEBITREAR
Asda Stores Limiteds% i 5 &8 & 2858+
12 Facility and Merchandise Authorization for Marks & Spencer ~ The Walt Disney Company
Group ESHTEAT
B AEEEREREETE
13 Laboratory Certification Intertek Group
BR=ERE rAEEH
14 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 HOHENSTEIN Textile Testing Institute

HOHENSTEIN#F 442 & Pir*
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRS

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company” or “we” or “our’, and the “Board”, respectively), | am pleased to
present the audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group” or the “Fountain Set Group”) for the financial year ended 31
December 2021 (“2021”), and to provide you with an overview of the Group’s
strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

We are very pleased to report that 2021 was an extraordinary year for the
Fountain Set Group with outstanding revenue and profit growth. We delivered
a revenue of HK$6,751,277,000 for 2021, an increase of 36.6% as compared
to the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (“2020”). Increased strategic
investments in product offering, intelligent manufacturing system, market
geographic expansion, logistics, and our marketing initiatives propelled our
growth performance. All business units have done a masterful job managing
through the evolving market change and supply chain landscape.

Following a strong rebound in 2021, the world economy has been entering
a pronounced slowdown amid fresh threats from variants of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (the “COVID-19” or the “Pandemic”) and Russo-Ukraine war as
well as a rise in inflation, debt, and income inequality that could endanger the
recovery of the world economy. According to the World Bank’s January 2022
Global Economic Prospects Report, global growth is expected to decelerate
markedly from 5.5% global change in 2021 to 4.1% in 2022 and 3.2% in 2023
as pent-up demand dissipates and as fiscal and monetary support is unwound
across the world.

Commodity prices soared in 2021 following the broad-based decline in early
2020, with prices of several commodities reaching all-time highs. In part,
this reflected the strong rebound of demand from the 2020 global recession.
Energy and metal prices generally move in line with global economic activity,
and this tendency has strengthened in recent years. Looking ahead, global
macroeconomic developments and commodity supply factors will likely
continue to cause recurring commodity price swings. For many commodities,
these may be amplified by the transition away from fossil fuels. To dampen the
associated macroeconomic fluctuations, almost two-thirds of the commodity
exporters of emerging and developing economies (the “EMDESs”) need to
strengthen their policy frameworks and reduce their reliance on commodity-
related revenues by diversifying exports and, more importantly, national asset
portfolios.

The rapid spread of the Omicron variant indicates that the Pandemic will likely
continue to disrupt economic activities to a certain extent. Governments of
many developing economies have limited room for policy to support economic
activity when needed. Accordingly, outbreak of new COVID-19 variants,
persistent supply-chain bottlenecks and inflationary pressures, as well as the
elevated financial vulnerabilities in large swaths of the world could increase the
risk of an economic hard landing. Rising inequality and security challenges are
particularly harmful for developing countries, these could lead to a more difficult
operating environment going forward for corporations including us.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To go green by minimising printing and as our common practice, we shall
only upload the 2021 ESG report on the respective websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company. The 2021 ESG report
details the Group’s progress in multiple ESG areas, showing where we
exceeded expectations and where we need further improvement. We have
embraced sustainable innovation as a powerful engine for growth not only
for our own business, but across upstream and downstream partners in
our industry. Since 2016, we have set up a “Sustainability Development and
Enhancement Committee” (the “Committee”) which consists of different
subsidiaries and cross-functional departments. The Committee not only helps
drive the vision across the Group, but also implements our sustainability
objectives and goals. The Committee prompts our business to understand our
sustainability impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and overcome
obstacles in meeting them.

During 2021, our staff wellness club (the “Club”) has been re-established with
a committee formed by various department representatives in Hong Kong
headquarters when the Pandemic was slowing down. Similar staff wellness
programs have been in operation in all of our subsidiaries as well. The purposes
of the Club as well as staff wellness programs were to promote employee well-
being and employee engagement. When employees are happy and healthy,
it will translate into higher productivity and better products and services that
we provide. Several activities such as barbeque get-together and classes like
yoga, singing bowl, handmade workshops like soap, candles and jewelry were
arranged by a social enterprises company exclusive for our employees and
their families in the year under review. Employees were able to enjoy wellness
programs while the Company had the opportunity to support minority groups
through engaging services with social enterprises.

In 2016, we started a revolutionary new business —centralised heat supply
project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a pioneer in the industry.
The Shatian Town Environmental Industrial Park (the “Park”) (for electroplating,
fabric printing and dyeing industry) is one of the seven largest environmental
industrial parks in Dongguan, China. It integrates and assembles the industry’s
enterprises within the Park and in other areas in Shatian Town, which are
required to be relocated. The Project, being one of the ancillary projects of the
industrial park development, is also a key project of the implementation plan of
the centralised heat supply in Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster
Areas. The Project has been contributing to cleaner air for the community and
neighbourhood by reducing the emission of nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide as
well as smoke and dust by reducing the remaining 28 coal-fired heaters within
the district. The Project has completed the first phase of construction in 2018
and put into operation to supply heat to local enterprises. The second phase
of construction of the Project started in 2019. According to the Guangdong
Province’s “Blue Sky Defense” and Dongguan’s “Coal to Gas” policy, second
phase commenced after the removal of the remaining coal-fired boilers and
two new natural gas boilers have been built and put into operation in January
and August 2021 respectively, gradually replacing the original coal-fired boilers.
Natural gas is a clean energy source, which can be efficiently burned and
utilised. Upon the completion, it can further reduce overall energy consumption
and carbon emissions, promote green development, and improve ecological
environment of the region, overall social benefits and contentment.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
EREHRS ()

The Group will continue to invest in advanced technologies and install
additional equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides
periodic training workshops to staff members regarding environmental
protection and pollution controls. The Group also invites qualified advisers
to visit its factories from time to time to evaluate whether the environmental
protection measures are up to standard and to give recommendations for
further improvement.

LOOKING FORWARD

Based on the World Bank’s January 2022 Global Economic Prospects Report,
it is expected that, as compared to previously envisioned, the near-term
outlook for global growth will be somewhat weaker, and for global inflation
will be notably higher, owing to the resurgence of the Pandemic, higher food
and energy prices, and more pernicious supply disruptions. Global growth is
projected to soften further to 3.2% in 2023, as pent-up demand wanes and
supportive macroeconomic policies continue to be unwound. Although output
and investment results in advanced economies are projected to be returned
to pre-Pandemic trends in 2023, in EMDEs — particularly in small states and
fragile and conflict-afflicted countries—their output and investment returns will
remain markedly below pre-Pandemic performance, owing to lower vaccination
rates, tighter fiscal and monetary policies, and more persistent spread of the
Pandemic.

Various downside risks cloud our outlook, owing to the simultaneous
happening of these factors: Omicron-driven economic disruptions, further
supply bottlenecks, deanchoring of inflation expectations, global financial
stress, climate-related disasters, and a weakening of the world-wide long-term
growth drivers. As EMDEs have limited room for policy to provide additional
economic support when needed, these downside risks heighten the possibility
of a hard landing.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board, and
will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our spirit of
“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our general direction to “stabilise
operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group
to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual operating tasks and
targets with excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for
our shareholders. We are prepared to turn challenges into opportunities and will
forge ahead against all odds.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

After reviewing the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK16.00
cents per share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021. The total
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 would be HK16.00 cents per
share (payout ratio: 81.2%), as compared with HK7.00 cents per share (payout
ratio: 100.0%) for the year ended 31 December 2020. Subject to the approval
of the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 6 May 2022, it
is expected that the payment of the final dividend will be made on or about
Tuesday, 31 May 2022. Going forward in 2022, the Group expects to maintain
a similar range of dividend payout ratio as our dividend policy so as to provide
rewarding investment return to the Shareholders, subject to the dividend policy
stated on page 72 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group acknowledges the need and importance of corporate governance
as one of the essential elements in enhancing shareholder value. The Group
is devoted to improving its corporate governance policies in compliance with
regulatory requirements and in accordance with international recormmended
practices. The Company has formed the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee” or “AC”), remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”
or “RC”) and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or “NC”) all
at the Board’s level, to provide assistance, advice and recommendations on
the relevant matters that aim to ensure protection of the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole.

APPRECIATION

Fountain Set is now uniquely positioned to continue our leadership position
in circular-knitted fabric business with passion on new products innovation
and development. In 2022, we are excited to continue making substantial
investments in the business, to drive another year of above market results
and gross margin expansion. We are grateful for the excellent guidance and
counsel from our fellow Board members. We appreciate the ongoing support
of our Shareholders, customers, end users, suppliers, business partners and
the entire Fountain Set Group for a tremendous year. These outstanding results
are a testament to the quality of our dedicated, skilled, and passionate world-
class teams across the globe. We are confident that our unrelenting bold vision,
customer focus and business momentum will make 2022 another outstanding
year and position Fountain Set with exciting opportunities in the months and
years ahead.

ZHAO Yao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
18 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERERmED

BUSINESS REVIEW

2021 was one of the most successful years in the Fountain Set Group’s
recent business history in terms of gross profit margin and profit attributable
to owners of the Company. Although the Group was bombarded by the
2019 disease coronavirus novel (the “COVID-19") pandemic (the “Pandemic”)
domestically and globally since early 2020, with our strong resilience and
determination to turn things around, the Group has recorded a solid financial
results in 2021. Thanks to everyone in the Group who made tremendous efforts
and persistence, the Group managed to ride on the increased demand on
circular-knitted textile and garment products and services globally to achieve
the highest gross profit margin since 2011 and the best profit attributable to
owners of the Company in 15 years since 2006.

As the COVID-19 vaccination helps to suppress the Pandemic and the
increasing vaccination coverage has led to more and more countries adopting
an increasingly co-existent approach to dealing with the virus, relaxing the
restrictions on social distancing, allowing a somewhat normal domestic life
and consumer behaviors around the globe. We saw higher demand on our
textile and garment products from our major customers as global apparel
brands regained confidence in placing orders for apparel products. In 2021
when compared to a low base in 2020, resulting in a significant increase by
36.6% on the revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 to
HK$6,751,277,000 (2020: HK$4,943,230,000). During the year under review,
the Group’s fabric year-on-year volume increment was approximately 22.7%
whereas the average selling price increased by 11.8% year-on-year.

Benefited from the efficient and effective control of the Pandemic in mainland
China, our production mills were in full operation during 2021. As a result, the
general sales condition in 2021 was much better than that of 2020 for the
Group. In addition, the Group was able to achieve the best collaboration on a
global scale with our operation and management system of “production, supply
and sales integration”, to respond well to operating crises and market risks and
managed to maintain reasonable control on our cost of goods sold to sales
ratio amid the historical high on raw material prices in the market during 2021.

Reviewed the same period in 2020, 2020 was affected noticeably due to
the beginning outbreak of the Pandemic around the world, which led to the
temporary closure of our production facilities in mainland China and the sharp
reduction in demand on textile and apparel products due to the city lock-
down and social distancing policies in place in 2020. During the second half of
2020, production has actively resumed in China, the Pandemic has gradually
subsided and the economy continued to recover, resulting in an abnormal year
of 2020 for the Group in terms of revenue and profit.

Prices of cotton yarn, being the major raw materials of the Group, surged
to a record high in recent decade. Under such circumstances, costs were
inevitably shifted to our customers. With our continuous stringent control on
cost of goods sold and further market consolidation, the gross profit margin of
the Group in 2021 was higher than the corresponding period last year by 0.6
percentage point to 13.0% (2020: 12.4%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Thanks to the tightened control in the distribution and selling expenses,
administrative expenses as well as finance costs in 2021, the earnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation margin was 7.8% in 2021 (2020:
6.4%), the highest for the past eight financial years which demonstrated our
enhanced operating efficiency. Profit for the year in 2021 demonstrated a
significant jump from HK$101,591,000 in 2020 to HK$270,258,000 in 2021,
representing an impressive increment of 166%. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company in 2021 was HK$241,334,000, also a strong come-back
from HK$85,706,000 in 2020. The profit margin substantially increased by 1.9
percentage points to 4.0% in 2021 (2020: 2.1%). Basic earnings per share
in 2021 was HK19.7 cents (2020: HK7.0 cents), a remarkable increment of
HK12.7 cents.

Under the strong leadership of the Board as well as the management of the
Group, all staff of the Fountain Set Group are determined to forge ahead and
work tenaciously and achieved annual operating performance exceeding all
operating results indicators in the past five years.

(1) Forging ahead with determination to hit a new record high in
the annual operating results

Since entering the year of 2021, the textile and apparel market demand
has resumed growth, whilst the market growth of different regions varies.
The product demand structure and procurement model were undergoing
profound changes, the market situation was fluctuating, and the business
environment of enterprises was changing. The management team of the
Fountain Set Group actively responded to changes in the complex market
operating environment by strictly controlling risks and improving efficiency.

(i) The market situation was complex and the business
environment was changing

With the recovery of textile and apparel market demand, product
demand structure and procurement model were also undergoing
profound changes. Reflected in market sales, the demand for
traditional varieties recovered rapidly, while the demand for new
varieties and high-value varieties grew slowly. In the meantime,
affected by high level of inventory, major buyers tended to be more
cautious in their forecasts on future demand in terms of varieties and
quantities, as a result of which, the proportion of orders for small-
batch, multi-variety, and short-delivery has increased.

(i) The fluctuation of raw material prices

Since the second quarter of 2021, the price of raw materials has
been at a high level for a prolonged period of time. Although the
demand for low-value traditional products has recovered rapidly, the
purchasing power of demand recovered slowly, so that the market
selling price was suppressed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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(iii)

The cotton problem had not been resolved yet, affected by which,
the quality of raw materials generally declined and production losses
increased, which pushed up the cost of raw materials consumption.
In addition, the supply had tightened and the procurement costs
had increased, which increased the cost of raw materials for the
production of enterprise products, costs were unavoidably passed to
clients.

Since the middle of the third quarter of 2021, driven by the combined
influence of various unfavorable factors, the prices of raw material,
energy and dyestuff and chemical had skyrocketed, resulted in
a sharp rise in the production costs of production companies.
Also, due to the continuous impact of factors such as power
and production restrictions in various regions of mainland China,
as well as RMB exchange fluctuations and labor shortages, the
manufacturing costs of production enterprises had risen.

Giving full play to the advantages of overall marketing to
expand market sales

With the opportunity of resumption of market growth, the Fountain
Set Group gave full play to the advantages of overall marketing,
maintained aggressive marketing policies, and actively followed up
the demand growth of major customers and major buyers, thus
striving to expand market sales. At the same time, we actively
developed order demand of small and medium customers, expanded
market share, and explored potential demand of customers for high-
value varieties.

The Fountain Set Group accelerated product research and
development and trial production, and developed 1,300 product
samples, covering more than 400 special varieties in ten categories.
That has enhanced the market competitiveness of high-value
products of the Group, and significantly increased order value,
thereby creating conditions for a substantial increase in annual
profitability.

Taking advantage of the favorable conditions for early recovery
of growth during the Pandemic, the Fountain Set Group actively
carried out market development to establish a mechanism for mutual
assistance and cooperation with major customers and major buyers.
With market-oriented and customer demand-targeted, the Fountain
Set Group integrated its production, supply and sales capabilities to
carry out overall marketing campaign, and actively expanded product
sales in the domestic market.

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(iv) Promoting lean manufacturing to increase competitiveness

and reduce manufacturing costs

The Fountain Set Group propelled the process technologies
innovation that significantly improved production efficiency and
process technology standard. On one hand, through equipment
transformation and upgrading, the Group improved its manufacturing
capacity significantly. The production efficiency increased
significantly while the production costs decreased substantially.
On the other hand, by continuously promoting the application of
process technology for improvement in production efficiency, our
standard of production technology and product quality had been
comprehensively improved.

Since entering the year of 2021, the Fountain Set Group has
achieved fruitful results in the process technology improvement.
Following the application of a batch of new processes and new
technologies to production practices, plus the introduction and
utilisation of equipment with advanced technological characteristics
for the purpose of production, the production process had
been optimised, with production efficiency and product quality
significantly improved, and production losses and production
costs also decreased substantially. The lean manufacturing
had been extensively promoted, which effectively improved the
competitiveness of the Fountain Set Group in the industry.

In 2021, a total of ten major categories of new products were
successfully trial-produced, which represented the further
improvement in product diversity and technological advancement
of the Fountain Set Group, and provided effective support for the
expansion of sales market and a substantial increase in profits of the
Fountain Set Group.

(2) Out-performed the three-year operating responsibility target
through overcoming various difficulties

(M)

Realising significant improvement in production efficiency and
process standard by propelling upgrade of equipment and
process technology

Through equipment upgrade and transformation and introduction
of equipment with advanced technology into production, we
improved our manufacturing capacity significantly. The production
facilities of the Fountain Set Group successively introduced a series
of equipment with advanced technology into production, which
significantly improved our production efficiency and manufacturing
capacity.
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(i)

By continuously promoting application of process technology
improvement results in production, the level of production technology
was comprehensively improved. The Fountain Set Group achieved
fruitful results in advancing process technology improvement.
Following the application of a batch of new processes and new
technologies to production, the production process had been
optimised, with production efficiency and product quality significantly
improved and production losses and production costs significantly
decreased.

Achieving a number of results in product development and
performance improvement with R&D capabilities significantly
enhanced

After years of continuous research work on product development
and improvement, the Fountain Set Group achieved merit
performance in terms of product development and variety
improvement. By utilising new materials and new technologies, we
achieved results in nearly 1,000 varieties of four major series, namely
product upgrades, new material applications, functional series and
environmental protection products. Some of these achievements
won awards for invention and innovation, and were recognised and
acclaimed by the market.

The application of new fibers and new materials continued to deepen
and a number of achievements had been transformed into new
products and launched into the market. The successful development
of DuPont Sorona®Plus elastic cool fiber knitted fabric enhanced the
development of new materials functional fabrics of the Fountain Set
Group to a new level and it had been put into mass production to
supply the market. On this basis, cotton-covered silk plain weave
products and cotton-covered cotton plain weave products had been
put into production. In addition, a batch of products characterised
by high wearability, strong texture, energy saving and environmental
protection, such as atmospheric tangible cationic polyester staple
fiber products, expanded acrylic mixed fiber products, and polyester
filament products, hit the market one after another, effectively
facilitated the diversification and refinement of the product portfolio of
the Fountain Set Group.

The development and improvement of multi-layer composite
structure fabrics also achieved new results. Through continuous
research and tests in recent years, our development of three-layer
composite fabrics was extended to five-layer composite fabrics
without altering the existing equipment. The variety and features of
such products were further enhanced and broadened. At present,
multi-layer composite sports and casual apparel fabrics became one
of the main products of the Fountain Set Group.

(ii)
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(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

On this basis, the features of multi-layer composite fabrics have been
further enhanced and improved by improving weaving equipment
and process with the selection of different fiber composition.
Currently, the quality test results of the three-layer composite fabrics
produced by the Fountain Set Group are up to more than 4 levels.

Promoting the technological transformation of intelligent
information systems to transform outdated production
methods

The technological transformation project of the Fountain Set
Group’s intelligent information system has been developed since
2019. Its development delayed as disruptions has been occurred
due to the development of Pandemic, and now it's implemented
to work with existing MENU system. The project aims to replace
the existing MENU system and build a manufacturing execution
(MES+) system based on the Internet of Things. Through the use
of information technology and MES+ system, the standardisation
of process technology can be realised to improve the predictability
and accuracy of the implementation of production plan, and lean
manufacturing and flexible manufacturing can be achieved from
the past obsolete push-production approach to comprehensively
improve the production efficiency and factory management standard,
which constitutes the basic information platform of the Fountain Set
Group’s “production, supply and sales integration” management
system.

According to the Fountain Set Group’s overall work requirement
of “overall planning and step-by-step implementation”, the
technological transformation project of intelligent information system
will cover the entire production process from raw material storage,
weaving, dyeing, finishing, semi-finished/finished product storage
and finished product shipment, as well as the entire order business
cycle from business forecast order to official order, production
work order, purchase order, storage and shipment through the
construction of the system platform. Through the information
interconnection of existing systems (SAP, central control system,
etc.) and production equipment, we can achieve order scheduling
optimization and restructuring, raw material procurement tracking,
warehousing logistics/production logistics control, manufacturing
execution, product development and other business model
reengineering, data collection, big data processing, analysis
and application to explore new business growth points, improve
comprehensive decision-making capabilities in terms of production,
operation, management, cost, investment and other aspects, so that
the entire production process is transparent, intelligent and paperless
and effective management of the five elements of human, machine,
material, method and environment can be realised.

(iii)
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(iv) Continuously improving management control and operational
efficiency by leveraging the advantages of the “production,
supply and sales integration” management system

The Fountain Set Group has been able to seize the opportunities
of market growth and effectively enhance its competitiveness and
profitability in the course of its operation and management, thanks
to the key role of the “production, supply and sales integration”
management system in supporting the Group’s operation control.
The fact that Fountain Set Group has been able to achieve record-
high operating results over the past three years also proves the key
role of the operation and management system under the “production,
supply and sales integration” management model in the stable
operations and sustainable growth of the Fountain Set Group.

With the advantages of the “production, supply and sales integration”
management system, the Fountain Set Group has been able to
improve its refinement management capabilities and has also formed
a team of managers who are skilled in using the management system
and have operational control capabilities. During the crisis caused
by the impact of the Pandemic in 2020, the Fountain Set Group’s
management team withstood the test and successfully led the Group
back to growth ahead of companies in the same industry, and the
team’s business management skills were improved. In 2021, the
Fountain Set Group seized the opportunity to expand its market,
carried out effective operation and realised productive management
performance in terms of risks prevention, revenue enhancement,
cost reduction and other aspects, achieving key indicators to
measure corporate value and exceeding the three-year management
responsibility target, which once again demonstrated the strength
of the Fountain Set Group’s management model and management
team.

(38) Events after the Reporting Period

The Group did not have any significant events after the end of the
reporting period (i.e. 31 December 2021) and up to the date of this annual
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out below:

ERERES T (&)

FA 5Ol BR

AEBEHZE2021FE12A31AIEEEZ T ELE
KEABIER2)WT ¢

2021 2020
Statement of Profit or Loss Items EERIEE

(Al amounts in HK$ thousands unless Y5 RIGERRINT B T RE

otherwise stated) BHUF AT
Revenue O 6,751,277 4,943,230
Gross profit EF 879,539 611,132
EBITDA* BT EE e 85 A 526,113 316,486
Profit for the year EEERF 270,258 101,591
Profit attributable to owners of the NABV B NEIERA

Company 241,334 85,706
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) SREARF GBI 19.7 7.0

Key Financial Ratios FEMFLEE

Profitability ratios BRIGESTHE
Gross profit margin (%) FEFIZ(%) 13.0% 12.4%
EBITDA* margin (%) SERITE R EHEF I EE%) 7.8% 6.4%
Expenses as a % of revenue FIZ IS 23 HEFE
Distribution and selling expenses DiIEMIEE BB 21% 2.2%
Administrative expenses THER 6.8% 8.2%
Finance costs =% 0.2% 0.4%
Asset efficiency BENMNE
Inventory turnover period (days) FEB®EE (H) 107 103
Trade and bills receivables turnover EELERRBWEIEFE (H)

period (days) 69 76
Trade and bills payables turnover EENREREMARIEFE (H)

period (days) 59 82

* EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation.
¥ EBITDARRRE 7 BIRITEE KK A AR o
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At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H R12H31H
2021 2020
Asset ratios BELEXE
Current ratio* e S 2.3 2.3
Net debt/EBITDA ratio FBERS BRITE RN X (1.0) 3.2
Gearing ratio BARaELEER
Total liabilities/Equity attributable to BEEE K ABHE A NEEER
owners of the Company 0.6 0.5

s Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

RBEERNABE G ZRRABEERURB AR

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$6,751,277,000 (2020: HK$4,943,230,000).

Revenue by business segments

12.3% s
FY2021
2021844

87.7%

@ Production and Sales of Garments

=

EEHZE2021F12A31H L EENESEENA
6,751,277,0005 7T (20204 : 4,943,230,0003

JT) ©

EEEREBOE

Production and Sales of
Dyed Fabrics and Yarns

BUSRSHE B i)

BUS RHE AR

For the year under review, the Group’s core business, production and
sales of dyed fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately
HK$5,917,779,000 (2020: HK$4,322,991,000), which accounted for 87.7%
(2020: 87.5%) of the Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production
and sales of garments was approximately HK$833,498,000 (2020:
HK$620,239,000), which accounted for 12.3% (2020:12.5%) of the Group’s
total revenue.

REBEFE EEZOER - WNERBERR
Kt = R84 45,917,779,00058 7t (2020
£ 1 4,322,991,0008 70) »{hEEEEEMEE
B87.7% (20204 : 87.5%) o Wi RN E BY
TR 5E4 /833,498,000 75 (20204 :
620,239,000 7T) » hEREEEEBLEEMN12.3%
(20204 : 12.5%) ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$5,871,738,000 (2020: HK$4,332,098,000) and
overall gross profit margin was 13.0% (2020: 12.4%).

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue increased by 36.6%
compared with the last year, which was mainly due to the increase in sales
volume of fabric by approximately 22.7%. Compared with the same period
last year, the increase in percentage of revenue was larger than the increase in
percentage of production cost, which led to the increase in gross profit margin.

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$141,310,000 (2020:
HK$107,256,000), which accounted for 2.1% (2020: 2.2%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$458,436,000 (2020:
HK$406,800,000), which accounted for 6.8% (2020: 8.2%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$526,113,000 (2020: HK$316,486,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 7.8% (2020: 6.4%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$15,225,000 (2020: HK$19,562,000), representing 0.2%
(2020: 0.4%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$170,676,000 (2020: HK$135,777,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment and investment properties. The Group’s capital commitments
primarily related to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment. As at
31 December 2021, the Group had contracted capital commitments of
approximately HK$116,978,000 (31 December 2020: HK$105,938,000) in
relation to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax expense of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$67,192,000 (2020: HK$20,554,000).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2021, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$241,334,000 (2020: HK$85,706,000) and
the corresponding profit margin was 3.6% (2020: 1.7%).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s inventories amounted to approximately
HK$1,717,220,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,218,169,000). The inventory
turnover period was 107 days, an increase of 4 days compared with 103 days
in 2020.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade and bills receivables amounted to
approximately HK$1,270,335,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,027,493,000).
Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 69 days, a decrease of 7 days
compared with 76 days in 2020.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted
to approximately HK$956,450,000 (31 December 2020: HK$964,731,000).
Trade and bills payables turnover period was 59 days, a decrease of 23 days
compared with 82 days in 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, bills payables of HK$13,038,000 (31 December
2020: HK$28,991,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits
of HK$2,608,000 (31 December 2020: HK$5,798,000).

FRiSH <
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net assets amounted to approximately
HK$3,759,098,000 (31 December 2020: HK$3,579,789,000). The key figures
of the Group’s financial position were as follows:

ERERES T (&)

BRIt RMEER

R2021F12A31H EBEEFELN A
3,759,098,000# 7t (20205128311
3,579,789,00087T) - EBHMHR TN EEER
o

At 31 December At 31 December
12A31H 128318

2021 2020

HK$’000F #&5T HK$'000F &7t

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,728,511 1,746,822
Current assets MEEE 4,019,879 3,678,889
Total assets BEEHEE 5,748,390 5,425,711
Current liabilities piE A=k 1,771,099 1,619,636
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 218,193 226,286
Total liabilities BEEE 1,989,292 1,845,922
Net assets BEEFE 3,759,098 3,579,789

During the year, the Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of
operation by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term
bank borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank
borrowings.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
HK$327,342,000 (31 December 2020: HK$236,748,000). Details of the bank
borrowings of the Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s bank balances and cash, including
short-term bank deposits, amounted to HK$824,979,000 (31 December 2020:
HK$1,255,567,000) and were mainly denominated in HKD, USD and RMB.

FR ERUEEMBREAERRTHERE
HERENEEESRE MEARZAEE
RERRITEREN-

R2021F12831H AEBRTEEZ
327,342,000t (2020F12831H :
236,748,000/ 7T) - AEBEMNIRITHEEEBD
BN R e BRI E300

R2021F12831H » KE B WIRITAE % K IR
+ (BIFEHIRTER) &1824,979,000/8 T
(20204128318 : 1,255,567,0005&7T) » T &
BABETRARK.
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EREF®ESH (B

As at 31 December 2021, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios
(according to the definitions of the Group’s principal banks) were as follows:

1R2021F12831H » T BN HERMER thx
(REAEETEARRITMNER WF :

At 31 December
#12831H
2021

At 31 December
R12831H
2020

Consolidated tangible net worth RERBEREE

Consolidated total bank debt to HRERETEBEERS R
consolidated tangible net worth BREELLSL

Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated 47 & B0 1T €8 Ko # 85 A 7 B
interest expenses fREaM B B

Consolidated current assets to RenBEEHRKFRAREARE
consolidated current liabilities EEf

Consolidated capital expenditure REBEARRX

HK$3,255,116,0007% 7T

HK$3,195,548,0007# 7T

0.1 0.1

34.6 16.2

2.3 2.3
HK$170,676,0007& 7T HK$135,777,0007 7T

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had
complied with all covenant ratios and undertakings.

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to manage
foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sale and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in HKD, USD and RMB. Since the Group mainly carries out
production in China, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB
exposure. The Group has been closely monitoring the exchange rate fluctuation
for USD and RMB and will continue to monitor the trend of the exchange rate
and adopt appropriate measures in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk in
a cautious manner.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
USD and interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. The average
effective interest rate of bank borrowings of the Group was 1.44% per annum
(2020: 2.46% per annum) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2021
and the bank borrowings were repayable within one year. All bank borrowings
were unsecured for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December
2020. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rates fluctuation in the
market and will adopt appropriate measures to minimise the interest rate risk.

REE2021FE2020F12831HIEEE RN » A&
E BB A AR K KEE ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately 7,900 (31 December
2020: 7,600) full-time employees. The Group will continue to implement
streamlined production so as to further minimise its labour cost. The Group'’s
emolument policies are formulated based on the performance of individual
employee and the salary trends in various regions, which are reviewed
regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the Group may also distribute a
discretionary bonus to its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the
Group.

The Company also provides regular training courses and subsidies for
continuing education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect
to production, selling and management.

STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage
our resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community
development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers, workforce,
suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has
the Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
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OUTLOOK

The recovery of the end consumer apparel market continues to support strong
customer order demand of textile and apparel products heading into 2022. Our
order visibility is solid and strong and the sales momentum of 2021 has been
seen in the first quarter of 2022, showing continuous encouraging business
and financial results. However, rising raw material costs, the potential outbreak
of Omicron variant near our production facilities and the strained shipment
situation will inevitably lead to inflation of consumer prices as well as clouding
the stability of the production of the overall supply chain.

The rising consumer awareness of health due to the Pandemic, has led to
increasing demands for different types of exercises including hiking, running,
yoga, gym work-out etc. At the same time, as work-from-home become a new
common around the globe, these factors are changing consumer preference
towards casual wear, sportswear and athleisure products. We believe that
these trends should provide strong support for the further growth in casual
wear and sportswear apparel demand.

Striving to achieving the strategic development goals for the China’s
14th Five-Year Plan (the “14th FYP”) period with continued efforts

The current global economy is undergoing significant changes, and economic
globalisation is facing challenges. Under the impact of many uncertain factors,
the global textile industry layout is constantly changing, and a new global textile
industry and textile trade layout are taking shape. The Fountain Set Group is
also facing unprecedented challenges, and it needs to accelerate adjusting its
development strategy to facilitate transformation and upgrading.

Facing severe situation and challenges, the Fountain Set Group
comprehensively analyses the changes in macroeconomic situation and
accurately grasps global economic and industrial development trends
to promote high-quality development under the guidance of innovative
development and in line with the requirements of China’s textile industry
development.

Promoting quality and innovative remain as the top priority for the
future development of the Fountain Set Group

In general, there is still a considerable gap between the current level of
technological development of China’s textile industry and the goal of being a
textile powerhouse. Therefore, the textile enterprises in China should adhere to
the strategic direction of promoting high-quality development with innovation
and new drivers transforming from technologies for a long period of time in
future.

The reshaping of the global textile industry layout and the complicated evolution
of textile production and trade environment determine the instability of the
textile industry layout and its development in future. The rise of emerging
economies, the advancement of technologies and brands in developed
countries in Europe and USA and the return of manufacturing industries made
Chinese textile enterprises facing a passive situation. The Fountain Set Group
can maintain its ability to compete in the market only if we could improve
our capabilities in four sectors: technological innovation, product upgrade,
production capacity coordination and market cultivation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

During the 14th FYP period, the Fountain Set Group will lead the transformation
and upgrading innovatively to facilitate high-quality development and
achieve sustainable green development through technological innovation
and management innovation, so as to become an industry leader in the
manufacture and management of high-quality knitted fabrics.

Intelligent manufacturing is of important significance for textile enterprises
in improving production efficiency, changing traditional production models,
enhancing international competitiveness and achieving high-quality
development. In the future, the Fountain Set Group should adhere to promoting
intelligent manufacturing step by step according to the development path of
three basic paradigms of digitalisation, networking and intelligence based on
the results of existing informatisation construction.

Intensifying the cultivation of domestic market to achieve
complementary and coordinated development between domestic
and international markets

The Group will accelerate the development of the domestic textile market and
expand the proportion of domestic product sales to form a new situation of
coordinated development that complements the external international markets
and the internally domestic market. The Group will enter the industrial textile
market through developing industrial textiles as a new growth segment for the
domestic market and taking medical textiles as the entry point, with constant
deepening and expansion, making it a new source of growth in future.

Continuous investment in Research and Development

The Group will put more efforts in product research and development. By
taking functional fabrics, multi-fioer composite fabrics and fabrics for green
environmental clothing as the main direction, we will increase product varieties,
expand the industries and fields in which our products apply, and transform
from a subcontracting enterprise to a manufacturing enterprise to improve the
quality of development.

Deepening international collaboration

The Group will establish an industrial collaborative manufacturing mode that
share standards, information and benefits to improve its capacities in operation
and resource integration in overseas markets, with a view to accumulating
experience and cultivating talent to cope with the changes of industry
landscape and implement the strategy of “going global”.

We believe that all of our staff members will work towards the Board’s direction
and objectives as well as implement the work plans set by the Board, and
will further map out our long-term development strategy. With our spirit of
“diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our general direction to “stabilise
operation and to enhance development”, we shall keep on enhancing our
efficiency and exploring the market with persistent efforts for bringing the Group
to a new level. We look forward to completing our annual operating tasks and
targets with excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for
our shareholders. We are prepared to turn challenges into opportunities and will
forge ahead against all odds.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELHRS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures as it believes that an effective corporate
governance framework is fundamental to promoting and safeguarding
interests of shareholders and other stakeholders and enhancing shareholder
value. Throughout the year from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the
“Year”), except for the deviation as disclosed in this report, the Company has
consistently adopted and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as
guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2021, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 11 members, namely 5
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
4 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The NEDs and INEDs
represented about 55% of the Board members thereat. During the Year and up
to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following members:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman)

Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from a non-executive Director to
an executive Director on 1 November 2021)

Mr. TAO Yongming

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Mr. ZHANG Zheng (appointed on 1 April 2021)

NEDs

Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)

Mr. LIU Xianfu (re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director on 1 November 2021)

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (appointed on 30 June 2021)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

On 1 April 2021, Mr. ZHANG Zheng had been appointed as an ED, which
resulted in the number of INEDs being fallen below one-third of the Board as
required under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Following the appointment of
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi as an INED with effect from 30 June 2021, the number
of INEDs has restored its representation of at least one-third of the Board, and
the Company has complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules. The profiles of all the current Directors are set out on pages 55 to 61
of this annual report. The relationships among the Board members (including
financial, business, family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are
also disclosed there.

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment with
the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at the
general meetings of the Company in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the Articles provides that
at each annual general mesting of the Company (the “AGM”), one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple
of three, then the number nearest one-third or any other number subject to
such manner of rotation as may be required by the statutes, the Listing Rules
or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed from time to time by the
applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from office. The Directors to retire in
every year shall be those who have been the longest in office since their last
election but as between persons who became Directors on the same day those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree between themselves) be determined
by lot. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election. Article 93 of the
Articles also provides that any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy (who
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company) or as
an addition to the Board (who shall hold office until the next following AGM)
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken into account in
determining the Directors who are to retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to the
Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising the business operations of the Group in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by formulating
strategic directions and monitoring the financial and management performance
of the Group.
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The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board. The
Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s business
to the executive management team, and focused its attention on matters
affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the Shareholders.
The executive management team assumes full accountability to the Board
for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been formulated and
will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that shall be reserved
to the Board and those delegated to the management. The Board has given
clear directions to the management that certain matters must be referred to
the Board for consideration and approval. The Board is the ultimate decision
making body of the Company except for matters requiring the approval of
the Shareholders in accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each meeting
in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were made by
majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2021 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2020 and
any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place to allow the
Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his respective duties, might take independent professional
advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at the Company’s
expense. The availability of professional advice extended to three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee” or the “AC”),
the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee” or the “RC”) and
the nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee” or the “NC”). Minutes
of the Board meetings were taken by the Company Secretary and, together
with any supporting documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final
versions of the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record
respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his interest
and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which he or any of
his close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material interest and
that he would not be counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

EEXERRS (B
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Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the X®EEN BEENEEZT S BIZLETY
AC, the RC and the NC and AGM during the Year are set out in the E -FANEETEE ELEETEERBEL

following table:

TOHFEF BN TR !

Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year

FEERESZHERY, RELREZEH

Name of Directors Board AC RC NC AGM
EElY EX® ERZE8Y HHEEET 2RAZEY REREEAE
EDs HITEZE
Mr. ZHAO Yao (Note 1) RS E (Wzt1) 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. SUN Fuji (Note 2) BRLLE ) 4/4 4/4 - = 11
Mr. TAO Yongming MK 8% 554 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew il Epedeies 4/4 - - - 11
Mr. ZHANG Zheng (Note 3) SRIESRAE (W33 2/3 - - - 11
NEDs HHTEE
Dr. YEN Gordon mEHEL 4/4 - - = 11
Mr. LIU Xianfu (Note 4) AEBR/EE W) 4/4 - - - 11
INEDs BUHHTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung RE&REE 4/4 4/4 - = 11
Mr. YING Wei ERERE 4/4 - - = 11
Mr. William LAM WEMEE 4/4 4/4 - = 11
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (Note ) IRZ L W#s) 2/3 = = = =
Date of the meetings 2EAF 19/03/2021 07/01/2021 Note 7 Note8  07/05/2021

02/07/2021 11/03/2021 Vof=74 Hriz8

26/08/2021 06/07/2021

19/11/2021 20/08/2021

Note 6
Wiz

Notes: W

1. Mr. ZHAO ceased to act as the CEO of the Company with effect from 1 November 1.

2021.
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M BT o

2. Mr. SUN was re-designated from a NED to an ED and was appointed as the CEO 2. &£ 2021E11B1BRAIENTESHATAS

of the Company in place of Mr. ZHAO, and ceased to be a member of the AC with
effect from 1 November 2021.

WOEFUESERITHAAM U EHMBLE
TABEETEREEGMB B

3. Mr. ZHANG was appointed as an ED with effect from 1 April 2021. Three Board 3. RI&ELENR2021F4F1HESEANITES 1T

meetings were held during his tenure of the office in 2021.

CONNFRERE AR TINEETEETEH-

4. Mr. LIU was re-designated from an ED to a NED with effect from 1 November 2021. 4. 254202111 B1BERNITESFHEAIE

HITES-
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5. Mr. WONG was appointed as an INED and a member of the AC with effect from
30 June 2021 and 1 November 2021 respectively. Three Board meetings were and
no AC meeting was held during his tenure of the respective offices in 2021.

6.  During the year, written resolutions had been circulated and passed by all the AC
members on two occasions, which were dated 18 March 2021 and 12 November
2021, respectively.

7. During the Year, written resolutions had been circulated and passed by all the RC
members on six occasions, which were dated 11 March 2021, 15 June 2021,
28 June 2021, 25 August 2021, 12 November 2021 and 15 November 2021,
respectively.

8.  During the Year, written resolutions had been circulated and passed by all the NC
members on seven occasions, which were dated 11 March 2021, 15 March 2021,
2 June 2021, 28 June 2021, 20 August 2021, 23 August 2021 and 12 November
2021, respectively.

Training of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the duties
and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest and the business
of the Group and induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors.

All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest developments
and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code provision
C.1.4 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the Year, each
of the Directors named below has participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the
following topics to develop and refresh his knowledge and skills and provided a
record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Notes)
EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. SUN Fuiji (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. TAO Yongming (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHANG Zheng (@), (b) and (c)
NEDs

Dr. YEN Gordon (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. LIU Xianfu (@), (b) and (c)
INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YING Wei (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. William LAM (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (@), (b) and (c)

Notes:

(@) corporate governance
(b)  regulatory requirements or risk management
(c) finance or business operation/management

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal action against the Directors and officers.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE “CEO”)

Since 23 January 2015, Mr. ZHAO Yao, the Chairman and an ED, has taken
up the position of CEO of the Company, details of which were set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2015. This deviates from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates that the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. However, having considered the latest development of
the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and CEO in different persons
enables the Group to plan its overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the
budgeted target. As Mr. SUN Fuiji was re-designated from a NED to an ED and
was appointed as the CEO of the Company in place of Mr. ZHAO with effect
from 1 November 2021; and hence the Company has complied with code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each of the
NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-election at
the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities
transactions. In response to the specific enquiries made by the Company on
all Directors, they have confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference have been
reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by reference to the
CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures and
arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The respective
committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these committees
and the work of each of these committees was reported to the Board regularly.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised and
effective on 1 January 2019. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to monitor
the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on the changes
in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas, significant audit
adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance with accounting
standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and to
review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems.

Mr. SUN Fuji ceased to be a member of the AC with effect from 1 November
2021 while Mr. WONG Kwong Chi was appointed a member of the AC with
effect from 1 November 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung, Mr. Wiliam LAM and Mr. WONG Kwong Chi
and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of the
attendance are shown in the table on page 39 of this annual report. The Audit
Committee passed 2 written resolutions during the year. A summary of the
work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

o provided recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms of
engagement of the independent auditor;

e reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards, and discussed with the independent auditor before
the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the audit and the reporting
obligations;

e reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as well
as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

o reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;
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e discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to have effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

e ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced and had
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and monitored its
effectiveness;

e reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

° reviewed the independent auditor's management letter, any material
queries raised by the independent auditor to management regarding
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Group’s
independent auditor, in respect of audit and non-audit services for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$2,961,000 and HK$1,101,000 respectively.
The non-audit services mainly consisted of interim review of HK$357,000,
payroll services of HK$43,000, tax services of HK$237,000, SASAC's report of
HK$460,000 and registered services of HK$4,000.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The independent auditor’s
statement about its reporting responsibilities is set out on pages 76 to 80 of
this annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2022 AGM for the approval of
the Shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually; 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s) or to fill Board vacancies as
they arise and to assess candidates proposed by the CEO as new Senior
Vice President(s) or to fill Senior Vice President vacancies as they arise for the
approval of the Board; 3) to assess the independence of the INEDs; and 4) to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and
the CEQ.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises an
ED Mr. ZHAO Yao and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr. William LAM
and is chaired by Mr. ZHAO Yao.

The Nomination Committee passed 7 written resolutions during the Year. A
summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set out
as follows:

e made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy on the
appointment and re-appointment of Directors, Honorary Chairman and
CEO and assessed the independence of the INEDs;

o reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

o reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed the
balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with a diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Group.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the appointment
of Directors (including an INED) in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the current
composition and size of the Board, develop a list of desirable skills,
perspectives and experience at the outset to focus the search effort;

i. The Nomination Committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals
from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due consideration
given to the criteria which include but are not limited to:

(@) Diversity in the aspects of, amongst others, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service;
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Vi

Vil

Viil.

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest;

() Qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries in which the Group’s business is involved;

(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

()  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to the Board; and

(g0 Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it considers
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
interviews, background checks, presentations and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of candidates who
are in and outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the Nomination
Committee will hold a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions to, if
thought fit, approve the recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of the
selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for consideration of
the remuneration package of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the recommendation to
the Board in relation to the proposed appointment, and where a Director is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation
to the Board on the policy and structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be interviewed by
the members of the Board, who are not members of the Nomination
Committee and the Board will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing of the consent
to act as Director of the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or accept the appointment
as Director, as the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.
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POLICY OF DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”).
The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background and
S0 on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars of the
Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable and
balanced development of the Group.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, regional and industry experience, skills,
knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidate(s) will bring to the
Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy for all Directors; 2) to review
and approve the Group’s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators proposals
by reference to the Board’'s corporate goals and objectives. The Group’s
remuneration policy is to provide a competitive level of remuneration in
accordance with current market conditions to attract and motivate the
Directors and staff for their contribution.

As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
an ED Mr. TAO Yongming and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and Mr.
YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.
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The Remuneration Committee passed 6 written resolutions during the Year. A
summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the Year is set out
as follows:

e  made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment and assessed
their performance;

° reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and incentive
assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate
goals and objectives; and

e ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates (as defined in
the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The risk management and internal control
systems employed by the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material and/or
financial misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated the Audit Committee
the following duties:

1.  to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and internal
control systems;

2. to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty
to have effective systems. This discussion should include the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

3. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the internal audit
function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the
Company, and to review and monitor its effectiveness; and

4. 1o consider major investigation findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and the
management’s response to these findings.
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The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”) and
the Corporate Operation Management Department (the “COMD”) to manage
the internal control and risk management issues of the Group respectively. The
COMD reports to both the AC and the CEO, while the IAD reports only to the
AC.

The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and other risk
issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time to time. The
Board, through the AC, reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied with
the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises 4 staff members. It is governed by an internal audit charter
and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit function.
The IAD has prepared 17 internal audit reports during the year ended 31
December 2021. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been provided with
adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified staff with sufficient
experience and training programs to perform its internal audit function.

The missions of the IAD are:

— to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and
operation processes; and

—  to assist the organisation in achieving the best practice, thus becoming
the best managed company.

The IAD is authorised to have unrestricted access to records, personnel, and
physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their relevance
depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as the audit
environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on the handling of
sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD is authorised to directly
and regularly communicate with the senior management and all executives in
individual organisation being audited to discuss its major findings. All personnel
within the Group are required to assert full cooperation any time and in any
place with the IAD necessary to allow it to discharge its responsibilities.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management framework
(the “Framework”) since 2016. The Framework is to execute the basic risk
management measures in various business sectors such as production,
operation and management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open and
proactive risk management culture, and (i) safeguard the strategic development
and current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Comprehensive Risk Management Framework
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The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework (the
“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of the
Group is made up of the Board, AC, CEO, senior management, COMD, IAD
and various subsidiaries of the Company.

The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up of senior
management and heads of various functional and operational departments of
the Group, who are the key players for minimising potential risks in advance.
The second layer consists of the AC, the CEO and the COMD, which is mainly
responsible for the organisation, co-ordination and planning of the corporate
risk management works and monitors the progress of the risk management
works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk management crisis. The third
layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to review and audit the existing operation
flow such as information system, business flow and financial disclosure. The
third layer is often the key to mitigate risk factors in the aftermath of a risk
management crisis.
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The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the three ~ FEIFER T 1E2R3B M BREEKRES) :
layers of the Framework:
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In 2022, COMD will continue to focus on the following risk management issues: 7320224 » (¥ BEBEMFEEE L 5 H
ARREEET !

1. Continue to strengthen and deepen the risk self-assessment and internal 1. #&#& 052 ~ R 1E R B 3 571 82 9 36511
assessment work; T1E;

2. Set reasonable assessment standards and methods for the impact of risk 2. ¥ EGIER 2 2R EMN(HIZEHE LE
categories; and TRERE &

3. Accelerate the implementation progress of the risk management work. 3. MREEEETIENEHEE-



52

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2021

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRS (B

During 2021, the IAD and the COMD had reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings to the AC. The
risk management and internal control systems are reviewed twice during the
Year. There was no significant defect found in respect of the risk management
or internal control system under review. The Board and the AC are satisfied
with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information (the
“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely manner
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is Inside Information and/or whether the Company has
to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the Group
must report to the Board and/or CEQO any information they have which they
believe to be Inside Information and will trigger the Company to discharge its
disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing Inside Information to the
public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any department and/
or employee of the Group in order to help determining whether the alleged
information is Inside Information and/or whether disclosure is required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of
the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and practices
on (i) corporate governance and (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior management;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and (d) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. The Board has, amongst other matters, reviewed this
corporate governance report, ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”), the company secretary of the
Company, has continued to perform and discharge the duties of a company
secretary under the Listing Rules.
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Ms. CHENG joined the Group in October 2003 and is currently the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department of the Group) of the
Company. She has over 23 years of extensive working experience specialising
in company secretarial matters, credit management, investor relations,
corporate affairs and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG is a fellow member
of each of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators) in England. Ms. CHENG obtained a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from Mount Allison University, Canada, an Executive Master’'s degree
in Business Administration (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
and a Master of Science degree in Professional Accounting and Corporate
Governance from the City University of Hong Kong. Ms. CHENG has fulfilled
the specified qualifications and experience under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules
and she has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain a
continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through various
channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out below is a
summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to Sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a
right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated by the
Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the Company,
require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request () must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (i) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s) and such
meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice convening the
meeting.

If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the notice of
the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business that may be
dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been included in such
notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed as a special resolution, the
Directors must include, in the notice of the meeting, the text of the resolution
and specifies the intention to propose the resolution as a special resolution.
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If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request, the
Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a
general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must be
reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 580 and 582 of the Companies Ordinance, a Shareholder
may request the Company to circulate a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to a matter mentioned in any proposed resolution or other
business to be dealt with at any general meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made
by (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at the
meeting; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a
proposed resolution at the meeting.

The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and must
be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant meeting. The
expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the Shareholder(s)
who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i) the Company resolves
otherwise or (i) the meeting to which the requests related is an AGM; and
requests sufficient to require the Company to circulate the statement are
received in time to enable the Company to send a copy of the statement at the
same time as it gives notice of the meeting.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings or
change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. Shareholders may at any time send
their enquiries to the Board via the Investor Relations Representative of the
Company whose contact details are shown under “Shareholder Information” of
this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the
Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “EDs”)
Mr. ZHAO Yao

Chairman of the Board
Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Aged 58, has been an ED since 27 November 2012, and was appointed as
the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
on 14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company
on 23 January 2015. Since 1 November 2021, Mr. ZHAO no longer acted
as the CEO and remains as an ED, the Chairman of the Board and the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. Mr. ZHAO also holds directorships
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. ZHAO has almost 34 years of
experience in the textile industry. He joined China National Textiles Import
and Export Corporation* (7Bl 45 4 G & H 1 482 B]) (“General Corporation”),
the predecessor of Chinatex Corporation Limited* (FEF45EEAEA
7)) (“Chinatex”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, in 1987 and held
positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the General Manager of Asset
Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and General Manager of
Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (P42 EEEEEREA
&), General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property Management Co., Ltd.*
(BB 4r R TR EABRAT), General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate
Administration Co., Ltd.* (R EIEHFRAF) (“Chinatex Real Estate”),
Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng Fuijitec
Elevator Co., Ltd.* GEAETEEHEBRAF), Chairman of Shanghai
Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* (bBEAESTEHKBEERELAT),
Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science & Technology Co., Ltd.*
(BBEELEREBRAT), Financial Manager of Wah Gar Knitwear
Factory Company Limited, General Manager of Suzhou Zhongfa Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (BRINFREEYZEBIRAB) and Vice President of
Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* (EAxH AN E*), a subsidiary of Chinatex.
Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial accounting from Renmin
University of China in 1987. In 2013, Mr. ZHAO obtained a Senior Management
Master’'s Degree of Business Administration awarded by University of Texas at
Arlington in the United States of America (“USA”).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. SUN Fuji
Chief Executive Officer

Aged 58, was appointed as a non-executive Director and a member of the
Audit Committee on 28 August 2018. Mr. SUN is a senior engineer. He has
over 37 years of experience in the textile industry. Mr. SUN joined Zhucheng
Chinatex Sunrise Textiles Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Zhucheng Cotton
Spinning Factory) in 1984 and has held positions such as the Technician and
the Deputy Officer of Front Spinning Department, the Factory Director Assistant
and the Deputy Factory Director of Zhucheng Cotton Spinning Factory and the
person in-charge of Zhucheng Textiles Corporation. Mr. SUN has served as
the Executive Deputy General Manager of Textile & Garment BU, a subsidiary
of Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) (a controlling shareholder of
the Company), the General Manager of Chinatex Jinwei Textiles Co., Ltd.*
(“Chinatex Jinwei”) and Chinatex Sunrise Textiles Co., Ltd. (“Chinatex Sunrise”)
since May 2017, and also appointed as the Chairman of Chinatex Jinwei and
Chinatex Sunrise since May 2021. Once Mr. SUN’s appointment as the CEO
of the Company is effective, he was no longer act as the Executive Deputy
General Manager of Textile & Garment BU (a subsidiary of Chinatex), the
General Manager and legal representative of Chinatex Jinwei and Chinatex
Sunrise. Mr. SUN graduated with a Bachelor’s degree in engineering from the
Textile Department of Cotton Manufacturing of Shandong Textiles Engineering
Institute in the PRC in 1984.

Mr. TAO Yongming
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 56, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 28 August 2018. Mr. TAO joined China National Cereals, Oils
and Foodstuffs Corporation (‘COFCQO”), formerly known as China National
Cereals, Oils & Foodstuffs Import & Export Corporation, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, in 1987 and has held positions such as the
Officer and Deputy General Manager of Planning and Finance Department
of COFCO, the Executive Vice President of COFCO Capital Corporation, a
subsidiary of COFCO, the General Manager of Shandong Peanut Import and
Export Co., Ltd.*, a subsidiary of COFCO, the Deputy General Manager of Risk
Management Department of the Auditing & Supervision Department of COFCO,
the Deputy General Manager of Audit Management Department of Audit,
Legal and Risk Management Department of COFCO, the General Manager
of Discipline Inspection & Supervision Department of Chinatex (a controlling
shareholder of the Company). Mr. TAO has served as the General Manager of
Audit, Legal and Risk Management Department of Chinatex since May 2017.
Mr. TAO graduated from Renmin University of China with a Bachelor’s degree in
Foreign Trade Accounting in 1987.
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Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Aged 53, was appointed as an ED on 28 August 2018. Mr. YAU is also
the chief operating officer of the Group and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. YAU joined the Group in 1992 and has
over 27 years of experience in the textile industry with extensive experience
in operations and strategic planning. Mr. YAU is also a director of the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited. Mr. YAU graduated from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (now known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in
1991 with a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology and subsequently obtained
a Master of Science degree in Textile Engineering from the University of Leeds
in England in 1992. He earned an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree and a Master of Science (MSc) degree in Finance from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2015 and 2019, respectively.

Mr. ZHANG Zheng

Aged 36, was appointed as an ED on 1 April 2021. Mr. ZHANG graduated
with a Bachelor Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2009,
and a Master’s Degree in Economics from Renmin University of China in 2011.
Mr. ZHANG obtained with the professional qualification of board secretary of
Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2017. Mr. ZHANG has adequate knowledge in
equity financing, mergers and acquisitions and fund management. Mr. ZHANG
was the Researcher, Assistant of Fund Manager and Fund Manager of Da
Cheng Fund Management Co., Ltd. between 2011 and 2017. Mr. ZHANG
is currently the director and board secretary of Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd., a
company listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

* For identification purpose only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “NEDs”)
Dr. YEN Gordon

Non-executive Vice Chairman

Aged 52, has been a NED since 31 May 2013 and was further appointed as
the Non-executive Vice Chairman of the Board on 28 August 2018. Prior to
that, he was the Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an ED. He joined
the Group in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before
being re-designated as a NED. Dr. YEN is currently the founding managing
partner of Radiant Tech Ventures Limited, an innovation and technology venture
capital firm, and is registered as a responsible officer under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance for Type 9 (asset management) regulated activity. He
serves as an independent non-executive director and a member of each of the
audit committee and the nomination committee as well as the chairman of the
sustainability committee of Impro Precision Industries Limited, and also serves
as an independent non-executive director and a member of the nomination
committee of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, both companies
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr.
YEN is a member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the PRC; Honorable Life-Chairman of
the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited; chairman of the Hong
Kong Business Angel Network; and a director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Manufacturing
Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master degree in Business
Administration from McGill University, Canada and a Doctorate in Business
Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. LIU Xianfu

Aged 56, has been an ED since 28 August 2018 and was re-designated as
an NED on 1 November 2021. Mr. LIU has over 27 years of experience in the
textile industry. He joined Chinatex, a controlling shareholder of the Company,
in 1994 and has held positions such as the Deputy Finance Section Chief of
Chinatex Cotton Yarns and Fabrics Import and Export Corporation, the Deputy
General Manager of Chinatex Real Estate, the Deputy General Manager of
Finance Department of Chinatex, the General Manager of Audit Department
of Chinatex, the General Manager of Finance Department of Chinatex, the
General Manager of Chinatex Raw Materials International Trading Corporation,
and the Vice President of Chinatex. Mr. LIU has served as the Chief Accountant
of Chinatex since 2017. Mr. LIU graduated from Anhui University of Finance
and Economics (formerly known as Anhui Finance and Trade College®) in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1987 in professional accounting
with a Bachelor’s degree of Economics. He graduated in finance and obtained
a Master’s degree in Economics from Chinese Academy of Fiscal Sciences
(formerly known as The Research Institute for Fiscal Science) in the PRC in
1990 and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree from The
University of Texas at Arlington, USA in 2010.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(THE “INEDs”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 71, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED, and was then appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. NG is a practising accountant. He is also the non-executive
director of Wah Ha Realty Company Limited and was an independent non-
executive director of Palace Banquet Holdings Limited, until his resignation
effective from 27 January 2022, both being listed companies in Hong Kong. He
holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and a Licentiateship in Accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law from the
University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a member of each of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional Accountants
of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional Accountants,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial Planners in Hong Kong.

Mr. YING Wei

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 55, was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January
2015. Mr. YING holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
the University of San Francisco and a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from
the Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of
Commerce) in the PRC. He is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. For the period from 1989 to 2007, Mr. YING
served as an executive director and the Vice President of China Resources
Textiles (Holdings) Company Limited. Between 2007 and 2009, he served as
the Vice President of China Water Affairs Group Limited, a company listed on
the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From 21 July 2008 to 30 July
2009, he held the position of an executive director and the President of China
City Infrastructure Group Ltd. (formerly known as China Botanic Development
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. From September 2011 to February 2022, he was an independent
non-executive director of CHTC Fong’s International Company Limited, a
company listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. From May
2016 to February 2021, he served as a director of Giant Network Group Co.,
Ltd (formerly known as Chongging New Century Cruises Co., Ltd.), a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Currently, Mr. YING is an independent
non-executive director of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited, a company
listed on the main board of Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. YING is also a
managing partner of CDH.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. William LAM

Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Aged 63, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM is a solicitor
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the Supreme Court
of England and Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages in Hong Kong. He
graduated from the University of Manchester, England in 1981 with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical Engineering. His major study
included computer design, power transmission and telecommunications.
He is also a member of the Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
(M.LE.E.E.) in USA. After obtaining his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws
at the Manchester Polytechnic (now known as Manchester Metropolitan
University), England and the College of Law in Chester, England, respectively.
Mr. LAM returned to Hong Kong in 1984 to work in family business of Tai
Sun Company (@ member of The Hong Kong-Kowloon Yarn and Fabrics
Association), and Shing Fung Finance Company Limited, both founded by
his late father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958 and 1972, respectively. In 1992,
Mr. LAM furthered his studies in laws at the University of Hong Kong and
obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as a
solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in 1994 and of the Supreme
Court of England and Wales in the following year. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded
Wiliam Lam and Company, Solicitors to start his own practice in law. Mr.
LAM also serves in many areas. He is an executive committee member of the
Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the founding
president of the University of Manchester Alumni Association of Hong Kong,
General Committee of Yau Yat Chuen Garden City Club Ltd. and a member of
the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong Kong from 18 January
2005 to 30 September 2020 and was a coopted member of the Chinese
Temples Committee from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted as the legal
advisor of various organisations, such as the Hong Kong General Chamber of
Textiles Limited, the Chamber of the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong
Kong Information Technology Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling
Association, the Hong Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong
Software Industry Association, the Government Doctors’ Association and the
Hong Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank.

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. WONG Kwong Chi
Member of the Audit Committee

Aged 70, has been an INED since 30 June 2021 and was further appointed as
a Member of the Audit Committee since 1 November 2021. Mr. Wong was an
INED from 1998 to 2012. He has extensive experience in the capital investment
market. Mr. WONG is a founding partner and a member of the investment
committee of Whiz Partners Asia Limited and he is the chairman of the board
of directors of Cornwall Medical Holding Company Limited. Mr. WONG
was an executive director of CDC Corporation which is a listed company in
the United States and an executive director of CDC Software Corporation
which is a public company in the United States. He was also an executive
director of China.com Inc. (now known as Sino Splendid Holdings Limited)
and an independent non-executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings)
Limited and Sinoref Holdings Limited (now known as Cybernaut International
Holdings Company Limited), all of which are listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. WONG holds a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Physics and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
Additionally, Mr. WONG served as the former Chairman of the Hong Kong
Venture Capital and Private Equity Association, the former Vice President of
The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association and the former Vice President
of the Hong Kong Auto Parts Industry Association. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Young Industrialists Council and the Honorary Advisor of the Hong
Kong Critical Components Manufacturers Association.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE S

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is principally
engaged in the textile and garment businesses, including the production
and sale of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group'’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 81 to 172 of this annual report. No interim dividend
was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2021. The board of Directors
(the “Board”) has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK16.00 cents per share of the Company (the “Share”) in respect of the Year
(2020: final dividend of HK7.00 cents per Share) to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names will appear on the register of
members of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on Thursday, 19 May
2022 and the retention of the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Friday, 6 May 2022, it is
expected that the final dividend and the special dividend will be paid on or
about Tuesday, 31 May 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the performance
for the Year and an indication of likely future development in the business of
the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement and the Management
Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group can be found throughout
this annual report, in particular the Risk Management and Internal Control
section under the Corporate Governance Report and the Possible Risks and
Uncertainties section of this Directors’ Report. The Group did not have any
significant event after the Year and up to the date of this annual report. An
analysis using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial
and Statistical Highlights and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws
and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate Governance Report.

In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and relationships
with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on the Group
are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Policies and
Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and the Stakeholders’
Engagement section in the MD&A of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Possible Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw materials,
in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials, which could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. Affected by the
China-United States trade war, textile industry related products have appeared
in the list of tariffs imposed by both parties. Therefore, the latest trend of trade
negotiations will determine the extent of the impact of tariff policies on the
textile and garment industry. The financial uncertainty may affect the global
textile and garment industry, which in turn may affect the business of major
retail brands and garment manufacturers, which are the principal customers of
the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group’s fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other pollutants
and are subject to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China and other countries where the Group’s production facilities are located.
Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with, environmental protection
laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur additional costs and
expenses.

In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience any power,
steam or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations may
be harmed.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying out credit
assessment and monitoring asset quality. The Group has established policies,
procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure, monitor, control and
report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced on an ongoing basis
to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and best practices in risk
management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to the Risk Management section under the MD&A
and note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during the
Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars
of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 75 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$157,373,000 to property, plant
and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the Group’s
manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the Year
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as
at 31 December 2021, calculated under Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted to
HK$1,222,564,000 (31 December 2020: HK$1,306,206,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. ZHAQO Yao (Chairman)

Mr. SUN Fuiji (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 1 November 2021)

Mr. TAO Yongming

Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew

Mr. ZHANG Zheng (appointed on 1 April 2021)

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)

Dr. YEN Gordon (Non-executive Vice Chairman)

Mr. LIU Xianfu (re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director on 1 November 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)
Mr. NG Kwok Tung

Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

Mr. WONG Kwong Chi (appointed on 30 June 2021)

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
Mr. ZHAO Yao, Dr. YEN Gordon, Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew and Mr. WONG
Kwong Chi will retire and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 December 2021, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 55 to 61 of this
annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFQO”)), which were required to be: (a) notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), (b) recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO (the “Register”), or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules” and the “Model Code”, respectively), were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares:
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Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew Beneficial owner Personal interest 2,508,000
lidisbeias EnEAA EPN:
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[y RIEEST (Note) (&%)
Note:  Mr. YAU Hang Tat Andrew is deemed to be interested in 380,000 Shares held by A3 . RIBFEHRIAEKA) > BIBELEWRAE

his spouse under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which
(@) had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
(b) were recorded in the Register, or (c) had been notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The 2011 Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20
January 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). Under the 2011 Scheme, the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, grant share options pursuant to the terms of the 2011
Scheme to eligible participants, including, among others, the directors, full-time
employees and part-time employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
2011 Scheme expired on 19 January 2021.

As at 31 December 2021 and date of this annual report, there was no
outstanding share option under the 2011 Scheme.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
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granted under the 2011 Scheme during the Year: EREERE EH)ER
Cancelled/ Outstanding
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed as at
as at during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant Exercise Price 1 January 2021 the Year the Year the Year 2021
20215 20215
1818 3 128318
R BHAMH 1158 W RATHE FRBRE ERETE  EBH/&% W RATE
Employees 19/01/2018 HK$1.10 - - - - -
B& 110 BT
Total = = = = =
By
Notes: Bt .

1. The share option would be fully vested after 12 months from the date of grant and
the exercisable period of share option was from 19/01/2019 to 18/01/2020.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant was HK$1.07.

Other particulars and movements of the 2011 Scheme during the Year are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

1. BEBRERNELBHES12EARE2YUE
B R B RETERRAE19/01/2019M1KE
18/01/2020°
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company)/entities had interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the register of interests of
the substantial shareholders required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial Shareholders’ Register”).

Long positions in the Shares:

Jl

FTERRKREMATET

R2021F128318 RBEARBEFEHF KPS
BRI FEIBRFMEEZFTERERM (EERK
REf) i FIALT (RRABESTHRST
BAERRIN S EBENRRNDAREEIRGS DES
BRRRES

REMNEaER !

Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HILE R
TERFRE 17 RaEtE FERNEE B RiAEAL
GOFCO Corporation (‘COFCO”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 465,262,000 465,262,000 37.98
FIEEEERAE (Tig) corporations EERER (Notes 1 and 2)
EREEN R (Hizt1k2)
Chinatex Corporation Limited Interest of controlled Corporate interest 465,262,000 465,262,000 37.98
(“Chinatex”) corporations HERER (Notes 1 and 2)
FEPHERERAR (R4  EREENER Wizt k2)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment Interest of a controlled Corporate interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Management Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui") ~ corporation HERER (Note 1)
THRELEEEER EREEN R (Hizt1)
BARAR (518
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Beneficial owner Personal interest 409,036,000 409,036,000 33.39
Co., Ltd. (*Yieldfull’) EnEEA EPN 0
HHREREEEERAR
(rBe))
Mr. SUN Weiting (“Mr. SUN’) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000
BEREE (RAE) corporations FEREG (Note 8) 211,966,000 17.30
EREEN R (Hz23)
Ms. CHEN Lingfen (‘Ms. CHEN”) Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000
B¥EHL LT (Met)) corporations HERER (Note 3) 211,966,000 17.30
EREEN R (Hz23)
Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(“Huafu Holding”) corporations HERER (Note 3)
EIRERBRAT EREENER (Hz23)

17

(rEZER)
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Name of Number of Approximate % of
Substantial Shareholders Capacity Nature of Interests Shares Held Total  the Issued Shares
HIEB BT
TERFRTE a4 aEtE BERNHYE By BRABERL
Huafu Fashion Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled Corporate interest 211,966,000 211,966,000 17.30
(‘Huafu Fashion”) corporations HEER (Note 3)
EIRHRNERRH BB R (Hz23)
(E=25000)
Mr. HA Chung Fong Beneficial owner Personal interest 113,814,948 113,814,948 9.29
(“Mr. HA") BB BARR
BEmERE (E%4E)
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui (‘Ms. TANG”")  Spouse’s interests Family interest 113,814,948 113,814,948 9.29
HEmat (5 t)) R B g (Note 4)
(Hrzta)
* For identification purpose only * (EEEF
Notes: Wt

1. Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui. Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each
of Jinhui, Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Yieldfull under the SFO.

2. As at 31 December 2021, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited (“Chinatex (H.K.)")
held 56,226,000 Shares as beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO.
Therefore, each of Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by Chinatex (H.K.) under the SFO.

3. Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”) held 211,966,000 Shares as
beneficial owner. Tin Shing is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Huafu HK Co. Limited
(“Huafu HK”). Huafu HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shenzhen Huafu Import
and Export Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Huafu”) and Shenzhen Huafu is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Huafu Fashion. Huafu Fashion is owned as to 34.27% by Huafu
Holding and Huafu Holding is owned as to 50% by each of Mr. SUN and Ms.
CHEN. Therefore, each of Huafu HK, Shenzhen Huafu, Huafu Fashion, Huafu
Holding, Mr. SUN and Ms. CHEN is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Tin Shing under the SFO.

4. Ms. TANG, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Mr.
HA under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of
the Company) who/entities which had any interests and short positions in
the Shares and underlying Shares, which were recorded in the Substantial
Shareholders’ Register.

1. REEFRBAERG BERREZ2BME
NEIWEATHZE2EWBRE > M4 8
APRNEENRBAE ALt iR haKkH
BEBERRIEEEREMFRMD 2 Bm o

2. IREJBSKBPERA R20214F128318 F
4 (ER) ERERQRE (Th4s (FB) ) FAE
56,226,0008% 1815 (fEABRHEAN) F4 (F
B) BRmz2ERBAR MP4HRAETRES
2EWBAB AL R RFIRES BWIRIE
HEESA (BB FERmZER-

3. BAEXMESZSERALAB (TXmI)FE
211,966,0000% 8818 (fEABREB AN o KA
EBEZHRLD ((BEBEZ) 22EHB
NE - EBAEZAFIHEZEHOERAT
(TRINER) 22BRBAE MFEINEZS
EIREUEENRBAT EFREREZE
BRIEE34.27 %R - T HE F IR A 4 5 4 KB
2D RIEFES0%ER c FIL ) IRIBEH RS
&F) > EREZ RYEZ EZEE FEZET
B BEERBLTHEEABEERRIFEN
BRAR BOMERR
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate and no such arrangements subsisted as at 31 December 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office. Such provision was
in force during the course of the Year and remained in force as of the date of
this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this
Directors’ Report below and note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company, or its holding companies, or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2021 or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the Year or during the period from 1 January 2022 to
the date of this Directors’ Report are available on the Company’s website at
www.fshl.com.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements, there
was no contract of significance (whether for the provision of services to the
Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling shareholders (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules)
(the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) in accordance with the Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The independent auditor
has issued a letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed by the Group in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing
Connected Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 43 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the Continuing
Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board; (b) were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where applicable; (c) had
been entered into in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the respective cap amounts in
respect of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

(i)  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Save for the transactions disclosed in note 43(c) to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the related party transactions disclosed in note 43 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a one-off connected transaction
or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements for all the one-off
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may
be) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor did
the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the
remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of each of the Directors is reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. None of the Directors or executives, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in dealing with his own
remuneration.

The Company has adopted the 2011 Scheme as an incentive to the Directors
and eligible employees, details of which are set out in the “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME” section above and note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the dividend policy, provided the Group is profitable and without
affecting the normal operations of the Group, the Company may consider to
declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose
a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia: () the general financial condition of the Group; (i) capital
and debt level of the Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for
business operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by the Group’s
lenders; (v) the general market conditions; (vi) the interests of the Shareholders;
and (vii) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business (apart from the Group’s
business) which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.
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UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in the information of
the Directors since the date of the 2021 interim report of the Company required
to be disclosed in this annual report are as follows:

— Dr. YEN Gordon was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 711),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
with effective from 15 September 2021.

—  Mr. ZHAO Yao ceased to act as the CEO but remained as an ED and the
Chairman of the Board with effective from 1 November 2021.

—  Mr. SUN Fuji was re-designated from NED to ED and was appointed as
the CEO with effect from 1 November 2021.

-  Mr. LIU Xianfu was re-designated from ED to NED with effect from
1 November 2021.

- Mr. NG Kwok Tung resigned as an independent non-executive director of
Palace Banquet Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1703), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effective from
27 January 2022.

- Mr. YING Wai resigned as an independent non-executive director of CHTC
Fong’s International Company Limited (Stock Code: 641), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, with effective
from 1 March 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the EDs’ service contracts) concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers was less than 30% of the total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest suppliers
during the Year.
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DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$524,469 (2020: HK$528,334).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 36 to 54 of this annual
report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as the share options granted, no equity-linked agreements were entered
into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares throughout the Year and the
period thereafter up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established the Audit Committee for the purposes of
reviewing and providing supervision over the Company’s financial reporting
process, internal controls and risk management. The Audit Committee
presently comprises three independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”),
and one of the INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated final results as well as the
systems of internal control and risk management of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a resolution
will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM for the Shareholders’ consideration
and approval to re-appoint BDO Limited as the independent auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao
Chairman

Hong Kong
18 March 2022
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

12021128310 ZEBREMENFBENT ¢

REYEFS

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
bt HESFH R& TEBEBENED
Unit A2 on 5/F,, & Unit A1 on 7/F, Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, AR E SEERAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BB R EEIBZE S 1829-395%
REBITHEKE
SIBA2E RTIBA1E
Office Units A3801, 083, 05, 06, 08-10 and 12, Medium-term land Office 100%
Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights WAZE
Shenzhen, the PRC FR A - 3t 55 PR A
FR B 2R 31 T 43 (& 8 R B 2 FE e A2 B R
& BIBARIEIE
A3801, 08, 05, 06, 08 10F112
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 1), 5, 6, 9 and 11, Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
Factory Nos. 3 (Phase 2), 1, 2, 12 and 13 (Phase 3),  use rights BRI AE
Factory Nos. 4, 14, 15, 16 and 17 (Phase 4) and ~ FREA L HI{FEF#
portion of bare land,
No 66-68, Danxia Road,
Xiangshan Industry Zone,
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
FEMIEEETRUBRTE(ER
£ E5 $566-685%
& RS (189) ~56 9K 115EmE
& A3 (288) ~ 1 2~ 12/ 135% (3HA) =~
P& N4~ 141516817 (480) B~
DUz BB 93 22 31,
Portion of Dormitory No. 3, Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights B/
Xiangshan Industry Zone, FR B o 3 65 A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
R TE B EMR LG T 2 EE FT 2 E66-685%
& AR D TES
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshan Road, High-tech Zone, use rights ]
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC FREA 4 it fsE PR A

MELER BT S SR & A L BRO5R55
BEA A B IEE R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZREN R S

|IBDO

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
set out on pages 81 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment of inventories
Refer to note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products is typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the Group
will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation of orders. The
Group maintains a sophisticated information technology system to keep track
of the aging and utilisation of inventories and materials regarded as wastage for
the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-aged,
the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$221,278,000 as at year end
by reference to estimated net realisable value of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because the
estimates of net realisable value and how materials are regarded as wastage on
which this impairment entailed a significant degree of management judgement.

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories which included:

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable value and discussing them
with management;

— challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

—  checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input data
used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of inventories
and estimate the net realisable value of those inventories; and

—  testing controls over recording impairment of inventories.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

B zHEnRS (&)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BIZHBEMERS (8

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information. We are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatements,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BIZHBEMERS (8

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Pik Wah

Practising Certificate Number P05325

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FeiEmAEMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{E2021F12831H L FE

2021 2020
Notes i1zt HK$’000 F3# T HK$'000 T

Revenue =f 3 6 6,751,277 4,943,230
Cost of sales THEMRAE (5,871,738) (4,332,098)
Gross profit EF 879,539 611,132
Other revenue HUW A 86,483 69,688
Other gains and losses Hthzm & 518 (14,406) (27,313
Distribution and selling expenses DiEMIEHEER (141,310) (107,256)
Administrative expenses THER (458,436) (406,800)
Finance costs =27 7 (15,225) (19,562)
Share of profit of an associate FEh—EHE AT 2 BF 17 805 2,256
Profit before income tax expense PREFSIRSZ KA & F 337,450 122,145
Income tax expense Fri8fisz 8 (67,192) (20,554)
Profit for the year =EERA 9 270,258 101,591
Profit for the year attributable to: R FEERF
Owners of the Company PN/NSIEZZS N 241,334 85,706
Non-controlling interests JEVER R = 28,924 15,885
270,258 101,591
HK cents #l HK cents &1l
Earnings per share sREY
- Basic —Ex 12 19.7 7.0

— Diluted —#E 12 19.7 7.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)

mARmRHEMEERER (@)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #2021 12831H It F E

2021 2020
HK$000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET
Profit for the year EEERT 270,258 101,591
Other comprehensive Hth2mEu =
income, net of tax (&R0 PR IE)
Item that may be reclassified HETREEHIE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEEZIER
Exchange differences arising on MBERIINEREE S
translation of foreign operations fERZ=EA 13,456 21,035
Other comprehensive income EEEHM2ERE
for the year 13,456 21,035
Total comprehensive income sEEZEKSEE
for the year 283,714 122,626
Total comprehensive income EhEEEEEEREEE !
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBJHEB A 251,418 103,004
Non-controlling interests R e 32,296 19,622
283,714 122,626
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
REMBIRRR

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021 ?2021412H831H

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 128318
2021 2020
Notes [f1z# HK$'000 F#E7x  HK$'000 FET
Non-current assets FERHEE
Investment properties LB 13 83,195 72,524
Property, plant and equipment LY ERN YL 14 1,336,105 1,341,494
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 196,861 217,398
Other intangible assets Hthm&E 16 6,030 9,045
Deposit paid for purchase BB REREN
of plant and equipment Bffiee 16,808 12,506
Interest in an associate R—EBE A B2 m 17 23,598 22,793
Deferred tax assets IEIEMIBEE E 18 65,914 71,062
1,728,511 1,746,822
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 1,717,220 1,218,169
Trade and bills receivables EEEL e e 20 1,270,335 1,027,493
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIEBE e &
other receivables HAth e RIR 21 195,848 166,967
Tax recoverable CILEE R 7,300 3,342
Restricted bank deposits ZIREERITIER 22 4,197 7,351
Short-term bank deposits FHAIRITIE 23 57,846 229,313
Bank balances and cash IRITAER IR E 23 767,133 1,026,254
4,019,879 3,678,889
Current liabilities B R=N
Trade and bills payables EEREBEMARIE 24 956,450 964,731
Other payables and accruals EMENMHIELESTER 25 322,984 280,312
Contract liabilities =L 26 32,701 22,014
Lease liabilities — current portion HEaR—REHBo 27 24,641 31,399
Amounts due to non-controlling R IEERG PR EE T I8
shareholders 28 62,834 64,525
Amount due to an associate N —R SN T I8 28 6,443 5,861
Deferred income — current portion IRIEUR A — B ER o 29 5,457 3,701
Tax payable FEATIRIE 32,247 17,487
Bank borrowings — due within one year RITEE——ERNTE 30 327,342 229,606
1,771,099 1,619,636
Net current assets MENEERE 2,248,780 2,059,253
Total assets less current liabilities BEEEBERRBERE 3,977,291 3,806,075
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

HREMBIRRR (@

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021?2021 12H831H

At 31 December

At 31 December

12831 12831H
2021 2020
Notes H1aE HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred income — non-current portion IEIE A —FERENEB 29 83,147 66,311
Bank borrowings — due after one year ﬁEﬁTﬁ&——fﬁfﬁﬁJﬁﬂ 30 - 7,142
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HEas-—IEREH S 27 130,330 146,037
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEEE 18 4,716 6,796
218,193 226,286
Net assets BEEFE 3,759,098 3,579,789
Capital and reserves BXRKR#E
Share capital &N 31 889,810 889,810
Reserves G 2,670,428 2,504,762
Equity attributable to owners RABEB AELER
of the Company 3,560,238 3,394,572
Non-controlling interests JEER S 32 198,860 185,217
Total equity EmEE 3,759,098 3,579,789
The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 172 were approved H$81E172BM S M FHRKBH20224E3818
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2022 and are ZESER WH T ESK

signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO Yao
fiizhd
Director

EFE

% S
PSS

HHEFERBR

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew

ERiEE
Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n\TD*E \@gﬁ

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #{E2021F12831H L FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG LN
Share Non-
Share Translation options  Statutory  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve  reserves - earnings Total interests equity
kE EREE BREGE ATHE  RERA ME JERES  ESAE
HK$000  HKSO00  HKS f000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKSO000  HKS f000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
()
t 1 January 2020 20201818 889,810 (53,224) 607 100,118 2,482,150 3,419,461 165,596 3,585,056
Exchange differences arising on BWEBNEREL L
tranglation of foreign operations ERELH - 17,298 - - - 17,298 3,737 21,085
Profit for the year BEERT - - - - 85706 85706 15885 101,591
Total comprehensive income for the year EEE2E WG EE - 17,298 - - 85,706 108,004 19622 122,626
Dividend recognised as distribution BRIADRZRE - - = - (127,893 (127,899 - (127,893)
Transfer from retained earnings HAGRAAREATHE
to statutory reserves - - - 5,182 (5,182) - - -
Transfer from share options reserve HEREHEERRE
to retained earnings EER - - (607) - 607 - - -
At 31 December 2020 120208128318 889,810 (35,926) - 105,300 2,435,388 3,394,572 185,217 3,579,789
Exchange differences arising on MERNEREEL
translation of foreign operations ERER - 10,084 - - - 10,084 3,372 13,456
Profit for the year REERA - - - - 241,334 241,334 28924 270,258
Total comprehensive income for the year 2EE2ENHEE - 10084 - - 241,334 251418 32296 283,714
Dividend recognised as distribution ERZADRZIRE - - - - (85752)  (85,752)  (18,653)  (104,405)
Transfer from retained earnings HRGFRARREATHE
to statutory reserves - - - 4,270 (4,270) - - -
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 889,810 (25,842) - 109,570 2,586,700 3,560,238 198,860 3,759,098

Mfat - IRBAEREPEARAEME (THE)) EZRRER

Note:In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations in the People’s Republic

of China (the “PRC”) and Articles of Association of the company incorporated in
the PRC now comprising the Group, i.e. the PRC Operational Entity, it is required
to appropriate 10% of the annual net profits of the PRC Operational Entity, after
offsetting any prior years’ losses as determined under the PRC accounting
standards, to the statutory reserve fund before distributing any net profit. When
the balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of the registered capital
of the PRC Operational Entity, any further appropriation is at the discretion of
shareholders. The statutory reserve fund can be used to offset prior years’ losses,
if any, and may be capitalised as capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve fund after such issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau Special
Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered under private limited liability

RIREAER R PEF MR ILA AT BIH
EREER) NESEEMARE  RIKHR
BREEHENETNENBEEENER
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EREN RS EEREMERRNS0% E[
E—PHERDBERRNBRE EAERES
DARBHBTFEENEGE W) » La&EA
1t7%ﬁle§"Iﬁﬁ"ﬁﬁﬁé’fﬁ%}f?ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁE’\JE%"F
EER NS DI E A8926% ©

RBRPINS BT B & B A BB 37 71 » HOIE P
MIREF MR AR ABRADHM B AR A

company by quotas in Macau are required to transfer part of their profits of each RERZE AR R D5 25%89 8B 93 it F 85 43
accounting period of not less than 25% to statutory reserves, until the amount EAEME BEEEIEEREREA—FNE
reaches half of the respective share capital. K5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mARERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 #2021 12831H It F E

2021 2020
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$000 FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING EEBEBMENRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax expense PRETEMZ A& F] 337,450 122,145
Adjustments for: HE
Amortisation of deferred income IRIEUT A 2 3 (3,105) (1,643)
Amortisation of other intangible assets HtEEE 2 EiE 3,015 3,015
COVID-19-related rent concessions COVID-1918RAFE &R = - (2,082)
Depreciation of investment properties KEMEITE 4,991 3,735
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 28,881 30,527
Depreciation and impairment of property, ME -HENREBEZINERRE
plant and equipment 165,475 204,727
Finance costs RRE A4S 15,225 19,562
Interest income AISYYON (7,790) (7,574)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HEMEE ERRRES
plant and equipment 518 61 11,286
Provision for impairment loss recognised EEKRERBERWFIEZRBEERK
on trade and bills receivables, net B ERRE 11,343 13,966
Provision for impairment loss recognised HihEWEIE Z BB EE
on other receivables, net HEERFE 6,115 =
Share of profit of an associate FEL—EEE AB 2B (805) (2,256)
Operating profit before working capital EEETEHFIZEERY
changes 560,856 395,408
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE2Z (gm R (493,830) 42,862
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables % # KR ZEEWHIE > (0 R (245,931) 120,120
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FENRIE e R EMEWRIEZ
other receivables A0 (29,342) (39,043)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables =¥ &R ZEELGRIEZ GB) 10 (24,519) 112,585
Increase in other payables and accruals HE R IB R B st & A 2 180 42,656 13,740
Increase in contract liabilities BHBEZEM 10,687 6,253
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to an associate X — B & A T ZIB 2 120, GAi/L) 582 (1,318)
Increase in deferred income IEIEUR A 2 IE 0 21,697 14,288
Cash (used in)/generated from operations i (FfH) /Fr8Z RS (157,144) 664,895
Hong Kong profits tax paid BN EBHER (5,754) (21,429)
Overseas tax paid BEIINRIE (47,493) (42,163)
NET CASH (USED IN)/FROM OPERATING SEEBE FrA) FRSNRERE
ACTIVITIES (210,391) 601,303
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
HARERER @
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # E20214 128318 L £

2021 2020
Notes Kzt HK$°000 T %71 HK$'000 F BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

REBEEMSHRERE

Interest received BUFHIE 8,250 7,057
Additions of investment properties REREYE 13 (13,303) (17,313)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE KSR B

plant and equipment FTigsRIE 3,924 4,838
Deposit paid for purchase of property,  BEEY) ¥ 1423 K2 HE

plant and equipment HNENZE (4,302) -
Purchases of property, plant BEYE - BBARE

and equipment 14 (157,373) (113,091)
Decrease in restricted bank deposits ZPREIRITEROR L 3,154 704
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank  REEAR=EH U R

deposits with original maturity OHRRITERR

over three months B () 10,884 (27,433)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING KREEBMANREFE

ACTIVITIES (148,766) (145,238)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

New bank borrowings raised

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of principal portion of

MEBEEFRSNRERE

MEEZIRTTEE 39 1,233,089 555,833
BERTEE 39 (1,142,748) (541,961)
BEHEaRZEAEHD

the lease liabilities 39 (34,073) (23,026)
Repayment of interest portion of the BEHEEaEZNEED

lease liabilities 39 (8,555) (8,930)
Repayment of amounts due to BEXIEERKERRIE

non-controlling shareholders 39 (1,691) (15,575)
Interest paid BNFE 39 (6,399) (9,984)
Dividends paid to non- ENREFIFZERRKRER

controlling shareholders (18,653) S
Dividends paid BERE (85,752) (127,893)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING MEEEFMANRERE

ACTIVITIES

(64,782) (171,536)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
ReRERER @
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 # E20214 125310 LL £

2021 2020
HK$’000 F#&T HK$'000 FE71

NET(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN RERERRESEEDN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GRiZL) N3 E (423,939) 284,529
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B EF ERAR

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HERkERREIER 1,228,134 937,353
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE EXEHHEERER

CHANGES ON CASH AND HEEANTE

CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,235 6,252
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREEEKERNRE

AT THE END OF THE YEAR RERREIER 808,430 1,228,134
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HR&EEFERELEREEN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: PAR I
Short-term bank deposits ERERIRTTERR 57,846 229,313
Bank balances and cash RITERAIRE 767,133 1,026,254
Cash and cash equivalents in the FEMBRRERANIRE

consolidated statement of RERIREEB

financial position 824,979 1,255,567
Less: Short-term bank deposits with B REHRE=EA MU M

original maturity over three months RHRIRITERR (16,549) (27,433)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FERENERANRER

consolidated statement of cash flows ZRIRELIER 808,430 1,228,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
issued shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to
the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull Investments
Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is COFCO Corporation, a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision and administration of, and is beneficially owned
by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2°

Amendments to HKFRS 16

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions'

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 20212

2021 Amendments to
HKFRS 16

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material impact on the Group’s
results and financial position for the current or prior period. The Group has
not early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period except for the 2021 amendments to HKFRS 16.
Impact on the application of this amended HKFRS is summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (continued)
Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical expedient to lessees in
accounting for rent concessions arising as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic,
by including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS 16 that permits entities
to elect not to account for rent concessions as modifications. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or
before 30 June 2021; and

(c) there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be accounted for in
accordance with this practical expedient, which means the lessee does
not need to assess whether the rent concession meets the definition of
lease modification. Lessees shall apply other requirements of HKFRS 16 in
accounting for the rent concession.

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications would have resulted
in the Group remeasuring the lease liability to reflect the revised consideration
using a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change in the lease liability
recorded against the right-of-use asset. By applying the practical expedient,
the Group is not required to determine a revised discount rate and the effect of
the change in the lease liability is reflected in profit or loss in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the rent concession occurs.

2021 Amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

The amendment extends the practical expedient available to lessees in
accounting for COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year. The reduction
in lease payments could only affect payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021 is extended to 30 June 2022. The amendment is effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021, with earlier
application permitted.

The Group has elected to early adopt the above amendments and apply
the practical expedient for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has applied the
amendment retrospectively, and has not restated prior period figure. As the
rent concessions arose during the year ended 31 December 2020, there is no
retrospective adjustment to opening balance of retained earnings at 1 January

2021 on initial application of the amendment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective

The following amendments to HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to apply
these changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current and Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause®

Disclosures of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Proceeds before Intended Use!

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract’

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendment to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs'

Amendment to HKFRS 9, Financial
Instruments’

Amendment to illustrative examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases!

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

e Effective for business combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after the
beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

< Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.

4 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or contribution of assets

occurring in annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-
current is based on rights that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by expectations about whether
an entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with at the end of the reporting
period. The amendments also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The revision to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the interpretation to align
with the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and does not
change the existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments and revision in the future will have an impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosures
of Accounting Policies

The amendments to HKAS 1 require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant accounting policies.
The amendments to HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish changes in
accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. That distinction is
important because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively
only to future transactions and other future events, but changes in accounting
policies are generally also applied retrospectively to past transactions and other
past events.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments clarify whether the initial recognition exemption applies
to certain transactions that often result in both an asset and a liability being
recognised simultaneously. Such instances might include the initial recognition
of leases from the perspective of a lessee or asset retirement obligations
(AROs)/decommissioning liabilities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, are recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will likely have an impact on the Group’s accounting policies
in respect of the construction of assets, as certain proceeds of selling items
produced whilst bringing assets under construction are currently deducted
from the cost of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfiling” a contract comprises the
‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
can either be incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (e.g. direct labour and
materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfiling contracts
(e.g. the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and
equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the impact that the
application of the amendments will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the amendments will likely have an impact on the Group’s accounting policies
in respect of the determination of when contracts are onerous, and the
measurement of provision for onerous contracts recognised.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to the revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that, for obligations within
the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at
the acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of past events. For a
levy that would be within the scope of HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21, Levies, the
acquirer applies HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by the acquisition
date. The amendments also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction with an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using the
equity method, any gains or losses resulting from the loss of control of a
subsidiary that does not contain a business are recognised in the profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the remeasurement of
retained interest in any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a
joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of these
amendments may have an impact on the consolidated financial statements in
future periods should such transaction arise.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, Amendment to
HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of HKFRSs

The annual improvements permit a subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a)
of HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to HKFRSs.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, Amendment to
HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments

The annual improvements amend a number of standards, including HKFRS 9,
Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received between the entity and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle, Amendment to
illustrative examples accompanying HKFRS 16, Leases

The annual improvements amend a number of standards, including HKFRS
16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments in the future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRS”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value.
The Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless they are
incurred in issuing equity instruments in which case the costs are deducted
from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date. All other
subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between () the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were
disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise control.
The Company controls an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the associates’ net assets
except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests
in the associate. The investor's share in the associate’s profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the asset
transferred, they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s share of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in an associate has been impaired, the carrying
amount of the investment is tested for impairment in the same way as other
non-financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged so
as to write off the cost of investment properties net of expected residual value
over the estimated useful live using straight-line method. The useful life, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and the
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation net of
expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are
as follows:

Freehold land Nil

Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 20 — 50 years or period of the
lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 — 10 years

Plant and machinery 5-10 years

Motor vehicles 3 /s -5 years

Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation. Capitalisation of these costs
ceases and the construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate asset
category when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its intended use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its carrying
amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing
The Group as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value
assets and leases for which at the commencement date have a lease term of
less than 12 months. The lease payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset
The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would comprise:

(i)  the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability (see below for
the accounting policy to account for lease liability);

(i) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received;

(iiy any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce
inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use asset (continued)

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use assets at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. Right-of-use assets that meet the definition of
leasehold land and buildings held for own use are carried at cost model.

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings which are held for own
use under HKAS 16 and are carried at cost model. Other than the above right-
of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises its judgement and determines that it is
a separate class of assets apart from the leasehold land and buildings which is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use assets arising from the properties
under tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the lease payments that
are not paid at the date of commencement of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be
readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses
the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the
lease term that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments:

(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable;

(i) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

(i) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees;

(iv) the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

(v) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability
by:

(i)  increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modification, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease (because, for
example, it re-assesses the probability of a lessee extension or termination
option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to
reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly
revised when the variable element of future lease payments dependent on a
rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-
use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over the remaining
(revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted
to zero, any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor,
if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for
an amount commensurate with the standalone price for the additional rights-
of-use obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate lease, in all
other cases, where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether
that is an extension to the lease term, or one or more additional assets being
leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on
the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same
amount. With the exception to which the practical expedient for COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions applies (see note 2(a)), if the renegotiation results
in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease
liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any difference recognised in profit or
loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term,
with the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f) Leasing (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment properties to a number of tenants.
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that was not part
of the original terms and conditions of the lease are accounted for as lease
modifications. The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising the
remaining lease payments as income on a either a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the remaining lease term.

(g) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as

follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any

accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in

profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 5 — 10 years or period of
the contract term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
(i) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by comparing their
carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note 4(m)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount; however,
the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of its recoverable
amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All reversals are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
immediately.

() Financial instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety
when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Financial assets at amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gains or losses on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss (“ECL”) on
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on either of the following bases: (1)
12-month ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation
to the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other financial assets of the Group, the ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 60 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when: (1) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (2)
the financial asset is more than 180 days past due.
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e abreach of contract, such as a default or being past due;

e the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that the
Group would not consider otherwise; or

° it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through
a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”), for
which the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in “FVTOCI reserve (recycling)”.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating
that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of
the financial asset. Interest income on non credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities
The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for which

the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders/an associate and bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the
future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for derecognition
in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash
which are not restricted as to use.

(k) Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related costs for
which the grants are intended to compensate. Government grants related to
depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.

() Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required,
or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

° investment properties;

° property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets;

° other intangible assets; and

e interest in an associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets) (continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

(n) Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the contract,
control of the goods or services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

e provides all of the benefits received and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

e  creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Revenue recognition (continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services
to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

(i) Production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments

Customers obtain control of the products when the goods are delivered to and
have been accepted. Revenue is thus recognised upon when the customers
accepted the products. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Invoices are usually payable within 60 days.

Some of the Group’s contracts with customers from the sale of product
provides customers a right of return (a right to exchange another product).
These rights of return do not allow the returned goods to be refund in
cash. The right of return gives rise to variable consideration. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until the
associated uncertainty is subsequently resolved. The application of the
constraint on variable consideration increases the amount of revenue that will
be deferred.

(i) Other revenue
Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o) Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in exchange
for goods that the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS
9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer goods to a
customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises revenue before
being unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the payment terms set
out in the contract. Contract assets are assessed for ECL in accordance with
the policy set out in note 4(i)(ii) and are reclassified to receivables when the right
to the consideration has become unconditional.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. A contract liability would
also be recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised.

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

(g) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted for
items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes and is

calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for goodwill
and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting nor
taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate tax
rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment property
is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the
presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all
the economic benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also recognised
directly in equity.

(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r) Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the
translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of reporting period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial statements
on the translation of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s
net investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.

(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than termination
benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in the year when the
employees render the related service.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iij) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

®

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of
share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credited to share capital. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

(u) Related parties

(@

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Group
if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)
(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in
(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may
be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such as technical or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production,
or from a change in the market demand for the product or service output of the
asset expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care
and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset.
The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the
Group with similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation
is made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment are difference from previous estimation. Useful
lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group recognises lifetime ECLs for trade and bills receivables, using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date. The amount of the impairment loss
based on ECL model is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are
less than expected, or being revised downward due to changes in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss may arise.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)

The economic downturn and uncertainties that have arisen as a result of
COVID-19 pandemic have made these estimates more judgemental, which
the Group has taken into account in its determination of applicable ECLs
attributable to trade and bills receivables arising from sales to customers
on credit term, including the incorporation of forward-looking information to
supplement historical credit loss rate. Further information on the impairment
assessment on trade and bills receivables is provided in note 38(b).

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The Group
regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving and
obsolete merchandise. The Group makes allowance for slow-moving and
obsolete items through management’s estimation of the net realisable value
for such obsolete and slow-moving items based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions, including the consideration of potential
impacts on the subsequent sales orders and demand of its products resulting
from the COVID-19 pandemic. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the Group
estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for inventories.
If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower than its carrying
amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be required.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), i.e. the chief operating
decision maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others, i.e.
representing other geographical locations mainly Bangladesh, Vietnam,
Singapore and Macau. All of these geographical areas are operating segments

except “Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year.
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2021 021 Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others Segmenttotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
9 g Al &H B2+ S| B HftiE P Hi ke
HKS000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$'000
AT T T AT 7T T T AT A7 T T
Revenue £
External sales HiHE 798,421 2,146,338 391,790 396,295 1,077,315 536,395 64,156 1,340,567 6,751,277 - 6,751,217
Iterseqment seles rote pEERE () 3548512 1,897,481 . = 349085 = . 154940 5050018  (5950018) -
Tota seqent ience HEELELE 4603 40819 BT 3625 146400 RS 64166 1498507 12701295 (560018 675H2M
Resus £
Segment profi NERF 84,571 214,139 42,201 42,484 82,555 53,448 6,894 140,739 667,031
Interest income FISHA 7,190
Unallocated income FAERA 4,001
Depreciation, amortisation and e ERRAERR
impairment loss (173,481)
Other unallocated expenses EthADETH (153,561)
Finance costs HENE (15,229)
Share of proft of an associate Ef— AR 2 BR 805
Profit before income tax expense BESRE HARH 337,450
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segments for the year. (continued)

6. EXERISFEN (B
UTRT-EERRFERERERBEERT
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2020 2000F Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea S Lanka America Europe Others ~ Segmenttotal ~ Eliminations  Consolidated
&4 PE =} | ELl] LERRS S| | Rt PELE Hi 28
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEr FéEr FA1 FEr FEr FéEn FAn FEr TEr Fén FAr
Revenue 2B
External sales HIMEE 608,561 1,602,187 352,448 398678 787,851 26,977 57,174 980354 4943230 - 430
Inter-segment sales (rotg) DERHE (D) 2,581,795 1,216,163 - - 200970 - - 57,461 4,056,389 4,056,389 -
Total segment revenue NEEEBIE 3,190,356 2,818,350 362,448 398,678 938,821 205977 57,174 1,037,815 8,999,619 4,056,389) 4943230
Results 4
Segment profit DERH 58,644 175,986 37,969 42,891 65,244 7810 6,163 103,929 498,696
Interest income HEMA 7574
Unallocated income RARMA 1635
Depreciation, amortisation and nE ERRAERL
impairment loss [211,477)
Other unallocated expenses Rtk AELH (156,077)
Finance costs EEGES (19,562)
Share of profit of an associate Ef—BEBEAR 2B 2,256
Profit before income tax expense RAERZ AR 122,145

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price by reference to the prevailing market

rates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit represents
the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central administration
costs and other expenses (including non-production related employee benefits
expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.), depreciation and
amortisation of investment properties, property, plant and equipment and
other intangible assets, interest income, impairment loss and loss on disposal/
written-off of property, plant and equipment, finance costs, share of profit of
an associate, etc. This is the measure reported to the Board for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis on segment
assets and liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the Board.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit:
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6. EXFRAFEN (B
Hitt 3 EE R
EQEHESERNZSHE

Hong Kong  The PRC Taiwan Korea  Srilanka  America Europe Others Consolidated
&4 HE = BE  HEEE eS| Bl HithE Ra
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
2021 20215
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EEREREWTIEZ
recognised on trade and REBRX (@) /
bills receivables, net 3 E 1,836 4,23 (73) 109 3,010 912 2 1,324 11,343
2020 20205
Impairment loss (reversed)/ SERERERTEZ
recognised on trade and HERL @F) /
bills receivables, net BREE 3,868 6,794 643 124 2,187 (18) 7 361 13,966
Geographical information g &

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-current

assets (note) at the end of the reporting period:

REBESHE xEBZIFRBEE (WD) @ith
BUBZ DM

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

The PRC =2 1,509,304 1,509,710
Hong Kong 58 20,456 25,194
Sri Lanka R 130,317 137,429
Others HitithE 2,520 3,427
1,662,597 1,675,760

Note:Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets.

et JERBEETNBEEEREEE -
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by products and

6. EXERISFEN (B

EEENY

REBREEDBARBEIDNELSREA

timing of revenue recognition are as follows: 2HWT
2021 2020
HK$000 F#&7  HK$'000 FET
Revenue from contracts with customers EHHAMEHREER F15588EE RN
within the scope of HKFRS 15: EFRERWA :
Production and sales of dyed fabrics S MIHE BHE LAY
and yarns 5,917,779 4,322,991
Production and sales of garments BU3E M IHE K 833,498 620,239
6,751,277 4,943,230
Timing of revenue recognition: FERR U A RYBFRT -
At a point in time AR, 6,751,277 4,943,230
Transferred over time PE RS R e S = -
6,751,277 4,943,230

The following table provides information about trade and bills receivables and
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

THREHAMEEREBEBEREBEURKREE

RERMEHNERER-

At 31 December

At 31 December

128318 »12831H

2021 2020

HK$000 F#&7x  HK$'000 FET

Trade and bills receivables (note 20) EEREREWRIE (17220) 1,270,335 1,027,493

Contract liabilities (note 26) aHNaE Hzoe) 32,701 22,014
Information about major customers FREXERERZEN

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

HE2021F12831H &%2020F12831H L&
E>RKEBENERL ZW AR E B = E48E515

HEHBIE10%
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31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. MERE
2021 2020
HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET
Finance costs on: BB A
Bank borrowings RITEE 6,670 10,632
Lease liabilities HEaE 8,555 8,930
15,225 19,562
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8. FrfsMixi
2021 2020
HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 F&ET
Current tax: BEERIE
Hong Kong 58 23,534 9,969
The PRC | 28,324 22,203
Other jurisdictions HhsaMa 13,202 8,806
65,060 40,978
(Over)/under provision in prior years: BEFE BRERG BERR
Hong Kong 58 358 (34)
The PRC FE (812) (384)
Other jurisdictions HhsaMa (558) 1,601
(1,012) 1,183
64,048 42,161
Deferred tax (note 18): IRIERRIE (f15E18) -
Hong Kong HE (2,006) (3,117)
The PRC s 8,123 (15,711)
Other jurisdictions Hhs) s (2,973) (2,779)
3,144 (21,607)
67,192 20,554

Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of one subsidiary of the Company, which is
a qualifying corporation, is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits
at 16.5%. The profits of other group entities not entitled to the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at 16.5%.

RIEEEFSRMEG > A2 —AEE
R B AT RIE2,000,0008 T EER
BANEA8.25% Mz NHNERRKEBFAA
16.5% K EZFFERMAF N EMEREZEE
2 BAR I EIZRTRZE16.5%F R
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8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries
is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of Sri
Lanka subsidiary is 14%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the
respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before income

tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as follows:

8. FreMixit (&

REREEEMRFRE (REMRB/RE) kb
EFRBABRIRY > TREMBARDZMES
25%-°

REFERFEBZZRRER HERFH
BRBZMER14%

HthElitE 2 RBEUERSBRZEE
ISP S

BREIER IR s IB M sE180

REERGEERERAMEE WS RAIRNIES
HEBRFI IS AT B AR BRI T

2021 2020
HK$'000 F#&7x  HK$'000 F#ET
Profit before income tax expense FRETISI ST HATRF 337,450 122,145
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits BERBAMEBERRER Z BMRE
or losses in the jurisdiction concerned STEMRIE 63,744 19,946
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERNENRNREEE
for tax purpose 7,576 2,665
Tax effect of income not taxable WA B BRI
for tax purpose (3,888) (2,846)
Over provision in prior years BT EBRERE (1,012) (265)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MIBEIBRWERNRE S 233 3,499
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised EIEIEFR B R FERAIIR TS 52 & 2,145 113
Utilisation of tax losses previously A B REERINIRIERE
not recognised (2,185) (62)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously ERBERMERNEMIRELERIE
not recognised (30) (2,077)
Deferred tax provided on withholding tax FLIBINHT B A B FEHI R VE RV R EFR I8
on overseas subsidiaries BiE 861 317
Income tax on concessionary rate REBEREFENMER (237) (738)
Others Hh (15) 2
Tax charge for the year EEERIESLH 67,192 20,554

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year increased which is
caused by changes in profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in respective

countries they are operating.

EEEMRFHBRAMRILATARAERZ
MBARNKEECEMAESE BT EE
PEL o

28
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 9. BEEEZRF

2021 2020
HK$’000 Tz HK$'000 T #7T

Profit for the year has been arrived at EEERABIR GtA) :
after charging/(crediting):

Amortisation of deferred income (note J)' IRIEUR A 2 38 (B &Li) (3,105) (1,643)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hihmp & E 2 #iH (Wati6)°

(note 16)° 3,015 3,015
Auditors’ remuneration TZ B EM = B

- BDO Limited — BRI EERGMEBAERAT 2,961 2,913

- Other auditors —H Mz Em 51 47
Cost of sales (note i) tHE R A (W a2i) 5,871,738 4,332,098
Depreciation of investment properties (note 13) %% &Y% > & (Kf:#13) 4,991 3,735
Depreciation and impairment of property, VI B REREZITERBIE

plant and equipment (note 14) (Htat14) 165,475 204,727
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) fEREEEZITE Hzt15) 28,881 30,527
Employee costs (including directors’ BEMA (BIFERHIFE102

emoluments set out in note 10) EEMD) 982,519 813,296
Government grants (note i)’ BT #a A (i a2iii) (7,077) (18,417)
Interest income’ FEW A (7,790) (7,574)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE BT WIS R E

plant and equipment? ZE5182 61 11,286
Net exchange (gains)/losses? ER (Wm) EiRRE? (3,113) 2,218
Net rental income from investment properties' R &Y% 2 HE W AFE' (13,574) (11,772
Provision for impairment loss recognised SENERERIEZ HEBKEE

on trade and bills receivables, net? MEsR R E? 11,343 13,966
Provision for impairment loss recognised on ~ EfthfEIRIE >

other receivables, net? BEBKREEERZE 6,115 -
COVID-19-related rent concessions! COVID-1918RAFE & R %! - (2,082)
Research and development costs 2l A 54,219 35,197
1 Included in other revenue L BEETHMKTAR
2 Included in other gains and losses g BRETEMK G REERN
8 Included in administrative expenses g BREETBREAR
Notes: Wizt
()  Amortisation of deferred income mainly represents grants received from the PRC ()  #BIEUWR A =~ #4853 B 5 WEUAR B th B & 3 BUS

local government authority as subsidies to the Group for acquiring property, plant WERTFAEEREBAYE HBAREZ
and equipment for business development and energy saving scheme implemented AL ZEBA AR ERERE KD EE I

by the PRC local government. IR ATHVERSE ST & o
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9.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

Cost of sales includes HK$1,672,851,000 (2020: HK$1,377,761,000) of staff
costs, depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation
of right-of-use assets, subcontracting fee, recognition/(reversal) of write-down
of inventories and other manufacturing overheads. Staff costs, depreciation and
impairment of property, plant and equipment and depreciation of right-of-use
assets are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of
these types of expenses.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, government grants included grants of
HK$7,077,000 (2020: HK$9,064,000) received from the PRC local government
authority as subsidies to the Group for incentive of foreign trade and steady growth
of business and there were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group applied for government support
programs introduced in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Included in profit or
loss was HK$9,353,000 of government grants obtained relating to supporting the
payroll of the Group’s employees from the Hong Kong Government and the Macau
Government. The Group elected to present this government grant separately,
rather than reducing the related expense. The Group had to commit to spending
the assistance on payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee head count
below prescribed levels for a specified period of time. The Group did not have any
unfulfilled obligations relating to this program. No such government grants were
obtained for the year ended 31 December 2021.

9.

EEEEN (B

Hitat o ()

(i)

(i

HEM A B1E1,672,851,000 7T (20204 :
1,377,761,000870) ZE TR A ¥ B &
REWERAE FAREERE - NMIER-
WEETFERER, (0 REMEEER -8 TM
Y E R R EITERREN R ERAEE
ENETEERELXMEESEMS > AR
HEEEPY o

BE2021F12831HEFE BF#EEE
WEETEE BT EEREIEARER
RN E R BRI R 2 /057,077,000 T

(20204 : 9,064,000 7T) * M 3% 5 BT /1 BARY
185 PR R PR 41 o

HZE2020F12831HILEE  AEBERFREY
COVID-19ZEMEIAZ AL Ft 8 o s 5
FEESHREZ TEMWEE BBUT KRB
BT 2 BT 45 859,353,00058 7o 5T AJ8 35 o A
EREEREYZBFMEL - IR iEREE
Yo REBBABKHEEANRITIERS B
RETHERRTEE T AR LD ZERR
TERIKF o  REBMFBE AT 8 L ET A B KRBT
ZEFE-HE2021FE12831H LEEE » B HEEE
T 8 A o



10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation)

are as follows:

EEELE(EE)HRRT 2021FF#K

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

10. EXREEMEEH

(a) EEME

RIBEE R A DR (55622F) 383K kAT (I
BESFMEER RP (55622G%) (GRA) MKE
WESRWEZWT -

NG YAU WONG
ZHAO YEN Kwok  William YING Hang Tat, LIU TAO SUN  Kwong ZHANG
2021 20215 Yao  Gordon Tung LAM Wei Andrew  Xianfu, Yongming Fuji Chi Zheng Total
BE BEE GER HER e HMEE HEE  BkE  RELE IR RIE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000
Fér FEr FEr TErn TEn TFEx  FEr  FEx  FEr  FEr  FET  FEn
(note j) (note i) (note i)
(i) (isi) — (Wiatii)
Fees ik - 200 250 200 200 - - - - 101 - 951
Other emoluments Hitie
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 3,304 - - - - 2,567 - - 451 - - 6,322
Discretionary bonuses* HiERe 1,525 - - - - 1,100 - - 208 - - 2,833
Retirement benefits RINERFEIER
scheme contribution 18 - - - - 165 - - 3 - - 186
4,847 200 250 200 200 3,832 - - 662 101 - 10,292
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation)
are as follows: (continued)

10. EEREEMEEH (B

() EFM=E @&

RIBE R A BFEG (55622%) F383MF kAT (]
BEFMmER) RP (35622GE) (RA) KE
MEEMENT : (B

NG YAU
ZHAO YEN Kwok  William YING  Hang Tat, LIU TAO SUN
2020 2020F Yao  Gordon Tung LAM Wei  Andrew  Xianfu, Yongming Fuj Total
HE  BER  MER  MER g HIEE 2BE BA#E  REL e
HK$000  HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS000 HKSO00 HK$000 HKS000 HKSO00 HK$000
FEr FhEr TFEr FEr FEr TEr FEr FErT  TEr  FEn
Fees ik - 200 250 200 200 - - - - 850
Other emoluments b=l
Salaries and other benefits HeREMER 3,304 S = = S 2,384 = = = 5,688
Discretionary bonuses® [iof e 1,525 S = = S = = = = 1,525
Retirement benefits RNERFHEIE
scheme contribution 18 - - - - 165 - - - 183
4847200 250 200 200 2549 - - - 86

*

Notes:

The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group.

i) Mr. LIU Xianfu, was re-designated from an executive director as a non-executive
director on 1 November 2021.

(i)  Mr. WONG Kwong Chi was appointed as an independent non-executive director on

30 June 2021.

(i) Mr. ZHANG Zheng was appointed as executive director on 1 April 2021.

During the years 2021 and 2020, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any director as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, three directors (2020: three
directors) waived their whole-year emoluments.

* HERENEREENTEBEFE -

Mt -

() BIEREEN021FB1BHRITESBER

FFHTES

(i) EHZHER2021FE6H30RELZTABILIER

TE=R-

(i) SRIEFTEN2021F4F1BRZERAMITES-

12021 F F220204F » REB W EE M EEZ
B <2 LUIE 2 00 B8 2 &2 B 2 7 0 A 4 £ [ BF

BYEEED SRR 1 o

HE2021F12831HIEEE > 311 (20204 : 3
i) EEMERSEEFMNE-
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10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included two (2020: two) directors, whose
emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of the remaining three
(2020: three) employees are as follows:

10. EXREEMEEH (B

(b) EEM=

BEMErNs2EE®BIE2ML (20204 & 211)
BEHMNSFBEMN LM sE(a) o 88 T3

(20204 : 3) EERMEWT :

2021

2020

HK$°000 T %77 HK$'000 T BT

Salaries and other benefits e REMER] 6,421 6,290
Retirement benefits scheme contributions BRIREFEBIERR 163 105

6,584 6,395
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMENFLUTAER

2021 2020
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,000 7t £2,000,00078 7T - 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 775 22,500,000/ 7T 3 2
(c) Senior management’s emoluments (c) BREEEBME
The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were B XENSHREEBHEZMESNTFLUTHA
within the following bands: il

2021 2020

HK$2,000,000 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,0007 75 Z£3,000,0007 7T
HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001 775 25,000,000/ 7T
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11. DIVIDENDS

1. BB

2021 2020
HK$’000 F# T HK$'000 T

Dividend recognised as distribution EFEECBIBADIRKZEE !
during the year:
2020 final dividend of HK7.00 cents 2020F KA B & 7.007 1L
(2019: HK9.28 cents) per share (20194 : & /R9.287811l) 85,752 113,683
2020 nil special dividend (2019 special 2020 EF RIAR 2
dividend: HK1.16 cents) per share (2019FEHFRIRR S - 1. 16781) - 14,210
85,752 127,893

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both years.

The final dividend of HK16.00 cents in respect of the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK7.00 cents) per share, amounting to approximately
HK$196,004,000 (2020: HK$85,752,000) has been recommended by
the Board and will be subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

B FE I &S S B RP RS -

EEEEZRNEE2021F12831HIEFEFEZ
FRHAR B 8216.00% 1l (20204 : 7.00%l) »
& £49196,004,0007 7T (20204 : 85,752,0007
70) B EFREN AN EERFEEAS
LTt E-



12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

EEEE(RE)ARSE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

12. BRZF

ERBEEANBEESRESENREERNT)
R YRS H

2021 2020
HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 FET
Earnings &7
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary M EEREARI REERT
equity shareholders of the Company for FTRZARBEBREESTE AEL
the purpose of computation of basic EFEERF
earnings and diluted earnings per share 241,334 85,706
2021 2020
Number of shares P& E
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FLstEESRERZH K
for the purpose of computation of HERNFAZ
basic earnings and diluted earnings ZERINEEEEE

per share

1,225,026,960 1,225,026,960

(a) Basic earnings per share

The computation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$241,334,000 (2020: HK$85,706,000) and the weighted
average of 1,225,026,960 ordinary shares (2020: 1,225,026,960 ordinary

shares) during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

(a) BRESER

HE2021FE12A31HIEEFEZSRELARF
DIEEARNBZERKREREABGRT
241,334,000 75 (20204 : 85,706,0005 7T) &
NAET 9 B1,225,026,9608% % 18 §% (20204 :
1,225,026,9600% 1B %) 58 ©

(b) SR#BEEF

HE2021F12831H K2020F12831H L&
B XA WEBTEINZEBEHEZEY
EERg o

2021 %K 129
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. IREW=E

HK$'000 F &7
Cost 3%
At 1 January 2020 12020%F181H 71,281
Additions #n 17,313
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BIEEME -HENRE 4,689
Currency realignment NS = B 3,661
At 31 December 2020 12020F12831H 96,944
Additions = 13,303
Transfer from property, plant and equipment BIEEYE ISR A 604
Currency realignment SN E B 2,309
At 31 December 2021 7R2021F12H31H 113,160
Depreciation e
At 1 January 2020 1202051 81H 19,736
Currency realignment HMNEIRE EER 949
Provided for the year BEERE 3,735
At 31 December 2020 2020F12831H 24,420
Currency realignment NS = B 554
Provided for the year EEEERE 4,991
At 31 December 2021 2021FE12831H 29,965
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12831H 83,195
At 31 December 2020 112020F12831H 72,524

The Group’s investment properties consisted of leased properties and leased HAEEMNKEYEQIEHEYERHEERE
pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 December FBo AEEBEYEN2021FE12831AHNA
2021 was HK$297,025,000 (31 December 2020: HK$261,907,000). The F{B{EA&297,025,00078 7T (2020F 12831
fair value of leased properties was HK$269,139,000 (31 December 2020: H : 261,907,000 7T) - FHEY XA FE
HK$237,312,000) and the fair value of leased pier was HK$27,886,000 (31 E7%4269,139,0007 7t (20205128318 :
December 2020: HK$24,595,000) which have been arrived at based on a 237,312,000 70) RIEEHBENAFEBES
valuation carried out by RHL Appraisal Limited, an independent property valuer.  27,886,0007& 75 (2020512831H : 24,595,000

A7) hEBUMEGLEMXF T ERBE
RATETHRESESEH-

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison FEYIERGEIZEZBILESE LGB HAR

method and term and reversion analysis of investment approach.

HMEIwmDIEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Direct comparison method is based on the principle of substitution, where
comparison is made based on prices realised on actual sales and/or asking
prices of comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale,
nature, character and location are analysed and carefully weighed against all
the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in order to
arrive at a fair comparison of market value.

Term and reversion analysis of investment approach estimates the capital value
of a property by capitalised rental income on a fully leased basis having regard
to the current passing rental income from existing tenancy and the potential
reversionary rental income at market level.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement Cost
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for the existing
use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the improvements less
allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence and
optimisation. The key input of Depreciated Replacement Cost approach is the
building construction cost per square metre. A significant increase/decrease in
building construction cost per metre used would result in a significant increase/
decrease in the fair value of the leased pier.

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics of the
investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view, floor level,
year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the unit market
price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit market price. A
significant increase/decrease in the market price would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased properties.

Significant unobservable inputs were used in the valuation of investment
properties. The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement under the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13,
Fair value measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of 20 to 50 years or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

13. REME (B

ERLEEBUGEDUEARIAEE MR
ERHEBRERR HAIHEBMEZR
BEH - /N RESMEE BB REEZ
AL E T IR B E 2 AR BET S
MRAFAEE > LUERATHELR-

REMBMORDEDEEBIIRABEAN
EHESWRANTIZKFRBEEREREZUA
WERL R2REEEAERHESWABERL
st — B ENELREE

HEBENGENRFTESENLZET &
TAEDRBLIHHNIREBRBEHEFL MG
MEEREEEENREAEBEERERER
FRERBEANREREBIEE - TEEEN
FENEBZHABBERS T RBERNAE -
BEARNEERETKRE LA THRREEHRE
ERBEZ ATEEARELA T

HEMELEREEERENEZBERNKE.
BREMUE R R RB BB ElFEN K
HEER > WEHEAHHER BRLEBEZ
TEWABBREUTHER HIHERARE
ER/THRREREEMEZ ATEEKREL
Tk

EARTIERAAZEGEDARKREES
HE-REVEZRATEERETBMBREE
A1 AT EBESEFMAENIRAFEE
BHRIETZHIMEEEATEEFE - AFE
Bt ENEULAMEZ R RRERBRK
B HEYEZBRBRILEER -

LB XU ERER20E0F KB EFH
UUBIEERE) rE-

AEBMBREVEDFHIFRIVES NE AT
=0
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. YE KB KRz

Freehold and Furniture,
leasehold fixtures and  Plant and Motor Construction
land  Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KARER i RE
HENLTH BEY k% BERES BE  HBRIE wiE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET FET FET FAET
Cost &
At 1 January 2020 12020E151H 21,560 1,006,468 955,197 2,371,593 24,499 29,151 4,408,468
Currency realignment SMEBMBET (1) 3,053 11,081 864 150 3,553 18,690
Additions 1 = = 19,637 27,538 338 70,951 118,464
Transfer from construction in progress AEETRIE - - 9,166 = = (9,166) =
Transfer to investment properties BEEREYZE = (6,775) = = = = (6,775)
Disposals/written-off HE /Wi - (397) (84539 (158,333 (2,461) - (245730)
At 31 December 2020 12020F12A31H 21549 1,002,349 910,542 2,241,662 22,526 94,489 4,293,117
Currency realignment MERE R 14 2,113 5,814 3,481 13 1,382 12917
Additions 1811 - 495 11,956 81,316 1,506 62,100 157,373
Transfer from construction in progress BEATEIR 103 - 105,417 26,713 - (132233 =
Transfer to investment properties BEERENZE - (1,357) - - - = (1,357)
Disposals/written -off HE /s - (573) (65915)  (125,202) (2,786) - (184,49)
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 21,666 1,003,027 977,814 2,227,950 21,359 25,738 4,277,554
Depreciation and impairment TERAE
At 1 January 2020 12020 151H 13,306 530,186 705,474 1,705,093 18,924 - 2972982
Currency realignment MERE R - 1,530 4,453 (295) (82) = 5,606
Provided for the year REERE 215 38,639 66,253 97,852 1,768 S 204,727
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /MisR s - (188) (71,385)  (155,689) (2,344) - (229,606)
Transfer to investment properties BEERENZE - 2,086) - - - = 2,086)
At 31 December 2020 12020&12831H 13,620 568,081 704,795 1,646,961 18,266 - 2,951,623
Currency realignment SMEMBET = 1,028 2,405 2,105 77 = 5,615
Provided for the year EEERME 215 38,210 31,733 93,840 1,477 - 165,475
Eliminated on disposals/written-off HE /M ] (15)  (33837)  (143,701) (2,658) - (180511)
Transfer to investment properties REEREYZE 5 (753) = = S - (753)
At 31 December 2021 120215128318 13,735 606,051 705,296 1,599,205 17,162 - 2,941,449
Carrying values FEfE
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 7,931 396,976 272,518 628,745 4,197 25738 1,336,105
At 31 December 2020 12020F12831H 8,029 434,268 205,747 594,701 4,260 94,489 1,341,494

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, after

taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis.

FHME B RRBZRAERSTARE G
SHRIREBEBUERERE-
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31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FAEEEE

Land and
buildings Equipment Machinery Total
TR EY =t B 2R “afg
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET FAET
At 1 January 2020 7£20205F181H 243,728 593 158 244,479
Currency realignment NI = 2 842 = = 842
Additions B0 2,550 - 131 2,681
Depreciation e (30,139 (183) (205) (30,527)
Effect of modification BSTHERMzZE
to lease terms (59) - (18) (77)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12H31H 216,922 410 66 217,398
Currency realignment SN E B 347 - 5 352
Additions B 3,265 - 1,536 4,801
Depreciation e (28,556) (182) (143) (28,881)
Effect of modification BETHERR &
to lease terms 3,191 - - 3,191
At 31 December 2021 #2021512H831H 195,169 228 1,464 196,861

RIEMEERE D2 EREEEREFED

2021##% 133

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying
assets is as follows:

e

At 31 December At 31 December

Ft12H31H 1128318
2021 2020
HK$’000 F % HK$'000 F &1
Ownership interests in leasehold land and REETMNERERY 2B E#ER
buildings, carried at depreciated cost with BITER ARSI ERG THERS !
remaining lease term of:
- 30 years or more —30F 5 MU £ 79,631 81,773
— between 10 and 30 years — 105 K&30FE 2 [E] 9,440 9,788
Other properties leased for own use, carried FHEES Bz M
at depreciated cost ITE A {E 106,098 125,361
Plant, machinery and equipment, carried M5 AR R R FRITE A A SIE
at depreciated cost 1,692 476
196,861 217,398
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HithWEREE
Software
B
HK$'000TF &
Cost s
At 1 January 2020 R2020F181H 31,267
Additions a0 =
At 31 December 2020 20205 12831H 31,267
Additions a0 =
At 31 December 2021 7R2021F12831H 31,267
Amortisation #heH
At 1 January 2020 20201 81H 19,207
Provided for the year BEERE 3,015
At 31 December 2020 22020FE12831H 22,222
Provided for the year BEERE 3,015
At 31 December 2021 7R2021F12831H 25,237
Carrying values EREE
At 31 December 2021 72021E12831H 6,030
At 31 December 2020 20205 12831H 9,045
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

17. R—HEBE AT 2%
At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2021 2020

HK$’000F % HK$'000F T

Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMRE » LU ATIE 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profit PE{L U R R R A 7,394 6,589
23,598 22,793

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 is as follows:

AEERHE AT F2021F12831H K2020FE12
A31EZEBWT :

Percentage of

Form of ownership
business Place of Place of operation and interests/voting
Name structure incorporation principal activities rights/profit share
FRi& %R
D REES
%18 EBEEREX  EMRIFEH SEREMAIEER BRBEDE
REMBKBERAR Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
EHE FRE RAE RS R EIESKEIER

The primary business of ERFEMBEKIEBREAF is engaged in construction
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong
Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually
material:

REMBAKBZERADNEZERNNERS
REmERAEESKEER -

it E AT DU R EN FEEMBFERES
AR

R FBEEZME AT ZHHERRM

2021 2020

HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 &1

Profit from continuing operations FREREEB BT 805 2,256
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wl - =
Total comprehensive income EEWEARE 805 2,256
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18. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and

18. IEIEFRIH

AEERARSHABRBERESHEEDSNE

movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as EIELERBERE  (BE) RESBWT :
follows:
Accelerated
Right-of-use Lease tax Tax
assets liabilities depreciation losses Others Total
ERAEEE HEaE RARERE RIERE Hith i
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FEr
(note)
(Hz2)
At 1 January 2020 14202081810 37,075 (45,213) 18,745 (633) (52,589) (42,615)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss R 1E&ER AR, Gt A) (6,091) 2,923 (1,980) (224) (16,235) (21,607)
Currency realignment SIS I B R = 5 (44) = - (44)
At 31 December 2020 122020512 831H 30,984 (42,290) 16,721 (857) (68,824) (64,266)
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss R 1EERA N, Gt A) (4,994) 4,369 (1,685) 120 5,334 3,144
Currency realignment SN 2R - - 88 = (164) (76)
At 31 December 2021 720214128310 25,990 (37,921) 15,124 (737) (63,654) (61,198)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised
profit on inventories, provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment
and trade and bills receivables, other receivables, write-down of inventories,
unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on two PRC/overseas

subsidiaries.

Mzt BRRBEEIEREENREREN WE-H
28 Ko % R LUR & 3R e TR 5 M WOk TE e EL A B
WRIERERE - FEMB B RARZMHE
a3 sk F A B BV R IR W PR E £ RV IEIE
MEEE URHEMEPEEIINEE RS
BURATRIN P E £ RVIEIEIRIEA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$25 million (31 December 2020: HK$48 million) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$4 million (31 December 2020: HK$5 million) of such losses,
which represent tax losses incurred by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries
as it is considered by the management that future taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$21 million (31 December
2020: HK$43 million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. As at 31 December 2021, of the above tax losses, nil (31 December
2020: an aggregate amount of approximately HK$2 million) can be carried
forward for five years following the year when the losses were incurred. Other
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2021, the Group had other deductible temporary
differences of approximately HK$51 million (31 December 2020: HK$43
million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment
between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance for doubtful
debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is
not certain that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in the
calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies established
in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and holds at least
25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced rate of 5% will be
applied. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable to retained profits
of the wholly-owned PRC subsidiaries amounting to HK$519,677,000 (31
December 2020: HK$474,700,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Besides, no deferred tax
has been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of the
temporary differences attributable to such loss amounting to HK$3,323,000
as at 31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2021, there was no temporary
differences attributed to such loss since all of this loss was utilised during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in respect
of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits after 1 January
2008 of a partially-owned PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$29,110,000 (31
December 2020: HK$13,602,000).

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

18. IRIEMIA (&)

R20215F12831H » AEE O] BEHKIH KK
BAHNREBRIELEIELNA25,000,000%8 T
(2020128318 : 48,000,000 75) © MLt
IE 5181 494,000,000 7T (2020128311 -
5,000,000/ 7T) BT A —BIELERIBEE
WA ABETHBARFREENKRIBEERE
KEBEBZEIDARKNERRBAETER
IEFRIEETIE - BR T HIFRIEAT 18 721,000,0007% 70
(20205128318 : 43,000,000 7T) Kk A&
FEAR RN BA R EMARERDAIEIERIBE
EofR20215F12831H » LR IBEE+ > #i
(2020512831 H : 425 %5492,000,000%8 75)
AIREEBEFEREESFNRNIBERIE - HAih
MIBEE A ER A EE

tESh > 1R2021FE12831H » AEBEE e 308
i = RB49 751,000,000 75 ( 2020F 12531
H : 43,000,000 7T) » TEEEHWEB AR ZME
BWRRREBRBENRERNE - FENRER
B REEKGEBEEURFNEERL - AX
BEFE E FEERIR B AR A (EIR L rT R R =
B M ARERIAZ AN TR EEARIERIE
BEo

RIBEEREMRE > H2008FE1F1HEE ¥R
B A% 17 B9 /A Bl MR MG B E K B FR2008F
ERUEBFENRABENKREBHMNI0%
FEIFER REBSEMATERFETR R
ARV HERNEEE  BEAERRE
5% o F KA 7 82 B 0] LAY ) B By = BR #8E [0] > B
B MERERERIENTRERAGEL
HIEEME2EPENBABRERAMN Y
B Z%8519,677,000/8 7T (2020128311
474,700,000/ 70) T a M B RERNIELIE
AEFR TERE 4 o B 4N > 72202012831 H & &
RN ERZSEEREEN TR AL
3,323,000/ JTEH R IE TR IE 38 4 © 5220214512
B31H AR EE2021F12B31HIEEEEH
BaiEE ZEBEREEEBERARTEEES
HhRsER

R2021F12831H KEBEM—BIEEZEZ
R ER B A B F2008FE1B1H B Z R D IKEF]
29,110,000 7t (20205812831H : 13,602,000
Bor) 2 AN EHEHRIELERIEEE o
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

18. IEIEIRIA (18)

AR EMBIRRENESMES & TELERE
BEEMRGRBHRHE -UTERZ2EHMSHIEL

MIRFEER DA

At 31 December

At 31 December

¥12831H P’12831H

2021 2020

HK$000 T35t  HK$'000 FE7T

Deferred tax assets RERIBEE (65,914) (71,062)
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEEA 4,716 6,796
(61,198) (64,266)

19. INVENTORIES 190. &

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H »128318

2021 2020

HK$’000 F#5c  HK$'000 FE7T

Spare parts B 28,039 26,165
Raw materials R 526,525 437,988
Work-in-progress FER 580,700 380,750
Finished goods =yt 581,956 373,266
1,717,220 1,218,169

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

20. EEREHERWRIEA

At 31 December

At 31 December

¥12831H »128318

2021 2020

HK$’000 F#5c  HK$'000 FE7T

Trade receivables S EWRIE 1,037,003 857,558
Bills receivables SR EWEIE 270,164 194,991
Less: loss allowance B ESIREE (36,832) (25,056)
1,270,335 1,027,493

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its trade
customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
based on the invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

AEBRMNFIOREOKREEMFHEES
P -EERZEBEBURBERBERANRNES

HAMSBIBRES DATIO T ¢



EEEE(EE)HReE  20214EE5% 139

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

20. EXRFEEBURRIE (8

At 31 December

At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2021 2020

HK$’000 T % HK$'000 T T

Within 1 month 1MEB K 753,219 586,759
1 to 2 months 1E22(@ 2 331,739 278,901
2 to 3 months 2E3EH 128,921 116,324
Over 3 months @AM E 93,288 70,565
1,307,167 1,052,549

Less: loss allowance B IREE (36,832) (25,056)
1,270,335 1,027,493

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are made to
customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits attributed to
customers are reviewed regularly.

The Group does not hold any collateral over the trade and bills receivables.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are generally
not recoverable. Trade receivables not past due and due within 360 days have
been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts, determined by
reference to past default experiences.

The Group recognised impairment loss based on the accounting policy stated
in note 4(i).

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and bills receivable are set out in note 38(b).

AEBRRBEWNEEMZRA SFEZEESR
FREEEREMATCHEERE - FEHER
ENTEECSRRENER TR EEREE
HAF LU ST o

FEBTEREZERZBEBIGRIER A ERAK
e

BHEERBWREBEAFHNE -FEEEMRBR
360KRHIFTE EXBWFIBER HEHR R 1L
MR B EAE  BHBEI0RNE R BN
RIE—RE H AR (O] o I B A R B HAB60 R A
RS ERUGRIAL R AR AR E BT 2E
BEXRRAEBRPTEE MR & HE -

FEBRBIEEA0)PAE B G 5T BERESAE
‘Ko

EMAEBREEBRKARBBEERRKRER
FEUWRENEERRINE—DF BRNME
38(b) °
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20. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their entirety

At 31 December 2021, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$77,231,000 (2020: HK$45,708,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a maturity of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of
the Derecognised Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC
banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not
significant.

21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. EXRRREUTRIE (8
EWEIERENEHRSHEE

R2021F12A31H  KEBBEETHERS
HEETREAMNIETEANE TEREW
B (MRIEFERER))  UEBREEGRS
77,231,000/ 7t (20204F : 45,708,0007 75) BIK
NZERERNEERMCIIE PRSHKL &
IFEREZENERA1E6E A c RIETEZE
o MR EMIRITEL BARIERIZEHFAA
BHAEEBBERE (FEZH) - FERA K
EECERERRKRILERRENE RS D AR
K [EIFR » R I - B EUH 3 4% IETE S0 =R M A8
EERNRENEZNERE AEERFES
BRI EREE R ABRZERIEER RN
AMIBREREMEENEANBLAENHEER
BE-BERA AEBZREBSHKRIEERER
AT EBELFEK-

21. EARIE RE R HMEWTRIE

RECEIVABLES

At 31 December At 31 December
®12831H 128318
2021 2020
HK$000 F#&;z  HK$'000 F#E7T
Value-added tax recoverable EIEEIbEi=E ) 69,167 61,161
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 3% ~ T8 17 70 I8 Ko E fth FE W k18 132,796 105,806
Less: loss allowance B ESIR A (6,115) -
195,848 166,967

Opening provision for impairment of FYHEHMBEWRIE 2 B ERE
other receivables - -
Increased during the year FRIEM 6,115 =

Closing provision for impairment of FREMBURIEZ BERE
other receivables 6,115 -

22. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, restricted bank deposits of HK$4,197,000 (31
December 2020: HK$7,351,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits
placed in the banks in PRC and Sri Lanka as securities for the bills payables
and bank overdraft.

22. ZRHIRITEM

20215128310 » Z[RHIIR1TE 4,197,000
BT (2020128318 : 7,351,000 70) FEiE
ERRAELRTEFRIRTEARBERAORIE
K iRIT B IRIFN B IERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

23. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.001% to 4.89% (31 December 2020: 0.001% to 4.50%) per
annum.

24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

23. FEHARITERRIRTTREGR KRR E

R TTERRIRITERTEEN F0.001%E
4.89% (2020FE12831H : 0.001%Z%E4.50%) Z
MIBENE B -

24, EEREEESIE

At 31 December At 31 December

®12H31H R12H31H

2021 2020

HK$’000 F#7T  HK$'000 FET

Trade payables EEEIRIE 727,898 631,840
Bills payables EIEE(IRIE 228,552 332,891
956,450 964,731

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills payables based on the
invoice dates, as at the end of the reporting period:

EERRBEROINEREZHRNRENEHN
SREeDMTANT ¢

At 31 December At 31 December

®12831H 128318

2021 2020

HK$’000 T & HK$'000 T T

Within 1 month ENEER 608,512 726,372
1 to 2 months 1228 H 226,591 146,890
2 to 3 months 2ZE3EH 44,258 49,141
Over 3 months MEB MU E 77,089 42,328
956,450 964,731

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2021, bills payables of HK$13,038,000 (31 December

2020: HK$28,991,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank deposits
of HK$2,608,000 (31 December 2020: HK$5,798,000).

The credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to 120 days.

RIREHR  ZEB 2B ZHENTIBESL X
EHA -

2021FE12831H » EHEFE (T 7 IE13,038,000
T (2020128318 : 28,991,000%7T) JHH

REBE Z ZRHIE1TFR2,608,00058 7T ( 2020
F12H31H : 5,798,000 7T) 1EAEIF o

BEREEHMTFI0REI20K

c0215F#K 141
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A MBRERMEE (8
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25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. HthETRIEREStER

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12H31H 128318

2021 2020

HK$’000 F & T HK$'000 T BT

Other payables Hh g FRIB 145,158 89,156
Accruals FEsHE 177,826 191,156
322,984 280,312

26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

26. A E

FEFEDHEERUTRAERGOERE

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H R12831H
2021 2020
HK$’000 F#x  HK$'000 F&7T
Contract liabilities EBHEE 32,701 22,014
Movements in contract liabilities SHEENED
2021 2020
HK$’000 F#x  HK$'000 F&7T
At 1 January w1818 22,014 15,315
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FREDEVTAESHNEEN
recognising revenue during the year that IWAmMENSKNEa/ERELD
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (22,116) (15,542)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of IWBEENFEMAEMERNEY
advanced consideration received from aEEm
customers 32,701 21,795
Currency realignment NIRRT ERE 102 446
At 31 December (note 6) MW128318 (#t:t6) 32,701 22,014
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions from which it
operates. The Group leases various factories, staff quarters, offices premises,
warehouse and machinery and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods from 2 to 50 years for land and buildings and 2 years for
machinery. All rental contracts comprise only fixed payments over the lease
terms.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease
components based on their relative stand-alone prices.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases
in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to
obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:
e where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing

conditions since third party financing was received;

e  uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk of lessee; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country, currency and
security.

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)
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27. HE&RE
MEEBZME (FREEA)

KEEREEBEZEAMEHEELEBEYE &
EEHEEZH IR EIBS WAEYE B
BEUKESRRE - HESLN—RIZETEEH
H2ES0F (B BRI M S) M2F (Fhi%ss
MmE) i -FIBHEANEEaRNHEERER
B NE

BN ESHERIFAEMERED - AEER
BHERIFHEHEME D 2 A BHERS &
BNZNELEEEERIFEEMEME D -

HERNDRENEEETER BE3ZELR
BRI AR - HEHZE S IR 25 78
EEENSRFEERZIRR-

HEMEARDERAEERS ZHHIER - HEE

KPEEZNX (FERZEAEREML) -8

ERABEAZIEEERFE BME R AE AR

BLUEERBEREBECER  BRREGHE

ABRGHERAREEBENREZEEMEZE

TR ZFEK

PHEEREMENI X XER

o  FERIBEEBR NMERERABANLHEREZ
B RMEFAER WIFHBELURE
BEBF =B LURRE R 2 &8 ;

s BRAERME BAMABAZEERRES
BERARAE; K

o HHEMFHRFERAE MEH EX
Eiis i
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

27. HE&E (@

Land and
Lease liabilities HeEas buildings Equipment Machinery Total
T B EY o4 2% HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET FET
At 1 January 2020 #R2020F181H 189,070 609 157 189,836
Additions 0 2,550 - 131 2,681
Interest expense MEZH 8,909 16 5 8,930
Lease payments HE=mE (31,552) (197) (207) (31,956)
COVID-19-related rent COVID-1918RATE &R %
concessions (note) (Hat) (2,082) = = (2,082)
Effect on modification EBREERR &
of lease terms (96) - (18) (114)
Currency realignment SN IR A ER 10,138 - 3 10,141
At 31 December 2020 11202012831 H 176,937 428 71 177,436
Additions 0 3,265 - 1,536 4,801
Interest expense FMEZH 8,503 10 42 8,555
Lease payments HE™MIE (41,649 (197) (782) (42,628)
Effect on modification EBREERM &
of lease terms 2,165 - - 2,165
Currency realignment SN E EER 4,638 = 4 4,642
At 31 December 2021 120214128318 153,859 241 871 154,971
Note:  For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received rent concessions M7zt . B ZE2020F12831H > HFACOVID-19%& 15 »

from lessors due to the COVID-19 pandemic in the form of rent relief (e.g.
reductions in rent contractually due under the terms of lease agreements). The
Group elected to apply the practical expedient introduced by the amendment
to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfied the criteria. All of the rent
concessions entered into during the year ended 31 December 2020 satisfied
the criteria to apply the practical expedient. The application of the practical
expedient resulted in the reduction of total lease liabilities of HK$2,082,000. The
effect of this reduction recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggered those payments occurred. No such rent concessions
were received for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FEBLIEER RN H WREBERREK
FREMK[ERLVES) BHEAANESHESR
R FAEBEREREBYBREERE165%
ZIEFTASIAZ I TR EH ERBIRAA N
BZRENEERE - REZE2020F12431
BUEFEST Y ZMAERASRRANCEAR
TRERFZRE-BAYJTREREZER
B & & EMR%ER2,082,0008 T ZR M 2
FENEEBEZS MR ZEMFT ZH
BRERAR - REE2021F12831HIEF
B> AEBIERSHEE RS
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27. LEASE LIABILITIES (continued)

The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is as follows:

27. HE&E @

RREERBEZREDRNT :

At 31 December

At 31 December

#12831H R12831H

2021 2020

HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET

Current liabilities ViEZIB=N 24,641 31,399

Non-current liabilities JERBAaRE 130,330 146,037

154,971 177,436

2021 2020

HK$°000 T %7 HK$'000 F &1

Short-term lease expense R E S W 5,676 4132
Aggregate undiscounted commitments RAGIRSTHATE B R IEAREE

for short-term leases 1,178 1,196

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(@) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days

credit period.

28. RIFERKRR —HBE QTR

I8
(a) RIFERRIRRMIA

BRRESERT REREEREER-

(b) R—MBERBMRIEA
Eo

BRAME
HAREE

Ny

HERE - REREARIOXRBEREE
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29. DEFERRED INCOME 29, IREWA
At 31 December At 31 December
®12831H ®12831H

2021 2020
HK$’000 F & T HK$'000 T BT

Arising from government grants (note i) RS Rk E 4 (WAL 54,663 56,349
Arising from rental income (note i) B EWAFTESE B ti) 33,941 13,663
88,604 70,012

Current ikl 5,457 3,701

Non-current JERE 83,147 66,311

88,604 70,012

Notes: BiaE -

) In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the i)  F2008% > A% E B W —EEF 572,912,000
purchase of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over B ARBEETEE  MASIEMAERK
the useful lives of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions. HBEREHMEEERFRRIDAWA - AEER
The Group has no unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants. i 48 52 55 AT 48 B P B A5 B SRS R IR 1 o

i)  As at 31 December 2021, the amount represents the rental income of i) 2021F12831H  ZABEALHHE=ZEREEY
HK$33,941,000 for the leasing of three investment properties, which had been 2 KFE SR A33,941,0005E 7T 0 BIEHEE10FE &
deferred to recognise as income over the rental periods of 10 years and 9 OFIRIERE SR A WA 1220205 12H31H » &K
years. As at 31 December 2020, the amount represented the rental income of BEAHE—REEYENHEEWA3,663,000
HK$13,663,000 for the leasing of an investment property, which had been deferred Bt BEAE10FIRIERRAIRA ©

to recognise as income over the rental period of 10 years.
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30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. R1TIRE

At 31 December

At 31 December

c021###% 147

Ft12H31H 1128318
2021 2020
HK$’000 F#E7x  HK$'000 FET
Unsecured borrowings: mIEHEE .
Bank loans IRITE™M 96,134 208,729
Import bills loans EOEX 231,208 28,019
327,342 236,748
Repayable as follows: AR TS HABERER .
On demand or within one year (note) EEREEIIEAN WWE) 327,342 229,606
More than one year, but not exceeding 1FE L R BE2F
two years - 7,142
327,342 236,748
Less: Amounts repayable on demand B AATTE B EREREEN1IFANE
or due within one year shown B E%E
under current liabilities
— bank borrowings due within —1FRNEHNIRITEE
one year (327,342) (229,606)
Amounts due after one year 1FE%B AT ZE - 7,142

Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the current liabilities include bank loans that
are all scheduled to repay within one year.

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings which
carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 0.95% to 2.25% (2020:
0.975% to 2.25%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus a spread, ranging
from 0.95% to 1.8% (2020: 0.975% to 1.8%) per annum in Hong Kong. The
average effective interest rates of the bank borrowings of the Group is 1.44%
(2020: 2.46%) per annum. Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry
interest at fixed rates ranging from 0.67% to 1.76% (2020: 1.41% to 2.50%)
per annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required to
maintain a number of covenant ratios. During the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020, the Group had complied with all covenant ratios.

st . 120218 2020128318 mE&EEE
AMMFERERAEEZIRITEN

AREBNBRTEETEAIEEE RES
TR EBRTEERENMLEEENTF0.95%F
2.25% (20204F : 0.975%%E2.25%) TN fm FUR
TREFREMEEZEZNF0.95%FE1.8% (2020
F 1 0.975%F1.8%) 2 EFEG B o REEIR
TEREZFHEREFNER1.44% (20204 :
2.46%) c AEBEB O EMBITEEHIZETE
FERENF0.67%FE1.76% (20204 : 1.41%=E
2.50%) st B o

RIEAEENRTRER G  AERBHETH
BEERL L= o« R E FE 20214 2020 12831H
IEEE  AEBEETMERAYEE.
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31. SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December

31. Rk
At 31 December

12H831H ®12A8318
2021 2020
No. of shares HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
RinEE FAET Bi7EH FAET
Ordinary shares, TE BT RERE
issued and fully paid
At beginning and at end REVRRER
of the year 1,225,026,960 889,810 1,225,026,960 889,810

In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the ordinary shares of the Company do not have a par value.

32. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2020: 60%) owned subsidiary of the
Company, has material non-controlling interests (‘“NCI”). The NCI of all other
subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered not to be

material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka (Private)
Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

RIBEBAERA (55622F) F1356MF > XA T
NWEERT EREEE

32. JEfERRE =

AT —RI Mt BAS)Ocean Lanka (Private)
Limited#EH60% (20204 : 60%) RRIEME A IE
RS (TFEIERER)) - WIFmAEEESR
100% R ZFIEEMIBAR 2 IFERER
WAL TEK

REBRIBEHIE ZA > BB Ocean Lanka
(Private) limited3FIZERGIE RV I B E R 275
mnr:

2021 2020
HK$000 F#&7T  HK$'000 FET

For the year ended 31 December BE12B31HLEEE
Revenue =25 1,009,300 677,137
Profit for the year REERF 47,324 33,388
Other comprehensive (expense)/income Hitzm G = (2,644) 1,900
Total comprehensive income %EH&E&%@ 44,680 35,288
Profit allocated to NCI DEEIFERERNET 18,930 13,355
Dividend paid to NCI RIS T IR EEBIE R 18,653 -

For the year ended 31 December BE12A31HILLEE
Cash flows (used in)/from operating activities #3EIEE (FFE) FIEMNRESNE (67,228) 78,048
Cash flows from/(used in) investing activities &BIEBFE, FFE) NWIRES RS 7,349 (28,677)
Cash flows used in financing activities MEBEEHFANRESRE (19,240) (37,437)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXEHHIE NER

and cash equivalents REEENFE 1,017 (622)
Net cash (outflows)/inflows R () S RAFEE (78,102) 11,312
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32. JEfERREm ()

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 *12831H

2021 2020

HK$’000 F#Ex  HK$'000 FET

Current assets RENEE 479,962 453,234
Non-current assets ERBEE 130,317 137,429
Current liabilities mEAaE (158,792) (147,292)
Non-current liabilities EREEE (6,675) (7,875)
Net assets BEFE 444,812 435,496
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEIER R 174,614 173,279

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2011 Scheme

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution
passed by the Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20
January 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). Under the 2011 Scheme, the Board may,
at its absolute discretion, grant share options pursuant to the terms of the 2011
Scheme to eligible participants, including, among others, the directors, full-time
employees and part-time employees of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options comprising 26,100,000 shares were
granted on 19 January 2018. The share option was fully vested after 12
months from the date of grant and the exercisable period of share option was
from 19 January 2019 to 18 January 2020. The closing price of the shares
immediately before the date of grant was HK$1.07 each. Among those granted
on 19 January 2018, share options comprising 5,800,000 shares were lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2020 due to non-exercise during the
pre-determined exercisable period. The 2011 Scheme expired on 19 January
2021.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, there were no outstanding
share options under the 2011 Scheme.

v

33. LURINABRZARMRS
20115518

EATERER2011E1B20H R T 2R EFH
ARG FRRFEEBZ —ERBZEFM2011Et
2] (T 20114 5121)) 2011 EFE T EE g0
RIBF20OMEABER N ERASERSEE
(B (EHPaE AT RERBATES
2HEEREHES) RHBERIE.

RHE20114E 2] W2018F1 B9 BB L8 S
26,100,000 10z FERRE - BREEBEYE
HEFRE12E R B B HER B MBEREMNITEE
A2019F1B19H £2020F1518H « RO I E
BT BPZWHEAESRI.07TETT - HF
FEL20184F1 B 19H % H BI 6 35,800,0008% i
Rz BREREELEEZTHERRRETE
MEREZE2020F12831H IEFEE K3 2011
FE5HEIFR2021FE18198 FHR -

R2020FE12831H&2021FE12831H » 20114
SHEITN W RITERIEE IR o
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)  33. U BERZ R H (@)

The 2011 Scheme (continued) 2011558 (&
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options FREEARATIRIE2011FEEI DB HERRE
granted under the 2011 Scheme. Z BB
Cancelled/
(Audited) lapsed/ (Unaudited)
Outstanding forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at 1 January during at 31 December
Scheme Date of grant price 2020 the year 2020
(&R (RRE)
1420204 1420205
1818 FREHH 12A31H
5t EHBEH 17156 R ITIE K%,/ BK i8R ITE
Employees 2011 19 January 2018 HK$1.10 5,800,000 (5,800,000) =
(== 20118 2018F1519H 1.108 7T

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of share WRETEBEBREATEEFRAZRERUWT !
options:

Under the 2011
Scheme Share
options granted
on 19 January

2018

R#R20115E

5TEI5220184F

1B19HEREN

BEAC 1

Number of options BERSHEE B 26,100,000
Grant date fair value REBHBAZATFEE HK$2,732,0007 7T
Grant date share price EHBBRZ KRB HK$1.107%E 7T
Exercise price TfER HK$1.107 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor RBITERZE 2.86
Contractual life BHER 2 years F
Expected volatility ezt i g 23.81%
Dividend yield 5B = 4.82%

Risk-free interest rate 4 [F{ [ F) =X 1.28%
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (continued)
The 2011 Scheme (continued)

The Polynomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options granted on 19 January 2018. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the directors’ best
estimate. Changes in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the
fair value of the options.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of the stock
return of the Company over the previous 2 years. The risk-free interest rate
used in the model was determined based on the yield of Hong Kong Sovereign
Curve for the share options granted on 19 January 2018.

All share options granted on 19 January 2018 under the 2011 Scheme lapsed
on 18 January 2020.

As at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, there was no remaining
contractual life of outstanding share options as all lapsed after 18 January
2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021, there was no
expense charged in relation to share options granted by the Company.

34. RESERVES
The Group

The Group’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

33. LRI ARBZ(IMI
2011518l (@)

20181 A19RFENBEREZ A FEER
BAZEARN G Rt EREREATEER
ERZEHABRNIDBRESFZREMGLFETE-
BYRBRREB LS BEREZATEES
o

(nE)

RERSHL AEREBITHEBERRKAEE
NEREH B 2 Est Bl st EX 2 E (W
B) RIERRAER ) W R L AERE
DE%ESZO

TEHREINIRARATSBECFERERR ZE
SFIRIBREE - AR PARA 2 BERFZKTHIR

BEEBTHMAFELRE (F2018F1B19HER
HZBERHE) BE o

RIE2011FEET 2R 2018F1 B19B I KRB
AR HETE20205 1 H18H kLXK ©

7 2020F 12331 H K2021E 128318 7 &k
TREZERETEGRTANEH RRAEE
2020 1B 18H B 2 EEM

B E2020F12831H K&2021F12831H L&
B IEBAANTBEEBRIEARE X -
34. {#E

mEE

AEEXRFEMRBEFENREREZEHTRY)
RizEEnEez-

The Company b /N |
Share options Retained
reserve earnings Total
MR rEfE S BEEA “E
HK$'000 F#E7L  HK$'000 FE7L  HK$'000 FET
As 1 January 2020 72020F181H 607 1,400,836 1,401,443
Profit for the year EFEERF - 32,656 32,656
Dividend recognised as distribution ERRADIRZKE - (127,893) (127,893)
Transfer from share options reserve  H BB IS E (5 %é:n:

to retained earnings EEEN (607) 607 =
As 31 December 2020 72020512831H - 1,306,206 1,306,206
Profit for the year EFEERF - 2,110 2,110
Dividend recognised as distribution ERIRADIRZKE - (85,752) (85,752)
At 31 December 2021 72021512831H = 1,222,564 1,222,564

c021F#% 151
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35. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

35. R AT ZMBIRRER

POSITION
At 31 December At 31 December
©¥12831H R12H31H
2021 2020
Notes f1zE HK$’000 3z  HK$'000 T&7T
Non-current assets ERBMEE
Property, plant and equipment ME IR B 2,909 3,492
Right-of-use assets EREEE 330 687
Investments in subsidiaries B ARKE 7,650 7,650
10,889 11,829
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TEIRIE s R EAME
receivables & Q] 1,390 907
Amounts due from subsidiaries s /&8 A B T R 7R 18 2,876,660 2,981,562
Bank balances and cash IRITHARKRIRE 28,581 64,441
2,906,631 3,046,910
Current liabilities P I=RE
Other payables and accruals HhpE IR RS &
A 7,623 7,256
Lease liabilities — current portion HESE — "RHBD 296 361
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN EENEIEE] 797,178 854,761
805,097 862,378
Net current assets MBEEERE 2,101,534 2,184,532
Total assets less current liabilities BEEERTEAE 2,112,423 2,196,361
Non-current liabilities ERENERE
Lease liabilities — non-current portion HESE — FEREHD 49 345
Net assets BEEEE 2,112,374 2,196,016
Capital and reserves BXRKR#E
Share capital (%N 889,810 889,810
Reserves 5 1,222,564 1,306,206
Total equity e 2,112,374 2,196,016

ZHAO Yao

R
Director

EFE

YAU Hang Tat, Andrew
ER1EE
Director

EFE
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36. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 are as follows:

36. B ATKRE
7202112831 H K2020F 12831 B AAT *
BB ABMEBOT ¢

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
ML Bk BREMRE/ FARMBERTRE/
WEARRE E g BEXRE BiRAmtE TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B# it
% %
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 9% Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. fnote b) dyed fabrics
BRDEREHENEBRAR (Wb) hE 307,500,000 70 SR E IEIHERR
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
REHBXERAT &8 3,000,000 7 BhRBYER
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 S Trading of yarns
ERERAT &8 3,000,000 7 F4ES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEAEERAT s 0BT RRES
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note g) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns
IRERGABRAT (Hia) hE 110,000,000% 70 HE FENHERTRED
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 = Investment holding
EBIEBRERAR &8 28T RERR
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (nofe g/ The PRC USD18,000,000 - 5515 Production and sales of garments
ERABRKERAT (Hita) e 18,000,000% 7 ISR E M
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee (‘LKR") - 60 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Republic of Sri Lanka 985,000,000 dyed fabrics
HEFFRIHETZ 985,000,000 S e IEIHERR
#HE HEFEREL (BLL))
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Trading of garments
BEGAARERAT &8 28T RRES
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 = Investment holding
BEMBERAT &8 BT RERR
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36. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 are as follows: (continued)

36. B ABRE (B

202112831 H K2020F 12831 B AAT +
ENBLATMNFBUT ¢ (@

Place/country of
incorporation/ Issued and fully Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
BETR
AL Bk BRMRE/ FARMBERTRE/
WEAE % E g BikE BRI E TEE
Directly Indirectly
E# fitE
% %
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited ~ Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
chemicals
% (RFRFEERE) ERAS il 100,000/2 % R4 REBIEHES
Shanghai Fuhui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd. frofeg) ~ The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
LERESHBERZERAR (Hia) HE AR 5,000,007 EE
FINENGHERERAE ote o) (Hia) The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
HE A #35,000,0007 BhES
Sugjan Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note g) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
BRARMKERAT (T HE 800,000% 7T HERHERR
FRBRENRRABRAE hote g) (Hita) The PRC RMB90,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
e A #590,000,0007c Bt
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited. (nofe a) The PRC USD89,900,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns
BHRESBERAR (Wita) HE 89,900,000% 7T - RENEERRREY

Notes:

a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
b.  Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of the Group for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group
at the end of the reporting period. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Mt -

a. RABESINEBEERERINAT -
b. RABUSEEENSIFLRAMRINAT -

NEXRBMBABDERERATDEETRR
HUAEERFEXFAEEREUBMEE
ERNREHARNEEREREZL DMK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 30, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group may balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debts and the redemption of existing debts.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities divided
by total capital. Total liabilities is calculated as current liabilities and non-current
liabilities. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
gearing ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

37. EXREBEE

AEEEEEAZEN AN EREAERSE
BRUEEKE AKEANGEHEETR Y
BNREFE HFNEFDRALR - AEH
BB ESRBE BT —2 o

FEENEARBEERS (EPEEWNEESI0
PRIRBERER) R ABHERA ABGED (B
BRTRE KRR °

FABDEEHRFBEEERTBELSRB AR
SN EFTETERESRHNAERARE
FRER -RESEENER cEETLUEBRKHE
RENETHMRRBRRMUKRETHES R
BRIRAEGEHUTFEHHERESRE-

FEREREFERLLEX BIaEBERRNAE
BER) BEEHER BERQENDRASERKRIF
RBERFABE - EXBRELRBERE ABGE
mo NIREHRINERGR/EERINT ¢

At 31 December At 31 December

128318 #¥12831H

2021 2020

HK$'000 F#7T  HK$'000 F#H7T

Total liabilities I=REF 1,989,292 1,845,922
Equity attributable to owners of the Company Z~A B #H A FEL#E 3,560,238 3,394,572
Gearing ratio BARBMBLEE 55.9% 54.4%
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

38. TR TH
(a) ERIRER

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12H31H
2021 2020
HK$’000 F %77 HK$'000 F&ET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost ZEIHRASTENETHEE (BIFREK
(including cash and cash equivalents) £FEIRLER) 2,129,061 2,310,364
Financial liabilities ERBaE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost & AT EN SR EE 1,630,314 1,521,160

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, restricted and short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade and bills payables, other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner. To
mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign currency
bank balances by performing regular review. The Group will continue to assess
if the use of the foreign currency hedging strategy as appropriate in order to
mitigate the foreign currency risk.

(b) MFEEEERBRKRER

FEENTEZESH T ASFEEERREBIRK
B HAEWRIE ~ R IR R ERRIRITE A IR
THRBERRS EERZRENRR HMEM
IR RIFERRRBIRUR Y R—EE A FRY
MERBITEE ZFEMIAZFRENS
BT RE-BZFERTAEFRNERE
EHEER (EBRRKEFEAR) EEERR
RABEZRR - TXEINARMAREZS
RERNBER - EREEREREITEZF AR LU
R RS M1 8 U R B GE & B I

15 B
() EEELE

FAEBETERBINER S AL EW K
R

AEBEEKREEINERE  UEFRKLFKNE
SO REVE B - BEENEEE AEEE
BERE UEIEINE ZIRITHERR - AEEF
A 1 ST B S 1 PR A B O I 3 R SR B AR R S
R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
() Currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are
considered significant by the management are as follows:

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

38. £RIT A (&)

(b) HBEEKREERREE (&)
ARG ()

() B (&)

RBREHE EEERSBERNETERLUS
BINENEREERERABIIREEDT -

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EEERERARE
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
#12831H 128318 ®12831H R12H31H
2021 2020 2021 2020
HK$'000 F#&7T  HK$000 FE7  HK$000 FET  HKS000 F4E7T
usb =T 614,211 838,088 575,402 439,010
RMB AR 365,941 300,670 605,679 549,824
CAD o 3,312 6,016 38 -
LKR Bt 1,602 1,402 3,404 2,697
HKS BT 1,345 2,572 15,797 16,278
Indonesian Rupiah (‘IDR”) EER (ENEREL) 446 360 3,104 1,165
Sensitivity analysis BREDT

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB, CAD and
HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group entities.

The following table detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency of
the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HKS$ is
pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
On this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in pre-tax profit for the year
where foreign currencies strengthen against the functional currencies of the
corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice versa. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2020.

FEBEFEIRET  ARE M
ZEEREAFNEREBERNIEE B AR EF)
BYR B R

TEREMES LAINERERERERIIES
B ENEZ ES%HIMRE - AR BT EETH
8> HIEABTRETHRIN 5%RAEBREEA
ENN2RIERBREEASHEXRTES
B2 ERANSRELE BRED
HESFEHAEELUNEIENERER I
RERIZERIINERE S AEEIME - RILE
£ ZINE R EEBER S EAE%
REERABFEEIEM, R » RZIRRe
BRAD T Z2020F WHR B ETT

2021 €% 157
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

() Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

38. TRIT A (&)

(b) HBEEAKSEREREE (@)
ARG (E)

() ErEE

SR DT ()
EREEREEEE:

At 31 December At 31 December

12A31H 128318
2021 2020
HK$000 F#&;x  HK$'000 F57T
Increase/(decrease) in EEERAIBRFIEM, CFL)

pre-tax profit for the year
RMB against HK$ ARBRHBTT (11,685) (12,215)
CAD against HK$ TR BT 164 299
(11,521) (11,916)

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in relation
to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep
its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollars
denominated borrowings. In light of low interest rate expected to be maintained
in long period of time, the Group shall monitor the interest rate fluctuation
closely and arrange appropriate financial instruments to minimise the interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate
borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances
is not significant) at 31 December 2021 and 2020. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2020: 50) basis
points increase or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s pre-tax
profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$1,442,000 (31 December
2020: increase/decrease in pre-tax profit by HK$914,000).

i)  FIEEE

FEENESRAEMNERAREIRRTEIRT
HEHRREERAR AERNBREERHEIRT
BERFHFMELURBEATFEEN KRR -+
EENREAENXABRIEETNEELER
WHETSHENEBEELE 2 EBRITRERSK
o AN BANEBENERF—RERRE ~EEgT
BUBEN XK TLHFSENEMIAR
(RUEIEN &

BRE

TASMRESTREIEGTETR (BBIFEZE
BE NESIAMRIBITEGRAAEZ AR
TEKR) R20214F K2020FE 12831 HIFIXR A
BEBET AESNMLHERBRSIHREKREEN
EEHEEAEEAEERNYAREBNER
Mg -MEEEEAEARNBZ2HRAEZRERTD
K FE501E (2020512831 H : 501@) E B
Mo RREEEBHAEFESEEFMNT o

MIEFTERITEEMS P M= EF TS50
BEE MAABEMEHETAE AXER
HREEZRBIBFEEM, /11,442,000
BT (2020128318 © MAT &AM, 65
914,000/ 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the maximum exposure to credit risk
by the Group which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the
recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made to customers with good
credit quality and repayment history. In addition, the Group regularly reviews
the recoverable amount of debt on both collective and individual basis to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
response to the COVID-19 pandemic, management has also been performing
more frequent reviews of credit limits for customers in regions and industries
that are severely impacted. During the year ended 31 December 2021, a net
impairment loss of HK$11,343,000 (31 December 2020: HK$13,966,000) in
respect of the trade and bills receivables was recognised.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and bills receivables at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished between the Group’s
different customer bases.

The following table provides information about the Group’s exposure to credit
risk and ECLs for trade and bills receivables as at 31 December 2021 and
2020:

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

38. R T A (4&)
(b) HERAKTERERKE (&)
V=13

2021 K2020F12831H » AEERHF 5
REBTEXMERYHELNESEERR
AZBEMBRARAEIERIBEHEEN
IRESEE

ABEBEERAR AEENEEBEZR—4E
NEEBEETEERBE EEFMHREMERE
B UBARDIRETH IR CAEEE  E&H
EEHEERHETEAERFEEEZRENT
BT b AEE S ERRERNRERE
T EEN A U 058 URRELE AR
MEBEH BHMREIB & - AIEHCOVID-19%
B EEENCHZRIREFENHE RITE
MNERETEMEENEERESE NEE
2021 12A31HIEFERN AEBEEMEER
SRR EIERE SR BB FE11,343,00058 70
(20204E12831H : 13,966,000 7T) ©

FEERENERNBHREEBENTE (R
BREEEEAESL) StEEXREREBWM
BEREF ARATEENBREEEBEER
THERAIAEZERDHNEEEAEAHEE
EoRUEEE-—TeSFAEETRAZTRERA
HAM B 1R R

TRIBHBERAEE 20214 K£2020FE128 31
H &£ N ZIREWRIEFTmENEE RS &
BHREEFENER

Expected loss Gross carrying Loss

2021 20215 rate amount allowance
FEHARS I8 EE =R HEEREE EEiEEE

(%) HK$000 F#7T  HK$'000 T#T

Not yet due REIEA 1.73% 1,139,206 19,761
Overdue 1-60 days #HA1-60K 3.31% 147,392 4,883
Overdue 61-365 days #1HA61-365% 46.12% 15,556 7,175
Overdue >365 days B HABA365K 100.00% 5,013 5,013
1,307,167 36,832
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 38. £RIT A (&
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued) (b) HEAMEEEERERE (B
Credit risk (continued) EERE (&
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
2020 20204 rate amount allowance
TEHARSIALE X HERRE(E EIEE

(%)  HK$000 F3x  HK$000 T

Not yet due REIHA 1.10% 925,273 10,199
Overdue 1-60 days #1HA1-60K 1.10% 102,445 1,123
Overdue 61-365 days #1HA61-365K 52.87% 23,547 12,450
Overdue >365 days B HAB3A3656K 100.00% 1,284 1,284

1,052,549 25,056

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience over the past 5 years. TEHARIE LRI BASEMNERGELE A
These rates are adjusted to reflect differences between economic conditions — EE o 52 E R HAEE R MITEIWNERLH
during the period over which the historical data has been collected, current 5 A 5 B AR #R 05 ~ B AR 5 LA R 5 B FE UK
conditions and the group’s view of economic conditions over the expected FUERITEHIEHAHIRC BRI Z EENER
lives of the receivables.

Movements in the loss allowance are as follows: EIERE 2 SENUT ¢

2021 2020
HK$’000 F#&T HK$'000 T BT

At 1 January R1B1H 25,056 14,538
Impairment loss made on trade and bills SEREREIWRIEZ

receivables, net SHERERXRE 11,343 13,966
Amounts written off as uncollectible Ao elmiitE R =58 (12) (3,448)
Currency realignment NI E AR 445 -
At 31 December 128318 36,832 25,056

At 31 December 2021, the Group'’s trade and bills receivables included in the 1 2021F12HB31H > i HHBEEHFE S L
loss allowance with an aggregate balance of HK$36,832,000 (31 December 45 % 7%36,832,0008 7t (2020F12831H
2020: HK$25,056,000) was impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral 25,056,000 7T) 7S £ & % K Z 5 FE R TR I8
over these balances. BRE AERIEMZELERITEEMIER

O
an°
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The following changes in the gross carrying amounts of trade and bills
receivables mainly contributed to the increase in the loss allowance:

— increase in lifetime expected credit loss after assessing existing or forecast
change in business, financial or economic conditions which may cause
deterioration in the operating results of the debtors;

— increase in the adjustment factors to expected loss rates as a
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic; and

- written-off of uncollectible trade and bills receivables.

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its subsidiaries
after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial conditions. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable credit-
rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2021, the available unutilised banking
facilities of the Group are approximately HK$2,761 million (31 December 2020:
HK$2,793 million).

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

38. R T A (4&)
(b) HERAKTERERKE (&)
EEmERE (B

EERERRERERREEZUATEHTE
FP IR B A IR NPT 2R

— BHETEEREBAZKERESEZ
EB - WHBAKERRZIRENERNED
BIBMERNTARESHE ;

— RACOVID-19% EMIE MIAHA B RAIHE
HE &

—  MEEARWEINEE R ERERRRIE

st ZRBERBRSBEMBADNME
AR E T MEME A BRHYM BER - FULLm
S ARAEERR/TEERNEERBREARRE
AR

FEBNABESEEARER BEFSY
BESBNEETRSEGT B EETROE
5o

BAERTERNETEEENRIRTHRBES
ZEERBREDRIH AEBTEAHEREH
EERR ARRIBMNZEHEFS -

BB AR

REERBESRRE  ~EEEERRER
EEERARHKINRERERARELER
DENAERZEMREAARRERERIN
TE BEESERRTEENERIBR LHE
RESTRBAERZEN -

RERN AEBGBIRTEEEATER
ELRRR2021F12831H  KEEW AT H)
BEXRERIRITEEEAA2,761,000,000% 7T
(20204128318 : 2,793,000,0003 7T) °
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest is floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

38. Rt T H (4&)
(b) MERMBERERBE (&)
FEE AR (B

TRFVREZEERFREERIFTESH
BENHTENIMBER ZRDRAEERD]
FERERTMNRFEHRRBSRMEEIRR
RRERERR - ZREBEANEREEZRER
E-HFNERAFHFRZIBRER KRR

YRS ARG -

Weighted Carrying
average  Less than Total  amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
2021 20215 interestrate  ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years Over5years cash flows 2021
120215
Mgy DRER RURREE  12A%1A
BRAZ  gREX 1EMER MEREIE 1526 2F56 BiRsE  REME  NEREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE74 £81 & &
Trade, bills and other payables ¥ EEREMENRE 724,633 294,231 59,860 - - - 1,078,724 1,078,724
Amounts due to non-controling R FFRIRIREIE
shareholders 62,834 - - - - - 62,834 62,834
Amount due to an associate R—BREARRE 6,443 - - - - - 6,443 6,443
Bank borrowings RITEEE
- variable rate -¥8 1.44 132,534 133,956 22,329 - - - 288,819 288,350
- fixed rate -E8 0.75 - 39,027 - - - - 39,027 38,992
Lease liabilities RE&R 5.11 3,052 5,980 23,714 28,491 67,094 85,312 213,643 154,971
929,496 473,194 105,903 28,491 67,094 85312 1,689,490 1,630,314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)
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38. R T A (4&)
(b) HERAKTERERKE (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) RENEZEME (B
Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months undiscounted 31 December
2020 20206 interestrate ondemand  1-3 months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5years  Overbyears  cash flows 2020
12020
mgTs  OMER FERRE 128318
BIEAZE  ZEER  1EMER  EAEIE 1226 2E5F BigsE  RERE  NREE
% HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET FAT FAET FET FAET FAET FET
Non-derivative financial liabilities JE7 £ £ R & &
Trade, bills and other payables R ERRAMECTE 694,531 289,106 52,953 - - - 103659 1,036,590
Amounts due to RIEERRENE
non-controlling shareholders 64,525 - - - - - 64,525 64,525
Amount due to an associate R—EHEATRE 5,861 - - - - - 5,861 5,861
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate -38 2.46 7,862 33,811 136,332 7,151 - - 185,156 182,479
- fixed rate - kB 1.76 S = 54,771 S = = 54,771 54,269
Lease liabillies BEGE 4.96 9,195 5,704 24,831 28,248 77,009 97,700 242,707 177,436
781,974 328,621 268,887 35,399 77,029 97,700 1,589,610 1,521,160

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-
derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

(c) Fair value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, amount due to an associate and bank borrowings.

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills payables, other
payables, lease liabilities, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders and
amount due to an associate approximates their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.

WEBMNEZEHARNNNREHPRAIEEZ
FRMGES B LRI ESMEBRZF B IR
Z &P BER TR E

() 2FEE
WU FEEAEZZMTR

WU RAFEBEFSBEZEMIAGERERS
FIREEE & EREREUWRIE Y HthEUR
BEERBBERAORE - HMENRIE-HE
BE RIFERRERIR R —RHE QTR
ERIRTTIEE -

HRBERAME RERERREEBEE BER
RIFEUFIR  HMEUWRUE 8 X R RIREN
MIESHMEAIRE - AEER RIFERRR
MIERXR—EBEARDMBENREEREEL QY
EEEE-

AERERANBHNEIENSRITENER
HE > B E 2021512831 H &2020F 128
SIEHM AT EBELEEAER
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39. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

MEEHELEMNERZHR

Bank borrowings

39. RERETRERME

Amounts due to
non-controlling
shareholders

Lease liabilities

RIEER
RITEE IE RIS HEAaR
(note 30) (note 27)
(H75230) (Hizt27)
HK$'000 F#&x  HK$000 FE7x  HK$000 FET
At 1 January 2020 5£2020%181H 222,382 80,100 189,836
Changes from cash flows: REREEH !
New bank borrowings raised WEEZIRTEE 555,833 - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERRTEE (541,961) = =
Interest paid BT (9,984) = =
Repayment of amounts due to EIR R IEER IR ERIE
non-controlling shareholders - (15,575) -
Repayment of principal portion BEEEaE AT D
of the lease liabilities - - (23,026)
Repayment of interest portion BEREEEZFEDD
of the lease liabilities - - (8,930)
Total changes from financing MERTNEZEEER
cash flow: 3,888 (15,575) (31,956)
Other changes: Hfh&sE) .
Interest expenses (note 7) FER (Ha27) 10,632 - 8,930
Increase in lease liabilities from FENFTIIHEEMER
entering into new leases ZHEEAEEN
during the year - - 2,681
COVID-19-related rent concessions ~ COVID-1948REH £ R - - (2,082)
Effect of modification of lease terms ~ E5THHE KR £ - S (114)
Currency realignment MR ZER (154) = 10,141
Total other changes Hth&eh &5t 10,478 - 19,556
At 31 December 2020 /*¥2020%£12H31H 236,748 64,525 177,436
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31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (continued)

39. REHREMERME (B

MEZHELENEEZHER (@

Bank borrowings

Amounts due to
non-controlling
shareholders

Lease liabilities

RIEYERG
RITEE BE RIS HEARE
(note 30) (note 27)
(#15£30) (Htz227)
HK$'000 F&7x  HK$'000 FEr  HK$000 FET
At 31 December 2020 1£20205F12831H 236,748 64,525 177,436
Changes from cash flows: REnsEH) .
New bank borrowings raised MEEVIRTTEE 1,233,089 = -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIRITEE (1,142,748) = -
Interest paid EAFE (6,399) = =
Repayment of amounts due to non- {838 X IEIERR AR ERRIE
controlling shareholders - (1,691) -
Repayment of principal portion of the {EEEEE&EZ RS ED
lease liabilities - - (34,073)
Repayment of interest portion of the EEEEEEZF B9
lease liabilities - - (8,555)
Total changes from financing REIRS RS R
cash flow: 83,942 (1,691) (42,628)
Other changes: H &g .
Interest expenses (note 7) MERX (W1727) 6,670 = 8,555
Increase in lease liabilities from FRNFTIIMEEMER
entering into new leases ZHEaEEN
during the year - - 4,801
Effect of modification of lease terms ~ EFTHHE G2 £ = S 2,165
Currency realignment AN I T A R (18) = 4,642
Total other changes Hih&eh &5t 6,652 - 20,163
At 31 December 2021 720215128 31H 327,342 62,834 154,971
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A MBRERMEE (8

31 DECEMBER 2021 20218125 31H

40. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

40. B KIE

At 31 December At 31 December

12A31H 7128318
2021 2020
HK$'000 F#&xr  HK$000 FET
Capital expenditure contracted for but not BB S LR EEE 2
provided in the consolidated financial EENERESHMERE
statements in respect of acquisition REELERE B ABY
of property, plant and equipment 116,978 105,938

41. OPERATING LEASES

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during the
year was approximately HK$14,834,000 (2020: HK$12,299,000). The related
outgoings amounted to HK$1,260,000 (2020: HK$527,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants, in
respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease receipts.

41. EEHE

EBHMEAN

REERN AEEMKEYEFMHEENMA
LU ALBELN 514,834,000 75 (20204

12,299,000/ 70) BRI 141,260,000 7T
(20204F : 527,000 7T) ©

RESHE AERLBEFAREEMESITN
WARREBEHERALT -

At 31 December At 31 December

#12831H R12831H

2021 2020

HK$000 &t  HK$'000 F:ET

Within one year 18R 20,046 10,566
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2EEFEEN (HEEMESIEEN) 17,375 8,749
Over five years 5FEL E 9,676 792
47,097 20,107

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible employees
of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. The retirement
benefits cost charged to the profit or loss represents the contributions payable
to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the required
contributions.

42, BREF EHE

AEBERBRF RN ERPIEMBR L —IEE
BmHAEtE (RERREE) RIBEBRFIER
BE T BRAIRII—ERGI M B8 (8
BESE)) FRECERNAEREBES
EmEsENEENBUNAEREELRE
EANEE - EIRERATFREVR KB LA TS
AEERBEFAIBELXAENBNLESMH

=+
o

FEBHEMBEAME N ESRIESEZFEM
& BT & BV B SR IR @ A Bt B S E RR R RRET
Beo-rxEEARRBEHFMNETEDLEHRT
ZESAERBIEZ FEREZFHE
W—EEREAEFL AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (continued)

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available to reduce
the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$73,709,900
(2020: HK$54,292,700) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and
included in employee costs as set out in note 9.

43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 28.

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

42. BRAREFIEE (@)

RmEEE  FHESRHEBRKERNE MR
AU R B A > IR IR BT A 1R IR R 2R 4
E IR R o

EREEEEERRAINBRINEKRER 58 H#
T EBA73,709,9007 7T (20204 : 54,292,700
BT) WEF AMGEOFTE 2 BE AR o

43. BB R RREE A TRVIRER

(a) FAEKALEVEEER
AEEERF A LR EBREHRFBERING
BMBR TR MEE280

(b) FAEEALZRZ
RFEAEEARBMATET TIRS !

Related party Nature of
Name of related party relationship transaction 2021 2020
RREkA T8 EARARE A TRYRR 1A X5HE HK$'000 F#E7xT  HK$'000 FET
REMBKBERAE Associate Sewage expenses 21,477 20,112
/NS SSIKERIEE

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted connected
transaction or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

FHIRBEZ BB A LR Z AT BN EHRRE
UABPTREZ AER Z U ERER S

(c) Connected party transactions (c) FAEALRS
Name of connected party Nature of transactions 2021 2020
REALTSLE RaH4E HK$'000 F#5;r  HK$'000 FET
The FM Group (hote i) Sale of fabrics, yarns, 366,026 232,578
. fibers and garment parts
FMERE (752) EEMR IR~ M R AR B 1
The AH Group (note i) Sale of fabrics, yarns,
fibers and garment parts 225,313 152,182
AHEE (77 3Ei) EEHE A A R R Ee
Chinatex Group (note i) Purchase of yarns, cotton and other
materials for the manufacture of fabric,
‘ _garments and cooking oil and foodstuffs 1,224 6,507
AR (B L) REBALAD ~ IRTE R H A AR KBV IR M
B AU R B o
Huafu Group (note iv) Purchase of cotton yarn, cotton blended 35,697 88,861

EZER Wativ)

yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other
yarn products

REBRO 1R B K
HAth#) &
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43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes:

U)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a FM Master Sales
Agreement (the “2021 FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master
Sales Agreement (the “2024 FM Master Sales Agreement”) regarding the sales
of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the FM Group on
22 November 2018 and 16 December 2021 respectively. Mr. Omar is a director
and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The FM
Group comprises companies which Mr. Omar and his associates and relatives
individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50% of the
voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the
board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM Group are associates of Mr.
Omar and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement and the
2024 FM Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024 FM Master Sales
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021 for
the 2021 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000, HK$400,000,000 and
HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2018.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$400,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024 for
the 2024 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000, HK$450,000,000 and
HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2021.

43. AR AEALTHNRE (&)

(c)

MEALRS (@)

Hfat -

0

AT EFeroz Omard4 (TOmarst4E)) 522018
F11H22H K2021F12816 B D R~ &E &
BFMEBHERE - B4 M R KB4
IIFMAESE & 1738 (M 2021 EFMABSE E 158 )) B
BFMARSEE 175 (T 2024 FEFMARSS E 17 5%)) ©
Omart AR RE]— B2 ENBRABRZESE
RTERFT RELHRA BAEKATZEH
BALT -FMEBRZHE AT EBEHEOmMartE K
HEMBATKRBIEZSEATNREAT L
1@ Bl 3t 3 H B AT E ST HI 1T E B HIU 89
RARAEHNZENDEETEABOREN A
B AL FMEE Z 8 BA B AOmarft & 2§
VAT HMRE LHRE FMEB AKX AR
2 BAE AT o iR EHRAIFE14A% > 202145 FM
LASHE 1758 B 2024 FEFMARSH £ 1818 NIRRT
ZRBERANNB ZIFEREAERS

2021 FEFMARSH & i 2 S RAFR2019F1 B1HE
2021 12B31H L (BIEEREMX) » M20244
FM428Y & 17 3% > F HAE20224E1 51 H E20244F
128318 1L (BEEEMRX) °

HUM A AT HHEA2018F11A22B 2 A
el > 2021 FFMAERTH E R E N E E202145F
128A31H L= BEENFEELREED
Bl %350,000,0007 75 ~ 400,000,000 7T K
400,000,000 7T

ZEMBERZMEBIBAAS HEA2018411
B22HZ AEFFEHEE2021F12B31HIEEE
2 L [E400,000,0005 7T ©

HMAASBEA2021FE12816B2ZA S
Fra > 2024 FFMAR I EHZE N B 220245
12A3 HLE=ZEBMBREENEELRESE Y
Bl 2450,000,0007 75 ~ 450,000,000 7T &
450,000,000 7T ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”)
entered into a AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2021 AH Master Sales
Agreement”) and a renewed AH Master Sales Agreement (the “2024 AH Master
Sales Agreement”)regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
by the Group to the AH Group on 22 November 2018 and 16 December 2021
respectively. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. The AH Group comprises companies which
Mr. Hirdaramani and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise
or control the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings
or control the composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly,
members of the AH Group are associates of Mr. Hirdaramani and hence connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement and the 2024 AH Master Sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024 AH Master Sales
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024
(both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021 for
the 2021 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$350,000,000, HK$400,000,000 and
HK$400,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 22 November 2018.

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

43. R EAEANTHKE (8

(c) FAEALRS (&
Kzt (&)

(i)

AN T EAnil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanists 4
(THirdaramanist 4 1) £ 2018F 1183228 &
2021F12B16E DA E B BOAHER K E
ik~ BRAD ~ B4 R B IKFC (4 5] ILAHAR S & 58
(T2021FAHARH E iR ]) RBAHMEHE 7R
(T 2024FAHAE B E %) °HirdaramanisftE
ARAB—BIIETENBARIZESTRTER
BoRBELETRAU BARRB ZEBEAL
AHE B 2 B B /A B 8 i BHirdaramanife £ R H
MBATRBEBAIEZELREAE @5
SR ITERERITHEEFHU LRRR
B T ZE R EETEATOHREN AR
Ak > AHE B 2 B 8 /A & AHirdaramanift £ 2
MBAL WmiEE TR AHEBA AR
BB AT RIE EHRAFE14AZE > 20215
AHARSE E 1735 2024 EAHME SH & 775518 T R E
TZRBERARB ZFFERERS o

2021 FEAHAEIE & 1% 2 EHAR2019E1B1HE
2021F12B31H L (BIEERERMX) > M20244F
AHAERSY & 175 ~ FEHIR2022F 18 1H E20244F
12A31HIE (BEERMXK) ©

FUAAT HEAA2018FE11 228 2 A&
Fré& 2021 FAHEH EH BN B E202145F
12A3M A=A BREENEELREEY
Bl 350,000,000 75 ~ 400,000,000 7Tt K
400,000,000 75 ©
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43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(i)

(continued)

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$400,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024 for
the 2024 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$450,000,000, HK$450,000,000 and
HK$450,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 16 December 2021.

The Company and Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) entered into a
Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2021 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement”) and a renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2024
Material Purchase Framework Agreement”) in relation to the purchase of yarn,
cotton, other materials for the manufacture of fabric, garments, whereas cooking
oil and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the employees by the Group from
the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries) on 22 November 2018
and 16 December 2021 respectively. Chinatex is a controlling shareholder of the
Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group are associates of Chinatex and hence
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement and the
2024 Material Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2021 (both days inclusive) and the 2024 Material
Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2022 to
31 December 2024 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2021
for the 2021 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$63,000,000,
HK$63,000,000 and HK$63,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$63,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 22 November 2018.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2024
for the 2024 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$63,000,000,
HK$63,000,000 and HK$63,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 16 December 2021.

43. AR AEALTHNRE (&)

(c) MEALRS (@)
st o (@)

(i)

(i)

(&)
ZERBERZUEBBELEAIS2018F 1
B22BZ AEFEBE2021F12A31ALEFE
2 [ L FR400,000,0007 73 ©

HUAAT HEA2021FE12816B 22 &
Fra 2024 FAHB I EHZENE E20245F
12831 LE=BAMBREENEELRESEY
Bl 450,000,000 75 ~ 450,000,000 7T &
450,000,000 7T ©

AABRAPEFHERBRAR (TR 7B
201811 H22H %2021F 128 16 B D Bt A< &
EEanEE GNP RENBAR) KB
FRAE EthAEER BRI RN s Rk U B
RafsEREEREER AR R UNE
RIBEZRE (2021 =Y ERBEEHEL) &
BEYERBEER S (T 2024 FE Y ERBIEZRD
ZE) oA ARAT ZIERRE AL Rk L
MR PHARRB BB AT HEM R
BETRA PHEBZRE AT AT B
BAT AMAERAB ZRBEA T RIE EHIR
BUSE14AE > 2021 M) BRI NEZR 10358 22024 4F
YERBERGREE NMRET IR ZEREAL
BIZITERER S

2021 EY)E R BIEL 5 2 EHIR2019E18
1HZE2021FE12831H L (BEEERX) M
2024 Y E R BBIES 5% 2 FHAHH2022F1 81
HZE2024F12831H Lk (BIEERHRXK) °

A AT HEAA2018F 11 B22H Z A S
2021 FYERBIERBEINBE2021F12
AHILE=EBEENFE LIREEDHS
63,000,0007 7t ~ 63,000,0007% 7T 5263,000,000
BITe

ZEMBRZUWEBBART HER2018F 11
H22BZ AEFREBE2021F128318ILFE
2 FE £ R63,000,000% 7T

WA AAT HEA2021FE12816H 2 A&Fh
& 2024 E Y ERBER G FENEE20245F12
B3R LE=EVHREENEE LREED A
63,000,0003# 7T * 63,000,000 75 & 63,000,000
Brte
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES

(continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(V)

The Company and Huafu Holding Co., Ltd. (“Huafu Holding”) and its subsidiaries
(“Huafu Group”) entered into a purchase framework agreement (the “2022
Purchase Framework Agreement”) on 29 November 2019. Pursuant to the
2022 Purchase Framework Agreement, Huafu Holding agreed to, or procure its
subsidiaries to, supply cotton yarn, cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn
and other yarn products that may be needed for the Group. The cotton yarn,
cotton blended yarn, top dyed melange yarn and other yarn products that may be
needed to be purchased by the Group will be used for the manufacture of textile
products of the Group.

As Hong Kong Tin Shing Trading Limited (“Tin Shing”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of Huafu Holding,
completed the acquisition of 16.33% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company on 1 November 2019, Tin Shing has become a substantial Shareholder
and a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Huafu Holding,
as the holding company of Tin Shing, is an associate of Tin Shing and, therefore, is
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transactions contemplated under the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ending 31 December 2022 for
the 2022 Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$600,000,000, HK$600,000,000
and HK$600,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2019.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$600,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 as set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 November 2019.

ARG AT ERARMTEE (8)

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021812H31H

43. R EAEANTHKE (8

(c) FAEALRS (&
Kzt (&)

v)

RABN2019F11H20R BEZIZER B RAF

(TEZER) REWB AR ((EZERE)) 5T1L
REBER WA (T 2022 F REBERGH)) < 1RE
2022F RIBIER A EFXERFAE GEEH
MWERE) HERY REHY BHYRAE
A ERENHMUVBER AEBRTERE
KBRS REGO B R EMAGRER
RN NERER B

HREBRNEZERRE (TR > —RBRE
BEMAIZARRAB TREZERZEE
M@ AR R2019F11B1ETERWEBEAATE
BITRMEH216.33%  RIFEMHRA KL
ENATRATZETERFRBEA L EZIER
(FRRMZERRAE) HREZBHMBEAL
I R EHRBE4AT  EZIERBART
ZREAL

022F RBIERMAE TRET I ZBAE
ABN ETRABIARIRE T 2 FRRAER F ©

2022 F R BEME LR 1358 2 FFHRA2020F1B1HE
202251283101 (BIEEHEMX) °

FHAMA AT HEAA2019F 11290 2 A&
Fral > 2022 FF IREEER BB N E E20225F12
B31BLE=ZEHBEEEELRSBED
Bl 600,000,000 7T ~ 600,000,000 7T &
600,000,000 7T °

ZEMEBERZ U EBBEART B HHRH20195F11
B29BZ AEPMEEE2021F12A31BIEFE
Z F £ L R600,000,0004 7T ©
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43. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during
the year was as follows:

43. AR AEALTHNRE (&)

(d) FEEEASNHM
AFEEEFREMTBZEEASHFHFMUOT

2021 2020

HK$'000 F#&x  HK$'000 F&7T

Fees e 951 850
Short-term benefits g ERREA 6,322 5,688
Post-employment benefits BEREET 186 183
Discretionary bonuses FI51E 5 2,833 1,525
10,292 8,246

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
Board and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned entities”). The
Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are independent third
parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$456,021,000 and HK$83,770,000 (31
December 2020: HK$591,894,000 and HK$128,379,000) respectively are
placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2021.

EERTEEEBEAEZMEREFTET2REAR
B2 EERE BRI RBFERAILER T HHR
FMEE UHRHFNEEGER-

() REMPERBREERETHNRS

FEBEEMAENCEIRIRIRR T 2HPEK
FEZRNEZES HEERRAIHETHES
TENNER R THAER) TE -2
AEERR ESRHERERETEERZN
HAEBRHEABIE =T

RER ~EEBRAMEEERETRS &
EEFRREERMR BERE, KB UK
HEARTEANZZ -

MZEEAERFEERNAREERE K
BENEBIRZMWIFE R LLIh > 122021512
A31B  xEEMNRITHER (BERHIRTE
M ZRBIRITER) RIRITEEFDHA
456,021,00078 75 %83,770,0007 7T ( 2020412
A318 :591,894,0007 7T 5 128,379,0007% 7T)
REBRREBIRIT HEBRITR -
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